
DATE:
TIME:
PLACE

CALL ORDER

ROLL CALL

MEMBERS:

Mayor Charles Goodman
Council President Debra Jones
Vice-President Marguerite Robinson
Councilmember Michael Cox
Councilme mb er Zach Bullo ck
Councilmember Elihu Ross

OPENING PRA

CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

AGENDA

OTHERS

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2022
7:00 P.M.
WILLISTON CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER

Interim City Manager Terry Bovaird
City Attorney Scott Walker
City Clerk Laticia Wright
Attorney Kiersten Ballou

YER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIAN TO THE FLAG

_ ADD OF THE

ITEM - 2 -MAYOR'S STUDENT OF THE MONTH: Corrine Jovce Bullock
ston 7th

Hieh School.

ITEM-3- PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

ITEM-4_ AGENDA - (pp 5-e)
Council minutes October 18.2022

5_OLD BUSINESS

BOARD
o INTERIM CITY MANAGER TERRY BOVAIRD
o STAFF
o COUNCIL

6-NEW BUSINESS -
OPEN 1ST PUBLIC HEARING

A. lST READIN

o

ITEM _

A.

ITEM _

G:ORDINANCE 2022-704 : AN ORDINANCE TO BE KNOWN AS
SEWER S

r.lpnINAN DD r)\/TNINIG DEFINITI rTNTq I)TTT EQ r\E .rlNTETRUCTION

1



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

PROVIDING FIND INGS: PROVIDING FOR IMPOSITI OF WATER AND
E

ONS PR
OF FEES UPON CHAN IN SIZE AND USE: PROVIDING FOR
DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTION CREDIT: PROVIDING PAYMENT AND
COLLECTION O WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM ACITY FEES:

FOR REVIEW HEARIN REOUIRING PERIODIC REVIEW:
T)tr'T APTNTrf F T TqTNT\T FI).IM A T-\N'II\TTCTP A "NT\/E r)rrFNTTPFq

FOR PUBLIC PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT AND
EFFECTIVE DA

MANAGER TERRY BOVAIRD. (pp I 0-52)

CLOSE C HEARING

B. RESOLUTION : A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF TON FLORIDA. ES SHING AUTHORIZATION FOR

COUN IL TO AUTHORIZE
CONTRACT FOR EOUIX. INC.. TO REMOVE AND REPLA CE A GAS LINE

THE WAWA PROVID
DATE. CITY PLANNER LAURA JONES. (pp 53-61)

C. RESOI, 2022-91A RESOI-IITION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
OF APPROVIN

VACANT
AND THE CITY OF WILLISTON FOR PROPERTY AT AIRPORT WITH A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AS O IN THE ATTACHED LAND LEASE

A COUNCIL PRE
EXECUTE THE LEASE AGREEMENT: AND PROVIDING AN

DATE
D. RESOLUTION 2 -92: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF STON. FLORIDA. A PROPOSED FINAL
SUBDIVISION P FOR COUNTRY LANE ESTATES: ORIZING THE
CITY COIIN IL PRESIDENT TO THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT:
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. CITY LAURA JONES.
(pp 80-1 12)

E. RESOLUTION 3: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF ISTON. FLORIDA. ESTABLISHING AUTHORIZATION FOR

COUNCIL P AUTHORIZETHE
ITRON l OOW ENDPOINTS AND PR ING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. JASON

TIC DEP -11
F. RESOLUTION 2 -94: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

S F G THE
FOR A ROOM IN HALL BETWEEN CENTRAI, A COMMUNITY
ACTION A I . INC.. AND THE OF WILLISTON. PROPERTY MORE
SPECIFICALLY IN ATTACHED LEASE: ORIZING THE
CITY C PRESIDENT TO THE LEAS E AGREEMENT; AND

2



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

G AN EFFE CITY
OVAIRD.

G. DISCI]SS WITH POSSIBLE A N: RESCHEDULING NATURAL GAS
PRICE CITY

BOVAIRD/JONA BISHOP UTILITY DEPAR SUPERVISOR.
H. N WITH PO CAN

ND CIL
I. DISflISSI WITH POSSIBLE : MAKING INTERIM CITY

MANAGER. P CITY MANAGER. COI]NCII, ENT DEBRA
JONES.

J. DISCUSSION WITH POSSIBLE ACTION: MAYOR,S B ET/CREDIT CARD
MAYOR CHAR GOODMAN

ITEM-7-PI]BI,I PARTICIPATION

ITEM-8-ANNOUNCEMENTS

-9_ADJ

NEXT SCHEDIII, COUNCIL MEETING NOVEMR ER 2022. AT 6:00 P.M-

NEW LINK: Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.

httos://v. nscentral.com/ioin/0 690!797 6

Meeting lD:069017976

One tap to join audio only from a smartphone:
+16504191505,, 06901_79761# United States (San Mateo, CA)

Or dial:

+1 (650) 4191505 United States (San Mateo, CA)

Access Code / Meeting lD: 069017976

lnternational numbers available: httos://v.rinscentral .com/teleconference

YouTube Link: https://www.lroutube.com/channeVUCKtl468kcNjBS2AyeOaBsRO

Clicking this link will enable you to see and hear the Council meeting

3



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Council Meeting Procedures for members of the Public

1. All cell phones to be tumed off when entering the Council Chambers.
2. Once the audience has taken their seat and the meeting begins, there will be no talking between audience members

during the course of the Council meeting. If anyone continues to talk within the audience and is called down 3 times
during the course of the meeting, on the third time that person will be escorted out of the Council meeting;

3. The audience must be recognized by the President before being allowed to address the Council;
4. The member of the audience that is recognized will proceed to the podium, state their name for the benefit of the City

Clerk, prior to offering comments on a given matter.
5. The audience member will be limited to not more than 5 minutes to speak based on Resolution 2012-07;
6. There will be no personal attacks made by any member in the audience toward a sitting Council member and no

personal attacks made by any Council member toward a member of the audience;
7. There will be no conversation between a member of the audience that has been recognized and any other mernber of the

audience when speaking while at the podium;
8' If an audience member wants to speak more than the allotted 5 minutes allowed then that person should make a request

to City Hall so that the itern may be placed on the agenda.

Minutes of the City Council meeting may be obtained from the City Clerk's office. The minutes are recorded, but not transcribed
verbatim. Persons requiring a verbatim transcript may make arrangements with the City Clerk to duplicate the recordings, or
arrange to have a court reporter present at the meeting. The cost of duplication and/or court reporter will be bome by the
requesting party.
In accordance with Section 286.0105. Florida Statutes, notice is given that ifa person wishes to appeal a decision made by the
City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting they will need a record of the proceedings, and for such
purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record ofthe proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence
upon which the appeal is based.

In accordance with Section 286.26, Florida Statutes. persons with disabilities needing special accommodations to participate in
this meeting should contact the Mayor through the City Clerk's office no later than 5:00 P.M. on the day prior to the meeting.

4



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

MINUTES

DATE:
TIME:
PLACE

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2022
6:00 P.M.
WILLISTON CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER

CALL ORDER

ROLL CALL

MEMBERS: OTHERS:

Mayor Charles Goodman
Council President Debra Jones
Vice-President Marguerite Robinson
Councilmember Michael Cox
Councilmember Zach Bullock - absent
Councilmember Elihu Ross

G
Opening prayer and Pledge of Allegiance led by Mayor Goodman.

ITEM_ 1_ADDITIONS. D

Interim City Manager Terry Bovaird
City Attorney Scott Walker -absent
City Clerk Latt'rcia Wright
Attorney Kiersten Ballou

. CHANGES APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Item#4 changed from "Swearing in" to "Introduction". Kathy Ebaugh planner for Berkley
Subdivision asked to have Item #8 (d) tabled. Item 8 (g) resolution not in packet. vice-president
Robinson moved
carried 4-0.

to approve agenda with changes. councilmember cox seconded. Motion

-2- ON "ocro A
Goodman readWEEK''

Proclamation recognizing October 17-23 as Florida City Government Week.

_MAY ENT OF :Corrine J
Bullock . Mavbree tehurst. 5th srade. ston Elementarv Collvns

6th Middle Goodman presented students of the
month with an outstanding student certificate and a certificate for apizzafrom Domino's.
Corrine Stinson was absent.

OFFI
GOODMAN. Mayor Goodman and Chief Rolls introduced Officer Jason Godkin to the Council
and residents.

ITEM _.5 _ PUBLIC P ATION - None

ITEM - 6 - CONSENT AGENDA - Motion to approve consent agenda by Vice-President
Robinson. Seconded by Councilmember Cox. Motion carried 4-0.

a Council from Octo 4.2022

5



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLINCIL MEETING

BUS

BOARD
INTERIM CITY MANAGER TERRY BOVAIRD- Interim City Manager Bovaird
updated council on the number of residents on the utility cutoff list.
STAFF - Attorney Ballou discussed with Council the contract between CRA and
Oelrich construction. Public Works Supervisor Jonathen Bishop updated Council on
parking lot lights. Airport Manager Benton Stegall announced airshow at airport this
weekend. Chief Rolls informed Council the Police Department had received 12
computes, I Chevy Impala and 1 ballistic shield that was donated from Sumer County
Sheriff department.
COUNCIL- Vice-President Robinson reminded everyone that October is Breast
Cancer Awareness month and to please get checked. Mayor Goodman announced the
Veteran's Day Parade will be held on November l1th.

TTEM - 8 _ NEW BUSINESS -

A
a

a

o

A. ISCUSSI ACTI GAS BULK
TIE GAN

BARBER PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR. - Public Works Supervisor Barber
announced Natural Gas workshop to be held on Thursday october 27th.

B. RESOLUTION 2022-85: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF . FLORIDA. LISHING AUTHORIZATION FOR
THE COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO AUTHORIZE THE SI G OF CONTRACTS

OR THE LAB S FOR
LANE ESTATES DEVELOPMENT OF GAS ANI) INTO AN

H AR HO
AND PRO ING AN EFFECTIVE TE. DONALD PUBLIC
\I/rrRKS ST TDED\ NP ANTT.I KATIE IJAT T /'|.A\,'I TID N/r)p GAN FGU
Motion to approve Resolution 2022-85 by Vice-President Robinson. Seconded by
Councilmember Cox. Motion carried 4-0.

OPEN lST PUBLIC HEARING

C. 2ND READING :oRDINANCE 2022-702: AN ORDINAN OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON FLORIDA: AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE

F RZ-2
ACE HARD PARCEL #05533 SUBMITTED BY THE PROPERTY
OWNER AND UNDER THE AMENDMENT ESTABLISHED IN
CHAPTER 166. STATUTES: CHAN THE ZONING
CLASS TION ON THE FOI,I,O G DESCRIBED PROP FROM

ENTIAL C ON CERT
LANDS THE CORPORATE OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON.

6



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

F IN IN
ON CITY MAPS: AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE PLANNER
LAURA wore in City Planner Jones. Motion to approve Ordinance 2022-
702by Vice-President Robinson. Seconded by Councilmember Cox. Motion carried
4-0.

D. 2ND READIN G: ORDINANCE 2022- . AN ORDINANCE OF CITY OF
WILLIS FLORIDA. AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF THE
CITY OF TON PLAN PURST] TO AN
APPI,ICATION BY N FPC. LLC.. FO 47.9 +I- ACRES ID
AS S PARCELS (ATT AS EXHIBIT A) ON OFFICIAL

OF THE LEVY APPRAISER. UNDER THE
EST A

STATT]ES CHANGING ZONIN AND THE FUTURE USE
ICA ID USE

OF STO
PR ILITY

FOR IN TION ON CITY S. AND PROVIDING A EFFECTIVE
DATE. PLANNER I,AIIR JONES. - Tabled

CLOSE C HEARING

E. RESOL 2022-84: A RESO ON OF THE CITY COI CIL OF THE
ES

THE PRESIDENT TO UTHORIZE THE OF
F AND PR

EFFECTIVE DATE. DONALD PUBLIC WORKS S ERVISOR.
Motion to approve Resolution 2022-84 by Councilmember Cox. Seconded by Vice-
President Robinson. Motion carried.

F. RESOL 2022-86: A RESO ON OF THE CITY CIL OF THE
TON ST

CITY IDENT THE I
FOR THE PI]R EOF ELECTRICAL DEPARTMENT FLEET

TR IN ING
DATE. ALD BARBER. C WORKS S VISOR.
Motion to approve Resolution 2022-86 by Councilmember Cox. Seconded by Vice-
President Robinson. Motion carried 3-0.

G. RESOL 2022-87: A RESO ON OF THE CITY COI CIL OF THE

CITY REP

EST

CONTROL P
TO

THE CITY F WILLISTON COIJN PRESIDENT TO A ORIZE THE
OFA

7



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COLINCIL MEETING

PUBLIC
SUPERVISOR.
Motion to approve Resolution 2022-87 by Vice-President Robinson. Seconded by
Councilmember Cox. Motion carried 3-0.

H. RESOI, ON 2022-88: A OLUTION OF CITY COUN CIL OF THE
CITY OF WILLISTON. FLORIDA. ES ABLISHING AUTH TION FOR
THE COL/NCIL PRES IDENT TO AUTHORIZETHE SIGNING OF A

S AN PROVID

Motion to approve Resolution 2022-88 by Vice-President Robinson. Seconded by
Councilmember Cox. Motion carried 4-0.

I. ptrc.r}r UTI )n)'r_oO. L RESO TT NNI r)F TLItr r\E T IqTTTNTCITY
FLO AUTHORIZING ANCE AND ON OF THE GRANT

BY A DEP OF STATE
TO THE

SPORTS COMPLEX. CITY PLANNER LAURA JONES.
Motion to approve Resolution 2022-90 by Vice-President Robinson. Seconded by
Councilmember Cox. Motion carried 4-0.

J. DISCTIS ION WITH ACTION: CO HERITAGE-FLORIDA

P

CKER CITY J
Council President Jones said she would be more interested in having a mural painted
instead of a statue. Council asked City Planner Jones to form a mural commitiee
together and bring back ideas about the Cowboy Cracker Cattle.

K. DISCUSSI WITH POSSIBLE A : DIRECTIVE ON O ERING OF
DEVEI AND EMERGEN CY ELECTRTC INFRASTRUCTTJRE
INVENTO . TERRY BOVAIRD. CITY MANAGER A DONALD

Council asked Interim City Manager to bring back an agreement to the next meeting,
but to go ahead and order the transforTners.

L, DISflISS ON WITH POSSIR ACTION: SCRAP FUND IMPRO ON
ELECTRIC BARN. DONALD B PUBLIC WORKS S OR AND

ER
Consensus from Council to use the $4,300 in scrap money to make improvements at
the Electric Barn.

M. DISfl]SS ON WITH POSS ACTION: CITY

ITEM - 9 - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - None

SIDEWALKS. DONALD
PUB S

Consensus to continue with sidewalk project.

8



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

ITEM - 1l - ADJOURNMENT - Vice-President Robinson moved to adjourn the meeting at
7:53. Seconded by Councilmember Cox. Motion carried 4-0.

ITEM - 10 - ANNOUNCEMENTS - Williston Chamber of Commerce Beers and Steers event.
Council asked about Golf Cart Ordinance, Chief Rolls said he's working with WrighrPierce on
this project.
Council discussed the December 20th Council meeting. Vice-President Robinson moved to
cancel the December 20ft meeting. Councilmember Ross seconded. Motion ca:ried 4-0.

9



Date: November 8r2022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: Ordinance 2022-7042 AN ORDINANCE TO BE KNOWN AS THE CITY OF
WILLISTON *WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM CAPACITY FEE ORDINANCE'';
PROVIDING DEFINITIONS, RULES OF CONSTRUCTION; PROVIDING
FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR IMPOSITION OF WATER AND SEWER
CAPACITY FEES; PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT AND USE OF MONIES; PROVIDING
FOR EXEMPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR COLLECTION OF CAPACITY FEES
UPON CHANGES IN SIZE AND USE; PROVIDING FOR DEVELOPER
CONTRIBUTION CREDIT; PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT AND COLLECTION OF
WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM CAPACITY FEES; PROVIDING FOR REVIEW
HEARINGS; REQUIRING PERIODIC REVIEW; DECLARING EXCLUSION FROM
ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT; PROVIDING FOR PUBLIC HEARING;
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT AND SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

REQUESTED BY: INTERIM CITY MANAGER TERRY BOVAIRD
PREPARED BY: DONALD BARBER, PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

LEGAL REVIEW:

FISCAL IMPACTS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

ATTACHMENTS

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

10



ORDINANCE 2022.704

AN ORDINANCE TO BE KNOWN AS THE CITY OF WILLISTON " WATER ANI)
SEWER SYSTEM CAPACITY FEE ORDINANCE,,; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS,
RULES OF CONSTRUCTION; PROVIDING FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR
IMPOSITION OF WATER AND SEWER CAPACITY FEES; PROVIDING FOR
PAYMENT AND USE OF MONIES; PROVIDING FOR EXEMPTIONS; PROVIDING
FOR COLLECTION OF CAPACITY FEES UPON CHANGES IN SIZE AND USE;
PROVIDING FOR DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTION CREDIT; PROVIDING FOR
PAYMENT AND COLLECTION OF WATER AND SEWER SYSTEM CAPACITY FEES;
PROVIDING FOR REVIEW HEARINGS; REQUIRING PERIODIC REVIEW;
DECLARING EXCLUSION FROM ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES ACT;
PROVIDING FOR PUBLIC HEARING; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT AND
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VIII, section2(b), Florida Constitution, and sections 166.021
and 166.041, Florida Statutes, the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida has all powers of
local self-government to perform municipal functions, except when prohibited by law, and such
power may be exercised by the enactment of legislation in the form of City ordinances; and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the City Council that the terms contained in this Ordinance,
including these preliminary clauses, have the meaning as set forth in section 1.01 of this
ordinance;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council makes the following findings:
A. Development necessitated by the growth contemplated within the Service Area will

require improvements and additions to the Sewer System and the Water System to
accommodate the utility needs of such growth and maintain the standards of service
adopted by the City.

B. Future demand represented by Sewer System Capacity Development and Water
System Capacity Development should contribute its fair share to the cost of
improvements and additions to the Sewer System and Water System which arerequired
to accommodate the use of the Sewer System and Water System by such demand.

C. Implementation of a Sewer System Capacity Fee to require Sewer System
Development to contribute its fair share of the cost of improvements and additions to
the Sewer System is an integral and vital element of the regulatory plan of growth
management incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan.

D. Implementation of a Water System Capacity Fee to require Water System
Development to contribute its fair share of the cost of improvements and additions to
the Water System is an integral and vital element of the regulatory plan of growth
management incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan.

E. Capital planning is an evolving process and the level of service identified inthe
Comprehensive Plan for the Sewer System and Water System constitutes a projection of
anticipated need for sewer treatment and transmission facilities and water facilities,
based upon present knowledge and judgment. nature of population growth, it is the

11



intent of the City Council that the level of service for the Sewer System and Water
System and the associated Capacity Fees imposed be reviewed and adjusted
periodically, pursuant to Section 4.06, to insure that the Capacity Fees are imposed
equitably and lawfully, based upon actual and anticipated growth at the time of their
imposition.

F. The imposition of the Sewer System Capacity Fee is to provide a source of revenue to
reimburse the consumption of existing facility capacity orto fund the construction and
improvernent of the Sewer System either necessitated by the growth or as delineated in
the Comprehensive Plan.

G. The imposition of the Water System Capacity Fee is to provide a source of revenue to
reimburse the consumption of existing facility capacity or to fund the construction and
improvement of the Water System either necessitated by the growth or as delineated in
the Comprehensive Plan.

H. The Sewer System is intended to ultimately provide services for all properties within the
Service Area of the City. The presence of the Sewer System enhances and benefits the
health, safety, and general welfare of all properties within the City's Service Area.

I. The Water System is intended to ultimately provide services for all properties within the
Service Area of the City. The presence of the Water System enhances and benefits the
health, safety and general welfare of all properties within the City's Service Area.

J. All improvements and additions to the Sewer System needed to eliminate any
deficiency between the existing Sewer System and the standard of service as
adopted in the Comprehensive Plan, shall be funded by revenues other than Capacity
Fees. Any revenue derived from the Sewer System Capacity Fee shall be utilized only to
reimburse the consumption of existing capacity and facilities or for the acquisition of
improvements and additions to the Sewer System which are necessitated by Sewer
System Capacity Development either occurring or connecting to the Sewer System
subsequent to the effective date of this Ordinance.

K. All improvements and additions to the Water System needed to eliminate any
deficiency between the existing Water System and the standard of service as

adopted in the Comprehensive Plan, shall be funded by revenues other than Capacity
Fees. Any revenue derived from the Water System Capacity Fee shall be utilized only
to offset the consumption of existing capacity and facilities or for the acquisition of
improvements and additions to the Water System which are necessitated by Water
System Capacity Development either occurring orconnecting to the Water System
subsequent to the effective date ofthis Ordinance.

L. Neither the Sewer System Capacity Fees nor the Water System Capacity Fees are
designed to include thephysical costs of connection to either the Sewer System orWater
System and all physical connection costs shall be paid separately.

M. The purpose of this Ordinance is to regulate the development of land within the Service
Area by requiring the payment of Capacity Fees and to provide for the cost of capital
improvements to the Sewer System and Water System which are required to
accommodate growth. This Ordinance shall not be construed to permit the collection of
Capacity Fees in excess of the amount reasonably anticipated to offset the demand on the
Sewer System or the Water System generated by such growth.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

12



CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, THAT

ARTICLE I
GENERAL

1.01. DEFINITI When used in this Ordinance, the following terms shall
have the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

rrApplicant" shall mean the Person who applies for a water andlor sewer connection to
the City's water andlor sewer system.

"Building" shall mean any structure, either temporary orpermanent, built for the
support, shelter or enclosure ofPersons, chattels or property ofany kind, or any other
improvement, use, or structure which creates or increases the potential demand on the sewer
utility system or water utility system operated by the City. This term shall include trailed, mobile
homes, or any vehicle serving in any way the function of a Building. This term shall not
include temporary construction sheds or trailers erected to assist in construction and
maintained during the term of a building permit.

f 'Capacity Fees" shall mean collectively the Sewer System Capacity Fee and
WaterSystem Capacity Fee. This term shall be synonymous with the term "Capacity
Fee" and "Reserve Capacity Charge" as used in this or prior policies or tariffs relating to
the subject maffer addressed by this Ordinance, but does not include the fees or charges
imposed by the City as reimbursement for the costs ofphysical connection to the Sewer
System or the Water System,

"Capacity Fee Improvements'f shall mean those improvements that form the basis for
the Capacity Fee calculations in the study adopted pursuant to Section 1.04, or such other
capital improvements designed to provide needed water andlor sewer system capacity to service
new growth within the Service Area.

"Capital Construction Costs" shall mean all or any portion of the expenses that
are properly attributable'to the acquisition, design, construction, installation, and
reconstruction (including demolition, environmental mitigation and relocation) of
improvements to the Sewer System or Water System under generally accepted
accounting principles; and including reimbursement to the City for anyfunds advanced for
Capital Construction Costs and interest on any interfund or intrafund loan for such purposes.

"City" shall mean the City of Williston, Florida.
"City Attorney' shall mean the Person appointed by the City Council to serve as its

counsel or the designee ofsuch Person.

"City Council" shall mean the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida.
"City Manager" shall mean the City Manager of the City, whose responsibility it

is to supervise the administration, operations and acquisitions of the Sewer System and Water
System or the designee of such Person.

"Comprehensive Plan" shall mean the Comprehensive plan of the City adopted
and amended pursuant to the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land
Development Regulation Act as contained in Part II, Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, or its
statutory successor in function.

"Dwelling Unit" shall mean a Building, or a portion thereof, which is designed
for Residential occupancy, consisting of one or more rooms which are arranged, designed or

13



used as living quarters for one family only.
t'Encumberedtt shall mean moneys committed by contract or purchase order in a

manner that obligates the City to expend the encumbered amount upon delivery ofgoods, the
rendering ofservices or the conveyance ofreal property interests by avendor, supplier, contractor
or Owner.

rrERU.rr or "Equivalent Residential Unit'r shall mean the equivalent oftheaverage
water and wastewater usage requirements of a single-family residential customer.

ffMobile Home" shall mean a structure transportable in one (1) or more sections, which
structure is eight (8) body feet or more in width and over thirty-five (35) feet in length, and which
structure is built on an integral chassis and designed to be used as aDwelling Unit when connected
to therequired utilities, and includes theplumbing, heating, air conditioning, and electrical systems
contained therein.

ff Multi-Family" shall mean aBuilding or aportion of aBuilding, regardless of ownership,
containing more than one Dwelling Unit designed for occupancy by a single family, which units are
not customarily offered for rent for one day, and shall include Apartments, City houses, and
Condominiums.

"Owner" shall mean the Person holding legal title to the real property for which Capacity
Fees are paid.

frPersonfr shall mean an individual acorporation, a partnership, anincorporated
association, trust or any other entity.

ff Sewer System" shall mean the wastewater or sewer utility system directly or
indirectly connected to treatment facilities operated by the City.

"Water System' shall mean the water utility system directly or indirectly connected to
treatment facilities operated by the City,

"Residential" means Multi-Family Dwelling Units, Mobile Homes and Single-Family
Detached Houses.

frResidential Construction'f shall mean land development designed or intended to
permit more Dwelling Units than the existing use or non-use of land contains.

"Service Area'f shall mean that areaserved bythe City's Water System and Sewer
System within Levy County, Florida.

'rSewer System Capacity Development" shall mean development upon lands within
the area served by facilities owned and operated by the City which shall be subjected to the payment
of Sewer System Capacity Fees under this Ordinance upon the first occurrence of any ofthe
following:

a) Whenever any existing Building or structure, which has not previously paid Sewer System
Capacity Fees under this Ordinance, connects to the Sewer System; or

b) Whenever any existing Building or structure or applicable improvement which is
connected to an interim sewer system is connected, either directlyor indirectly, to the Sewer
System; or

c) Whenever a Person alters an existing Building, structure or applicable improvement already
connected to theSewer System, where such alteration increases thepotential demand onthe
Sewer Systern.

'rSewer System Capacity Fee" shall mean the fee imposed by the City pursuant to
Section 2.01 of this Ordinance.

"Single-Family Detached House" shall mean a Dwelling Unit on an individual
lot, including detached houses on lots less than 50 feet wide, such as zero lot line homes

14



and manufactured homes.

"Water System Capacity Development" shall mean development upon lands within
the area served by facilities owned and operated by the Citywhich shall be subjected to thepayment
of Water System Capacity Fees under this Ordinance upon the first occurrence of any ofthe
following:

a) Whenever any existing Building or structure, which has not previously paid Water System
Capacity Fees under this Ordinance, connects to the Water System; or

b) Whenever any existing Building or structure or applicable improvement which is
connected to an interim water system is connected, either directly or indirectly, to theWater

I'Water System Capacity Fee" shall mean the fee imposed by the City pursuant to
Section 3.01 of this Ordinance.

ULES FOR For the purposes of administration and
enforcement of this Ordinance, unless otherwise stated inthis Ordinance, the following rules of
construction shall apply:

A. In case of any difference ofmeaning or implication between the text ofthis Ordinance and
any caption, illustration, appendix, summary table or illustrative table, the text shall
control.

B. The word "shall" is always mandatory and not discretionary and the word "may" is
permissive.

C. Words used in the present tense shall include the future; and words used in the
singular shall include the plural and the plural the singular, unless the context clearly
indicates the contrary; use of the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender.

D. The phrase "used for" includes "arranged for," "designed for," "maintained for," or
"occupied for."

E. Unless the context clearly indicates the contrary, where a regulation involves two or more
items, conditions, provisions, or events connected by the conjunction shall be interpreted
as follows:

1 . trAndrr indicates that all the connected terms, conditions, provisions or events apply in
combination.

2. "Or" indicates that the connected terms, conditions, provisions or events may apply
singly or in any combination,

3. "Either ... or" indicates that the connected items, conditions, provisions, or events
shall apply singly but not in combination.

F. The word "includes" shall not limit a term to the specific example but is intended to extend
its meaning to all other instances or circumstances of like kind or character.

G. The terms "growth," "growth necessitated improvements," "future growth" and the like
shall refer, and be construed as refencing to Sewer System Capacity Development or
Water System Capacity Development either occurring or connecting, either directly or
indirectly, to the Sewer System or Water System subsequent to the effective date of this
Ordinance.

15



H. All timeperiods contained within this Ordinance shall becalculated on a calendar day basis,
including Sundays and legal holidays. In the event the due date falls on a Sunday or legal
holiday, the due date shall run until the end of the next day that is neither a Sunday nor legal
holiday.

SECTION 1.03. FINDINGS. The findings set forth in the preamble to this ordinance, above,
are hereby incorporated into this ordinance by reference.

qE.TTrlI\T 1 04. ADOPTION OF T.APA(-TTV FtrF P ATtr qTTTN\/ The City Council hereby
adopts and incorporates by reference the studies entitled "City of Williston (Proposed Capacity
Fee Wastewater)" and "City of Williston (Proposed Water Capacity Fee)", dated as of October,
2022, attached as Exhibits A & B, respectively.

ARTICLE II
SEWER SYSTEM CAPACITY FEES

SECTION 2.01. IMPOSITION.

A. All Sewer System Capacity Development occurring within the City's Service Area shall
pay asewer System Capacity Fee of I per ERU, calculated in accordance with
the following schedule:

Establishment Type ERU Factor

Residential
Single Family Detached Per Dwelling Unit
Duplex (1-2 Bedroom) PerDwelling Unit
Duplex (Greater than2 Bedroom) Per Dwelling Unit
Multi-Family (Efficiency) Per Dwelling Unit
Multi-Family (L-2 Bedroom) Per Dwelling Unit
Multi-Family (Greater than 2 Bedroom) Per Dwelling Unit
Mobile Home (1-2 Bedroom) Per Dwelling Unit
Mobile Home (Greaterthan 2 Bedroom) Per Dwelling Unit

Commercial
Auditorium Per Seat
Auto Service and/or detailing PerBay

Add: Per Wash Bay
Add: Per Public Restroom

Banquet/ Meeting Room Per Seat
Barl Cocktail Lounge Per Seat
Barber Shop Per Work Station
Beauty Salon Per Work Station
Bowling AlleyPer Lane
Church Per Seat
Convenience Store:

(WSelf-Serve Gas Pumps) PerPublic Restroom

1.000
0.833
1.000
0.s00
0.833
1.000
0.833
1.000

0.015
1.000
3.200
1.500
0.020
0.100
0.333
0.600
0.333
0.020

1.500

16



Convenience Store
(Wout Self-Serve Gas Pumps) PerPublicRestroom 0.500

Dentist Office Per Dentist 1.000

Add: Per Wet Chair 0.667
Dinner Theater Per Seat 0.100
Doctor Office Per Doctor 1.000
Extended Care Facility Per Unit 0.667
Grocery Store Per 1,000 Square Feet 0.750
Hospital Per Bed 0.833
Add for Food Service AreaPer 100 Square Feet 0.500
Hotel, Motel Per Room 0.500
(Food service, banquet and meeting rooms, laundries are all calculated separately)
Industrial / Manufacturing: (Notincluding food service or
industrial wastewater flow. Both are calculated separately)

With Showers Per 1,000 Square Feet I.250
Without Showers Per 1,000 Square Feet 0.400

Laundry, SelfServicePerWashingMachine 1.400
Nursing Home Per Bed 0.500
Office Building Per 1,000 Square Feet 0.400

Add for food service Per 100 Square Feet 0.500
Add for Retail Space Per 1,000 Square Feet 0.500

Retail Shopping AreaPer 1,000 Square Feet 0.500
Restaurant (24Hour) Per Seat 0.200
Restaurant (Fast Food) Per Seat 0.100
Restaurant I Cafeteia Per Seat 0.100
RV Park Per Site 0.250
School, Nursery and Elementary Per Student 0.033
School, Middle and High Per Student 0.075
Shopping Center Per 1,000 Square Feet 0.500
Theater Per Seat 0.020
Trailer Park (Overnight Only) Per Site 0.333
Warehouse Per 1,000 Square Feet 0.200

Add: Per Restroom 0.750

B. The Sewer System Capacity Fee shall be paid in addition to all other fees, charges and
assessments due for the connection to the Sewer System and is intended to provide funds
only for the consumption of existing facility capacity or for growth necessitated
improvements and additions to the Sewer System.

C. In the event that a connection to the Sewer System is of a type not listed in the schedule
above, the City shall determine the appropriate Sewer Capacity Fee using an estimated
number of ERUs based on the estimated wastewater production gallons per day for the
type of property use as determined by the City Manager.

SECTION 2.02. PAYMENT.

A. Except as otherwise provided in this Ordinance, prior to any connection to the Sewer

17



System, all Applicants or Owners, as the case may be, shall pay the Sewer System
Capacity Fee as set forth in Section 2.01 directly to the City.

B. The obligation for payment of the Sewer System Capacity Fee and the benefits
derived therefrom shall run with the land.

SECTION 2.03. USE OF MONIES
A. The City Council hereby confirms the establishment of a separate trust account for the

Sewer System Capacity Fees, which shall be maintained separate and apart from all other
accounts ofthe City. All such Sewer System Capacity Fees shall be deposited
into such trust account immediately upon receipt.

B. The monies deposited into the Sewer System Capacity Fee trust account shall be used
solely for thepurposes of reimbursement for the consumption ofexisting facility
capacity by growth or providing growth necessitated capital improvements and additions
to the Sewer System, including, but not limited to:

1. Design or construction plan preparation;
2. Construction management and inspection;
3. Capital Construction Costs;
4. Reimbursement of excess Developer Contribution credit pursuant to Section 4.04;

and

5. Payment of principal and interest, necessary reserves and costs of issuance under
any bonds or other indebtedness issued by the City to provide funds to construct
or acquire growth impacted capital improvements of the Sewer System.

C. Funds on deposit in the Sewer System Capacity Fee trust account shall not be used for any
expenditure that would be classified as a maintenance or repair expense.

D. The monies deposited into the Sewer System Capacity Fee trust account shall be used
solely for reimbursement for the consumption of existing facility capacity by Sewer
System Capacity Development or to provide improvements and additions to the Sewer
System required by growth, generated by Sewer System Capacity Development.

E. Any funds on deposit which are not immediately necessary for expenditure shall be
invested by the City. All income derived from such investments shall be deposited in
the Sewer System Capacity Fee trust account and used as provided herein.

ARTICLE III
WATER SYSTEM CAPACITY FEES

SECTION 3.0I. IMPOSITION.

A. All Water System Capacity Development occurring within the City's Service Area shall
pay aWater System Capacity nee off per ERU in accordance with the following
schedule.

Establishment Type
Residential
Single Family Detached Per Dwelling Unit
Duplex (1-2 Bedroom) Per Dwelling Unit

ERU Factor

1.000

0.833

18



Duplex (Greater than 2 B edroom) P er Dwelling Unit
Multi-Family (Effi ciency) Per Dwelling Unit
Multi-Famlly (l-2 Bedroom) PerDwelling Unit
Multi-Family (Greater than2 Bedroom) Per Dwelling Unit
Mobile Home (1-2 Bedroom) PerDwelling Unit
Mobile Home (Greater than2 Bedroom) Per Dwelling Unit

Commercial
Auditorium Per Seat
Auto Service and/or detailing Per Bay

Add: Per Wash Bay
Add: Per Public Restroom

Banquet/ Meeting Room Per Seat

Barl Cocktail Lounge Per Seat

Barber Shop Per Work Station
Beauty Salon Per Work Station
Bowling Alley Per Lane
Church Per Seat

Convenience Store:
(WSelf-Serve Gas Pumps) Per Public Restroom

Convenience Store
(Wout Self-Serve Gas Pumps) Per Public Restroom

Dentist Office Per Dentist
Add: PerWetChair

DinnerTheater Per Seat

Doctor Office Per Doctor
Extended Care Facility Per Unit
Grocery Store Per 1,000 Square Feet

Hospital PerBed
Add for Food Service Area Per t 00 Square Feet

Hotel, Motel PerRoom
(Food service, banquet and meeting rooms,
Laundries are all calculated separately)
Industrial/Manufacturing: (Not including food service or industrial
wastewater flow. Both are calculated separately)
With showers per 1,000 Square Feet
Without Showers per 1,000 Square Feet
Laundry, Self Service Per Washing Machine
Nursing Home per Bed
Office Building per 1,000 Square Feet

Add for Food Service per 100 Square Feet
Add for Retail Space Per 1,000 Square Feet

Retail Shopping Area Per 1,000 Square Feet
Restaurant (24Hour) Per Seat
Restaurant (Fast Food) Per Seat

1.000

0.s00
0,833
1.000
0.833
1.000

.,015
1.000

3.200
1.500
0.020
0.100

0.333
0.600
0.333

0.020

1.500

0.s00
1.000
0.667
0.100

1.000
0.667
0.750

0.833
0.500
0.500

1.2s0
0.400
1.400
0.500
0.400
0.s00
0.s00
0.s00
0.200
0.100

19



Restaurant / Cafeteria Per Seat
RV Park Per Site
School, Nursery and Elementary PerStudent
School, Middle and High Per Student
Shopping Center Per 1,000 Square Feet
Theater Per Seat

Trailer Park (Overnight Only) Per Site
Warehouse Per 1,000 Square Feet

Add: Per Restroom

0.100
0.250
0.033
0.075
0.500
0.020
0.333
0.200
0.750

B. The Water System Capacity Fee shall be paid in additional to all other fees, charges, and
assessments due for the connection to the Water System and is intended to provide funds
only for the consumption of existing capacity or for growth necessitated improvements
and additions to the Water System.

C. In the event that a connection to the Water System is of a type not listed in the schedule
above, the City shall determine the appropriate Water Capacity Fee using an estimated
number of ERUs based on the estimated water usage per day for the type of property use
as determined by the City Manager.

SECTION 3.02. PAYMENT.
A. Except as otherwise provided in this Ordinance, prior to any connection to theWater System, all

Applicants or Owners, as the case may be, shall pay the Water System Capacity Fee as set forlh
in Section 3.01 directly to the City.

B. The obligation for payment of the Water System Capacity Fee and the benefits derived
therefrom shall run with the land.

SECTION 3.03. E OF MONIES.
A. The City Council hereby confirms the establishment of a separate trust account for the

Water System Capacity Fees, which shall be maintained separate and apart from all other
accounts of the City. All such Water System Capacity Fees shall be deposited into such
trust account immediately upon receipt.

B. The monied deposited into *re Water System Capacity Fee frust account shall be used solely for
the purposes of reimbursement for the consumption of existing facility capacity by growth or
providing growth necessitated capital improvements and additions to the Water System,
including, butnot limited to:

1. Design or construction plan preparation;
2. Constructionmanagement and inspection;
3. Capital Construction Costs;

4. Reimbursement of excess Developer Contribution credit pursuant to Section 4.04; and
5. Payment of principal and interest, necessary reserves and costs of issuance under any

bonds or other indebtedness issued by the City to provide funds to construct
or acquire growth impacted capital improvements to the Water System

C. Funds on deposit in the Water System Capacity Fee trust account shall not be used for any
expenditure that would be classified as a maintenance or repair expense.

20



D. The monies deposited into the Water System Capacity Fee trust account shall be used
solely forreimbursement for the consumption of existing facility capacity by Water
System Capacity Development or to provide improvements and additions to the Water
System required by growth, generated by Water System Capacity Development.

E. Any funds on deposit which are not immediately necessary for expenditure shall be
invested by the City. All income derived from such investments shall be deposited in
the Water System Capacity Fee trust account and used as provided herein.

ARTICLE IV
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

SECTION 4.01. EXEMPTIONS. The following shall be exempted from payment of
Capacity Fees:

A. Alterations or expansion of an existing Building, structure or improvement where no
additional demand on either the Sewer System or the Water System is or will be
created.

B. The construction of accessory Buildings, structures or improvements which will not
create an additional demand on either the Sewer System or the Water System.

C. The replacement of an existing Building, structure or improvement which has been
previously been subjected to aCapacity Fee payable to the City where no additional
demand is or will be created on either the Sewer System or the Water System.

SE,CTION 4.02. CHAN ES OF SIZE AND USE.
A. Capacity Fees shall be imposed and calculated for the alteration, expansion or

replacement of Sewer System Capacity Development orWater System Capacity
Development which will result in a land use determined to create an additional demand
on either the Sewer System or the Water System. Whenever any Person applies to connect
to either the Sewer System orWater System, the Capacity Fee imposed shall be calculated
on the entirety of theBuildings. Where the alteration, expansion or replacement occurs
on lands for which a Sewer System Capacity Fee or Water System Capacity Fee has
already been paid, the Capacity Fee imposed shall be only upon the additional
demand created by the alteration, expansion or replacement.

B. No refund or credit shall be afforded an Owner or Applicant in the event of a
diminution of use occurs after the Sewer System Capacity Feeor Water System Capacity
Fee already paid has been expended or Encumbered. For the purposes of this Section,
fees collected shall be deemed to be spent or Encumbered on the basis of the first fee
in shall be the hrst fee out.

SECTION 4.03. COLI,ECTION OF UNPAID FEES. In the event the Sewer System
Capacity Fee or the Water System Capacity Fee, as applicable, is not paid prior to
physical connection to either the Sewer System or the Water System, the City shall proceed
to collect the Sewer System Capacity Fee or Water System Capacity Fee, as applicable, as

follows:

A. The City shall serve, by certified mail, return receipt requested, a Notice of Capacity

21



Fee Statement upon the Owner at the address appearing on the most recent records
maintained by the Property Appraiser of the County in which the property is located.
Service shall be deemed effective on the date of the return receipt indicates the notice
was received by either the Applicant or the Owner. The Notice of Capacity Fee
Statement shall contain a reasonable legal description of the property and shall advise
the Applicant and Owner that:

1 . The amount due and the general pu{pose for which the Sewer System Capacity
Fee was imposed or, as applicable, the amount due and the general purpose for
which the Water Systern Capacity Fee was imposed;

2. A hearing pursuant to Section 4.05 maybe requested within thirty (30) calendar
days from the effective date of service of the Notice of Capacity Fee Statement,
bymaking application to the Office of the City Manager.

B. The Sewer System Capacity Fee or Water System Capacity Fee, as applicable, shall be
delinquent if, within thirty (30) calendar days from the effective date of service of the
Notice of Capacity Fee Statement, neither the Capacity Fee has been paid and received
by the City nor has a review hearing been requested pursuant to Section 4.05. In the
event a hearing is requested pursuant to Section 4.05, the unpaid Capacity Fees shall
become delinquent if not paid within thirty (30) days from the date the City Council
determines the amount of Capacity Fees due upon the conclusion of such a hearing.
Upon becoming delinquent, the Sewer System Capacity Fee or the Water System
Capacity Fee, as applicable, shall be subject to interest on the unpaid amount at the
statutory rate for final judgments on a calendar day basis until paid.

C. In the event the Sewer System Capacity Fee or Water System Capacity Fee becomes
delinquent, the total amount of unpaid Capacity Fees plus any applicable interest shall be
added to the Owner's monthly bill for water or sewer service, as applicable, and shall be paid
as a condition of service.

D. At the City's discretion, any delinquent Capacity Fees maybe collected by any other
method which is authorized by law, including, but not limited to, lien foreclosure
proceedings.

SECTION 4.04. DEVET CONTRIBUTION CREDIT
A. The City may enter into a contribution agreement with a developer which grants a

credit for Sewer System Capacity Fees imposed in Section 2.01 or Water System
Capacity Fees imposed in Section 3.01 in exchange for certain donations of Capacity
Fee Improvements, or for the construction or installation of certain Capacity Fee
Improvements.

B. The amount of developer contribution credit to be applied shall be determined
according to the following standards of valuation:

L The value of donated Capacity Fee Improvements shall be based upon a

written appraisal of fair market value by a qualified and professional appraiser
acceptable to the City based upon generally accepted methods of valuation.

2. The cost of eligible anticipated construction of Capacity Fee Improvements
for the Sewer System or Water System shall be based upon professional
opinions oftotal project probable cost certified by a professional architect or
engineer.

22



3. In the case of contributions of construction or installation of Capacity Fee
Improvements, the value of the developer's proposed contribution shall be
adjusted upon completion of the construction to reflect the actual costs of
construction or installation of improvements contributed by the developer.

4. No credit whatsoever for lands, easements, construction or infrastructure
otherwise required to be built or transferred to the City by law, ordinance or
any other rule or regulation shall be considered or included in the value of any
developer's contribution.

C. All construction cost estimates shall be based upon, and all construction plans
specifications and conveyances shall be in conformity with the utility construction
standards and procedures of the City. All plans and specifications shall be approved
bythe City Managerprior to commencement of construction.

D. Prior to the commencement of construction, the Applicant shall submit to the City
Manager a proposed plan and estimate of costs for contributions to the Sewer System or
Water System, as applicable. The proposed plan and estimates shall include:

1. A designation and description of the Sewer System Capacity Development orWater
System Capacity Development, as applicable, for which the proposed plan is being
submitted;

2. A description of any Capacity Fee lmprovements proposed to be donated and a
written appraisal prepared in conformity with Subsection B.l. ofthis Section;

3. Initial professional opinions of probable construction costs for the proposed
construction provided by aprofessional architect or engineer;

4. A proposed schedule for completion oftheproposed plan prepared by a professional
architect or engineer; and

5. A processing, review and audit fee as determined by the City.
E. Upon favorable review of the proposed plan, the City Mayor shall schedule a

presentation before the City Council at a regularly scheduled meeting or a special meeting
called for thepurpose ofreviewing theproposed plan and shallprovide the Applicant or
Owner written notice of the time and place of the presentation.

F. The City Council shall authoize the City Attorney to prepare a contribution
agreement with the Owner only if;

1. Such proposed plan is in conformity with the contemplated improvements and
additions to the Sewer System orWater System; and

2. Such proposed plan, viewed in conjunction with other existing or proposed plans, will
not adversely affect the cash flow or liquidity of the Sewer System Capacity Fee
trust account or Water Systern Capacity Fee trust account, as applicable, in such a
way as to frustrate orinterfere with other planned or ongoing growth necessitated
capital improvements and additions to the Sewer System or Water System; and

3. Such proposed plan, viewed in conjunction with other existing or proposed plans, will
not create a detrimental imbalance between the treatment and transmission
capabilities oftheSewer System or Water System; and

4. The proposed plan is consistent with the public interest; and
5. The proposed time schedule for completion of the plan is consistent with the most

recently adopted five-year Capital Improvement Plan for the Sewer System or
Water System, as applicable.

G. The processing, review and audit fee shall be returned to the Applicant if either the City
Manager or the City Council determines the proposed plan is not acceptable. The

23



processing, review and audit fee shall becomenon-refundableonce the CityCouncil
authorizes the City Attorney to prepare a contribution agreement.

H. In the event the amount of developer contribution pursuant to an approved plan of
construction or donation of Capacity Fee Improvements exceeds the total amount of
Capacity Fee credits used on the benefiting Sewer System Capacity Development or
Water System Capacity Development, as applicable, identified in a contribution agreement,
thecontributionagreementmayprovide for the reimbursement of the excess or
remaining balance of such contribution credit; provided funds are available and
collected from future receipts by the City from Sewer System Capacity Fees or Water
System Capacity Fees, as applicable, collected during the fiscal year immediately
following the fifth anniversary of the date of substantial completion of the plan of
construction or the date of donation, or the fifth anniversary, exclusive of any moratoria,
from the date of recording the contribution agreement in the Official Records of the
Clerk for the Circuit Court oflevy County, whichever shall first occur. Should the source
of funds for reimbursement as described in this paragraph not be available within the time
frames described herein, the remaining balance of any Capacity Fee credits shall be
forfeited.

I. Any Applicant or Owner who submits a proposed plan pursuant to this Section and desires
an immediate connection to either the Sewer System or Water System shall pay prior to or at
the time the proposed plan is submitted the applicable Sewer System Capacity Fee
pursuant to Section 2.01 orWater System Capacity Fee pursuant to Section 3.01, as
applicable. Said payment shall be deemed paid under "Protest" and shall not be construed
as awaiver of any review rights. Any difference between the amount paid and the amount
due, as determined by the City Council, shall be refunded to the Applicant or Owner.

SECTION 4.05. T{EARINGS.

A. An Applicant or Owner who is required to pay a Sewer System Capacity Fee pursuant to
Section 2.0I or a Water System Capacity Fee pursuant to Section 3.01, shall have the
right to request a review hearing.

B. Such hearing shall be limited to the review of the following:
1. The application of the Sewer System Capacity Fee pursuant to Section 2.01.
2. The application of the Water System Capacity Fee pursuant to Section 3.01.
3. Denial of a developer contribution credit pursuant to Section 4.04.
4. Denial of an exemption pursuant to Section 4.01.

C. Except as otherwise provided in this Ordinance, such hearings shall be requested by the
Applicant or Owner within thirty (30) days, including Sundays and legal holidays, ofthe
date of first receipt of the following, whichever is applicable:

1. Receipt of notice from the City that a Capacity Fee is due.

2. The denial ofdeveloper contribution credit.
3. The denial of a Capacity Fee exemption.

Failure to request ahearing within the time provided shall be deerned awaiver ofsuch right.
D. The request for hearing shall be filed with the Office of the City Manager and shall contain

the following:
1. Thenameand address oftheApplicant and Owner;
2. The legal description of the property in question;
3. A brief description of the improvements on the property or the connection being

24



undertaken;
4. Ifpaid, the date the Sewer System Capacity Fee or Water System Capacity Fee, as

applicable, was paid; and,

5. A statement of the reasons why the Applicant or Owner is requesting the hearing.
E. Upon receipt of such request, the City Manager shall schedule a hearing before the City

Council at a regularly scheduled meeting or a special meeting called for the pu{pose
of conducting th9 hearing and shall provide the Applicant or Owner with written notice of
the time and place of the hearing. The hearing shall beheld within sixty (60) days of the
date of the request for hearing was filed.

F. Such hearing shall be before the City Council and shall be conducted in amanner
designed to obtain all information and evidence relevant to the request for thehearing.
Formal rules ofcivil procedure and evidence shall notbeapplicable; however, thehearing
shallbeconductedinafair and impartial manner with each party having an
opportunity to be heard and to present information and evidence.

G. Any Applicant or Owner who requests a hearing pursuant to this Section and desire an
immediate connection to either the Sewer System or the Water System shall pay prior to or at
the time the request for hearing is filed the Sewer System Capacity Fee pursuant to
Section 2.01 or Water System Capacity Fee pursuant to Section 3.01, as applicable. Said
payment shall be deemed paid under "Protest" and shall not be construed as awaiver of
any review rights.

SECTION 4.06. REVIEW REQUIREMENTS. This Ordinance and the accompanying rate
study shall be reviewed by the City Council at least every thirty (30) Months. Each review
shall consider new estimates of population, cost related to the acquisition of land, buildings, capital
plant and equipment necessitated by growth and adjustments to the assumptions, conclusions and
findings set forth in the study adopted by Section 1.04. The purpose of this review is to ensure that
the Sewer System Capacity Fees and Water System Capacity Fees do not exceed the reasonably
anticipated costs associated with the improvements necessary to offset the demand
generated by new construction or use of the Sewer System or Water System. In the event the
review of the Ordinance required bythis Section alters or changes the assumptions, conclusions and
findings oftherate study adopted by reference in Section 1.04, revises or changes the Sewer System
or Water System or alters or changes the amount of the Capacity Fees, the rate study adopted by
reference in Section 1.04 shall be amended and updated to reflect new and demonstrable
assumptions, conclusions and findings and Section 1.04 shall be amended to adopt byreference
such updated study.

SECTION 4.07. DECLARATION OF USION FROM ADMINISTRATIVE
PROCEDURES ACT. Nothing contained in this Ordinance shall be construed or interpreted to
include the City in any definition of Agency contained in Section 120.52, Florida Statutes, or to
otherwise subject the City to the application of the Administrative Procedure Act, Chapter 120,
Florida Statutes. This declaration ofintent and exclusion shall apply to all proceedings taken as a
result of or pursuant to this Ordinance including specifically, but not limited to, a determination of
entitlement to a Capacity Feeexemption pursuant to Section 4.01, theproposed planfor a developer
contribution credit pursuant to Section 4.04, or a review hearing under Section 4.05.

25



SECTION 4.08. SEVERABILITY. If any clause, section orprovision of this Ordinance shall be
declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason or cause, the remaining portion of said
Ordinance shall be in fulI force and effect and be valid as ifsuch invalid portion thereof had not been
incorporated herein. In the event it is held or construed by any court of competent jurisdiction that
the City does not possess the power or authority to impose the Sewer System Capacity Fees or Water
System Capacity Fees within any service area) or such imposition of the Capacity Fees is declared
invalid or unconstitutional for any purpose, such declaration of unconstitutionality or invalidity shall
not affect the validity or constitutionality of the imposition of the Sewer System Capacity Fees or
Water System Capacity Fees in all other service areas.

SECTION 4.09. N EFFECTIVE DATE. Upon adoption of this ordinance, the City
Clerk shall promptly publish notice thereof. This Ordinance shall take effect 90 days after the
publication of said notice.

DULY PASSED ON FIRST READING this _ day of 2022.

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this _ day of
2022.

Attest: CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
WILLISTON, FLORIDA:

City Clerk, Laticia Wright City Council President, Debra Jones

APPROVED AND WAITING PERIOD
WAIVED:

Mayor, Charles Goodman

Approved as to form and legality:

S. Scott Walker, City Attomey
Kiersten N. Ballou, City Attorney

26



BAARD of
DIRECTORS

PATRICIA CICHON

Monticello
President

SRUCE MONN$AN
Nlceville

Vice Prcsldent

WILLIAM G, GRUBES

Tollohossee
Secretory/Treosurer

ROSERf MUNRO
Atlondo
Notional DEector

TOM TACKSON

Fott Myers

SCAN KELLY

Atlontic gedch

SONA'IF PRlN6I.E

Rotondo west

EXECUTIVE

DIRECTOR

GARY WILLIAMS
Tollohossee

EMAIL

frwo@frwa.net

WEBSITE

www,frwa.net

RE

FLORIDA RURAL WATER ASSOCIATION
2970 Wellington Circle . Tallahassee, Ft 32309-7813

(8s0) 658-2746

October 2L,2022

Mr. Terry Bovaird

lnterim City Manager
City of Williston
50 NW Main Street
Williston, FL 32596
Phone: (352) 528-3050
Email: citv.manaeer@willjstonfl.ors, donald,barber@willistonfl.org

Water and Wastewater Capacity Fee Study
City of Williston, PWS: 6382055, Fac. No. F1A012512

Dear Mr. Bovaird

Florida Rural Water Association is pleased to provide this Capacity Fee Study and
recommendations to the City of Williston as a membership benefit. FRWA is dedicated
to assisting water and wastewater systems provide Floridians with an ample affordable
supply of high quality water and wastewater services, while protecting natural systems,

You should be congratulated for your water and wastewater system and operations
staff. With unfunded mandates continuing to roll down from state and federal
governments along with the aging of pipes, pumps and plants, you have risen to the
challenge and continue to operate the system providing safe drinking water and
consistent sewer services. To make a very difficult job, more difficult, revenues have
lagged behind expenses. utility operators have done more with less each year, as
measured in real dollars. They have shouldered the responsibility of running the system
in a responsible manner and in compliance with state rules and regulations.

Capacity Fees. Capacity Fees (Connection Charges) are one-time charges assessed to
the new development or connections to reimburse utility systems for current and
proposed infrastructure required to supply water, collect, treat, and dispose of
wastewater. Capacity Fees are proportional to the capacity set aside for the new
cllstomer, development, or connection. ln some systems these charges are sometimes
called Capacity Fees while others may be called Benefit Assessments, User Fees,

Contributions ln Aid of Construction {CIAC) or Connection Charges. 1

The other goals and objectives considered in the study include the following:

,/ Proposed Capacity Fees should be equitable among customer classes;

,/ Proposed Capacity Fees should minimize "shock" to customers if possible;

,/ Proposed Capacity Fees should provide for growth paying for growth; and

'/ Proposed Capacity Fees should provide for capital needs,

t AWWA, Monuo! M7 - Principles olWatet Rates, Fees ond Chorges,sth Edition, American Water Works Association,
Denver CO., 2072, pp.181-187

27



Executive Summary.
Findings & Recommendations.

The City of Williston has two options for setting Capacity Fees:

Option A - Use the Remaining Useful Life Basis to capture the existing cost of running the City of
Williston Water and Wastewater Utility.

- Option B - Use the Replacement Value Basis to capture the true and sustainable cost of running the City
of Williston Water and Wastewater Utilitv.

Remaining Useful tife (RUtl is the length of time the utility infrastructure, piping, pumps, tanks,
and equipment is likely to be functional before it requires replacement, A piece of equipment may
last longer than its estimated useful life, but it will need more and more maintenance as it reaches
that point. lt may become obsolete or require major repairs. An especially old asset, while
technically functional, may be more of a liability than a benefit if it requires frequent repair work.

The Remaining Useful Life basis for computing Capacity Fees provides a value to existing utility
assets based on their current condition, estimated based on the years it is expected to continue to
function. This basis does not provide for the cost of replacing the pipe or equipment when it
reaches the end of its useful life, the cost that the utility will have to bear to serve the development
being added to the utility.

As an exarnple of the implication of Remaining Use Life Basis, large sections of the Williston
wastewater collection system were built in the 1940s and 1950s, well past the Florida public Service
Commission designation of useful life as 40 years for gravity sewers and 27 years for manholes.
These pipes and manholes have almost no value when computing Capacity Fees based on
Remaining Useful Life Basis. For this portion of the Capacity Fee, the new user will have almost no
Capacity Fee to pay. However, the true, sustainable value to the utility is the replacement cost for
the pipes and manholes because this is the cost the utility will have to bear to keep wastewater
collection available for new users as they are added to the system.

Replacement Value is the cost to the utility to install new infrastructure, piping, pumps, tanks, and
equipment in today's dollars. The Replacement Value recognizes the expense the utility must incur
to purchase new piping and equipment as the existing piping and equipment have become
unusable due to age and wear. This is the cost the existing users have been incurring for all the
previous years in keeping sufficient and usable piping and equipment available for the users now
corning onto the system. With Capacity Fees based on Replacement Value, the new users are
paying for the true, sustainable value of the capacity that the utility has purchased and kept
available for them until now to use.

FRWA Capacity Fee Studv City of Williston Page 2

28



1 Water Capacity Fee Finding.

The City currently charges a Water Connection Fee that must be paid prior to being provided water service
to the property of $20 plus $SfO for a%-inch meter or L25yo over the actual cost of the meter for larger
meters. These Connection Fees pay for the cost of equipment, installation, and site visits for the new
service. The Capacity Fee would be a separate charge from the Water Connection Fee, paying a pro rata
share of the responsibly anticipated costs of capital expansion of the water utilities for the addition of new
service.

For the Water Capacity Fee, the City has the option of using the evaluated Fee of $100 per ERC using the
Remaining Useful Life Basis -or- $1,030 per ERC using the Replacement Value Basis to capture the true and
sustainable cost of running its Water Utility. FRWA recommends using the Replacement Value.

Wastewater Capacity Fee Findings.

The City currently charges a Wastewater Connection Fee that must be paid prior to being provided
wastewater service to the property. The Fee is $600 for 50 feet of sewer pipe installed by the City plus an
additional charge of $3.50 for each additional foot above the said 50 feet. These Connection Fees pay for
the cost of equipment, installation, and site visits for the new service, The Capacity Fee would be a separate
charge from the Wastewater Connection Fee, paying a pro rata share of the responsibly anticipated costs
of capital expansion of the wastewater utilities for the addition of new service.

For the Wastewater Capacity Fee, the City has the option of using the evaluated Fee of $550 per ERC using
the Remaining Useful Life Basis -or- $5,470 per ERC using the Replacement Value Basis to capture the true
and sustainable cost of running its Water Utility. FRWA recommends using the Replacement Value.

Water & Wastewater Capacity Fee Findings.

ln combination both the Water and Wastewater Capacity Fees are:

Equivalent Residential Water & Wastewater Connection (ERC) Calculation Comparison

2

3

Category
Current

Connection Fees

Option A
Remaining Useful

life Value

Option B

Replacement Value

S0oo for 5o foot
of sewer pipe

installed by the
City plus $3.50

per foot for
additional feet

above 50

I

I

:

$loolERC S1,o3o/ ERC

, for larger meters

Wastewater $sso/ ERc $s,qzol enc

Water

I $zo plus $stO for
) %-inch meter or

t25% above
actual meter cost

Totals $t,tgo $6so / ERc $e,soo/ enc

FRWA Capacity Fee Study City of Williston Page 3

29



4. Water and Wastewater Capacity Fee Recommendations.

FRWA recommends that the City use the evaluated fees to capture the true and sustainable cost of running
its Water and Wastewater Utility and to maintain and protect the City's vital infrastructure. We recommend
and can assist with establishing a 5 and 1O-year Capital lmprovement Program to keep the City's utility
financially sound.

5. Other Capacity Fee Recommendations

I Fees for turn-ons, turn-offs, and late fees might need to be increased for inflation. Fees should be
reviewed / updated at least annually by staff based on actual time and material costs for meters, fittings,
boxes, equipment costs, fuel costs, and salaries

' The UtilitY's policies on payments, late charge fees, illegal turn on penalty, or returned check penalty
should also be reviewed / updated at least annually by staff.

r FRWA recommends implementing annual adjustments in accordance with the Florida Public Service
Commission. The Florida Public Service Commission current Price lndex is found at
http:/lwww.psc.state.fl.us/utilities/waterwastewater/, click on "Price lndex and pass Through
Application for Water and Wastewater Utilities".

Year
Commission Approved

lndex
Year

Commission Approved
lndex

2011 t.I80/o

2012 2.4L%

7 6lYo

rAt%

2013

2At4

201s

2075

t.57%

1.29%

It is recommended that you revisit this Capacity Fee study every 3 to 5 years or as needed. lndicators
of need include changes to revenue or CIP expense predictions, current financial position and, other
indicators during the annual budget approval process.

2077

2018

1.57%
.. ,.t

2AL9

7.76%

2.36%

1.79%2024

2021

2022

t.t7%

4.53%

FRWA Capacity Fee Study City of Williston Page 4

30



CapaciW Fee Evaluation
Capacity Fee Study Standards.

FRWA uses contemporary industry standards for recommending and establishing utility Capacity Fees, these
include: American Water Works Association (AWWA) Manuals of Practice, Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP), Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), and Florida Public Service Commission
guidelines,

Capacity Fee Calculations.

Capacity Fee Calculations are performed in accordance with the American Water Works Association Manua! Ml -

Principles of Water Rates, Fees and Charges guidelines for calculating and allocating Capacity Fees to new
customers.2 FRWA uses a rational and conservative approach when performingthese evaluations. This approach
is transparent, defendable, and complies with statute and case law. Since there is a rational nexus of allocating
Capacity Fees to customer groups it also follows the intent of the Florida Statutes that set the basis for rates and
capacity Fees by counties and municipalities, such fees shall be just and equitable, 3

Capacity Fees evaluated set using the following criteria:

' The water / wastewater system has the legal authority to charge Capacity Fees.

r Costs are allocated to specific customer classes based on use of the water / wastewater system
infrastructure.

r New customers add incremental capital costs to the utility and the fees are set to recapture there
impacts to the system.

' The evaluation of system data is sufficient to reasonably estimate the value of water f wastewater
system infrastructure and support charges to new customers. The evaluation includes water /
wastewater consumption, historical flow trends, growth, and inventories of water lines, wells,
treatment, collection, manholes, lift stations, and etc.

r Justification of capital costs are clearly provided in the calculation of fees.

' Affordability is taken into consideration for all classes of customers and particularly to economically
disadvantaged customers.

t The capital costs / fee reguirements for new customers are consistent, predictable, and uniform.

r Each customer class equitably pays its own way. No undue burden is placed on one class over another
customer class.

Cost Savings and Benefits.

Capacity Fees provide a revenue source for replacement and upgrade of existing infrastructure as new customers
areaddedtothesystem. Thisrevenueisintendedtobeusedforfundingmajorexpansionsaswell asminimizing
debt or reducing the need for future debt. Capacity Fees also provide for the utility to maintain an appropriate
level of retained earnings and cash reserves to meet capital needs. Utilities that are committed to regular renewal
and replacement of aging infrastructure regularly see cost savings in their O&M budget, avoid unnecessary costly
emergency repairs and minimize community health and safety concerns due to critical water and wastewater
equipment failures.

2AWWA, ManualMT-PrinciplesafWatetRates,FeesandChorge,s,6thEditlon,AmericanWaterWorksAssociation,DenverCO.,2012,pp.
187-r87
3 See Florida Statutes chapter 153 for County Water & Sewer Systems and Chapter 180 - Municipal public Works.

FRWA Capacity Fee Study City of Williston Page 5

31



Accuracy of Revenue Predictions.

We have performed our analyses using the data and information obtained; we have relied upon such information
to be accurate. Projected Capacity Fee revenue precision is limited by the accuracy of the financial information
provided - good information "in" equals good inforrnation "oLlt", and vice yersa, Should you find that these
recommended Capacity Fees are not in-line with your needs, please let us know AS,AP. We will work with you to
carefully review and update financial records, revisit our calculations, valuation parameters, assumptions, etc. We
are always happy to return, revisit your Capacity Fees, and adjust the analyses as necessary, please call me
anVtlme.

The original mission for creation and ownership public water and wastewater utilities include many compelling
objectives: (1) health and safety of citizens; (2) protect most vulnerable residents (aged, young, poor health,
economically disadvantaged, etc.); (3) ability to return the profit ordinarily collected by a private entity to the
customer in the form of lower Capacity Fees; (4) provide fire protection; (5)tool to expand the tax base; (6) ability
to shape, facilitate or control growth; and {7} promotes home rule and self-determination.

Growth should pay for Growth.

New development causes the need for expansion and should therefore pay its fair share for the costs incurred.
These connections are plant expansions and water / sewer line extensions -- requiring significant cost. Existing
ratepayers have supported and maintained the existing facilities, and so new customers should support any new,
additional or expanded facilities plus pipelines.

Some officials and new customers have argued incorrectly that the utility should allow new customers on the
system without charge or at original plant costs (not adjusted for inflation), lt's not fair to existing ratepayers and
it is not a prudent utility practice. Nor would it be good business practice. Public officials may be tempted at
times to trim budgets; lower utility rates below operational costs; and keep Capacity Fees below actual capital
investment needs - but this seriously reduces utilities' ability to perform its central rnission, shortchanges
ratepayers by delaying costs, sets up unrealistic expectations, and undermines the future vitality of the
community.

Dealing with Growth & Infrastructure Decay.

Florida law requires communities to maintain adequate levels of service for publicfacilities and to anticipate and
prepare for growth.a ln addition to keeping pace with growth, water and wastewater utilities must maintain the
infrastructure in good operating condition. This requires adequate funding and continual repair and replacement
(R&R) just to keep up with normal usage and aging, Proper management, training and hiring practices are also
essential for efficient utility operation. s

As new customers come online more and more of the treatment capacity is used up until the plant is at capacity
and must be expanded. Further, the Florida Department of Environmental Protection requires that when a water
plantreachesT5%ofcapacitythatplanningforexpansionmuststart(Rule52-555.348F.A.C.). Additionally,FDEP
Rule 62-555.350 F.A.C. requires that suppliers of water operate and maintain their public water systems so as to
comply with applicable standards, in good conditlon, and under the plant's permitted operating capacity.
Similarly, for wastewater treatment plants, FAC 62-600.405 requires timely planning, design, and construction of
needed wastewater treatment facility expansion, This requirement includes a statement signed and sealed by a

professional engineerthat planning and preliminary design of the necessary expansion has been initiated if the
Capacity Analysis Report documents that the permitted capacity of the facility will be exceeded within the next
five years.

4 Florida's Growth Management Act Chapter 153, Part ll, Florida Statutes; the Water Protection and Sustainability Program Chapter 373,
Florida Statutes; and Section 373.0361{7)(b}, Florida Statutes - requiring local government will implement to meet existing and future
development need,

FRWA Capacity Fee Study City of Williston Page 6

32



Existing Water System Demand

Williston Water Demand History per MORS

6,000,000 gpd

5,000,000 gpd

4,000,000 gpd

3,000,000 gpd

2,000,000 gpd

1,000,000 gpd

0 spd
Jan-17 Jan-18 Jan-19 Jan-20 )an-2L Jan-22

Figure 1 - Historic Water Demands

(MGD denotes Millions of Gallons per Day)

The amount of water used by the customers on the system is provided below, see Figure 1 for flow records

Population Served...........
(based on residential service connections and City of Williston census data household size of 2,7 /household)

Equivalent Residential Connections (ERC)

.....,.........,..3,513

Average Daily Demand (ADDIfor past 24 months.....,,,.,....,... ..........0.s54 MGD {392 gpm)

Maximum Daily Demand (MDD) per avg MOR ratio 0.936 MGD {550 epm)

Maximum Daily Demand (MDD)for past 24 months ........,.I.647 MGD (1,144 gpm)

Total Permitted Plant Capacity (MDD)..,...,..,. .5.794 MGD (4,024 gpm)

Percentage of total water treatment plant capacity used ,,',''..'.'',.',',.28%

Water used per Eguivalent Residential Connection (MDD I ERC)........,.."., ,.,252 gpd

5,794,OOO gpd Total Permitted Capacity (MDD)

I - - - MonthlV Average o"rrnJ

ry Max. Day Demand

Maximum Day Demand = L,647,000 GPD for past 24 months

\

-2-\tt\ol
a--\ -t/-\

!e-l\-rl- atil-p -t-tl\- 7 -a -,\,
Average Daily Demald 1564,400 GPD for past

FRWA CapacltV Fee Study City of Williston Page 7

33



The City has four water treatment plants with raw water provided to each water treatment plant from a
groundwater well with a vertical turbine pump. The well diameters range from 4-inch for Water Treatment plant
#3 to lz-inch for Water Treatment Plants #1, #2 and #4, The oldest well, at WTp #1, was installed in 1g25 and the
newest well, at WTP #3, was installed in 2008, At each water treatment plant the water is disinfected by hypo-
chlorination and a minimum 0.2 parts per million minimum chlorine residual is maintained throughout the
distribution system to ensure water quality. The City also has an elevated storage tank, a concrete ground storage
tank and 3 hydropneumatic tanks to provide for storage and pressure. For the plants as a whole, the maximum
day water treatment demand has stayed well below the total capacity of all four plants for the past 24 months,
utilizing only 28% of the totalplant capacity.

Existing Wastewater System Demand.

Williston Wastewater Flow History per DMRs

0,450 MGD

0.400 MGD

0.350 MGD

0.300 MGD

0,250 MGD

0.200 MGD

0.150 MGD

0.100 MGD

Jan-17 Jan-1 8 Jan-'19 Jan-20 Jan-21 Jan-22

Figure 2 ' Historic Wastewater Flows

Gurrent Permitted WWTF Gapacity = 0.450 MGD

- = . dvslsge Daily Flow

- 

wwTF Permitted capacity

- 

Annual Average Daily Flow (AADF)

- 

Linear (Average Daily Flow)

i

Average Daily Flow * o.z+O

Annual Average Daily Flow = 0.235
I

tI

FRWA Capacity Fee Study City of Williston Page 8

34



The amount of wastewater used by the customers on the system is provided below, see Figure 2 for flow records

(based on residential service connections and City of Williston census data household size of 2.741household)

Equivalent Residential Connections.

Monthly Average Daily Flow per DMRs ifor past 24 months| ..0.24A MGD {53 gpm)

Annual Average Daily Flow per DMRs (past 24 months) .0,235 MGD (s1gpm)

Permitted Plant Capacity (AADF).,.... ................ 0.4s0 MGD (111 gpm)

Percentage of wastewater treatment plant used..,. ',,,.,.52%

The City has an extended aeration activated sludge wastewater treatment plant with a mechanical bar screen, an
oval oxidation ditch, two secondary clarifiers, a dual-basin chlorine contact chamber and an aerobic digester. The
treated effluent is discharged to storage ponds and pumped to a 59-acre sprayfield 3 miles south of the WWTp
for reuse by land application. Annual average flows through the WWTP have remained well below the permitted
capacity of 0.450 MGD.

Utilities are Capital lntensive.

The water supply and wastewater treatment industry are very capital intensive because almost every component
of these systems requires fixed capital investments in long-term infrastructure. Water facilities include water
supply, treatment, storage, distribution, and disposal of treatment residuals. Wastewater facilities include sewage
collection, pumping (liftstationsi, transmission, treatment, disposal of treated effluent, and disposal of sludge,

Funding Utilities.

Utilities typically operate for many years without fully recovering the initiat construction costs. Loans and grants
supported by rates are used to finance capilal facilities. ln addition to paying the debt obligation for existing
facilities, rates support operation, maintenance, salaries, chemicals, power, vehicles, equipment, repair and
replacement. Rates frequently cannot be structured to accommodate new or expanded facilit'es for new
customers. 5o Capacity Fees are used to assess new customers for capital construction costs and allow new
customers to "buy-in" to the system. Capacity Fees bridge the funding gap the needed to build the new facilities
to provide service to new residents and businesses. Capacity Fees cannot be used for operation, maintenance,
repair, replacement, or normal utility administrative costs. Capacity Fees should be held in a separate account
from water/wastewater revenue and general funds.

It is just too easy to neglect existing facilities and run them into the ground instead of being proactive in their
repair and replacement. Problems with this approach are:

1. Cost for replacement is several times greater than for repair and maintenance;

2. Real cost of utility operation is hidden from the ratepayer and governing board;

3. Assets are not properly valued and preserved;

4. lmproper stewardship of public assets;

5. Grants never cover all replacement costs; and

6. Diversion of publlc funds from more worthy uses.

FRWA Capacity Fees Rules-of-Thu mb.

Twenty years ago conventional lime softening plants would cost about 54 to 56 per gallon to construct, today you
would expect to spend approximately $0 to $tS per gallon to construct. Actual costs vary greatly by community,

FRWA Capacitv Fee Study CitV of Williston Page 9

35



by region, and between design consultants. Plus any estimate must include unique site-specific needs like new
raw water wells, piping, land, instrumentation & controls, emergency power generation, or deep wells.

Costs of New Wastewater Treatment Capacity.

Establishing the cost for new wastewater treatment capacity is just as difficult for wastewater treatment plants.
Rules-of-thumb to help you estimate Capacity Fees for wastewater plants are provided, but do not include
collection systems, lift stations, force mains, land acquisition, offices, SCADA, controls, emergency power
generation, sprayfields, percolations ponds, or deep wells for disposal.

Twenty years .go an extended aeration secondary treatment plant would cost about 5f to $S per gallon to
construct, today you would expect to spend approximately S20 to $25 per gallon to construct. Actual costs vary
greatly by regulated treatment requirements, by community, by region, and between design consultants. Recent
construction estimates for advanced treatment wastewater plant and effluent reuse systems required by
regulatory consent order for a Florida city with a population slightly less than Willlston have been as much as
$ulgallon.

scheduling Presentation of capacity Fees study Findings and Recommendations.

We are happy to come to your next utility commission meeting to explain our analysis and report. We anticipate
that you will have questions to discuss and options to consider, My presentation is between 20 to 30-minutes in
length, which would be followed by commission discussion. This activity typically takes about 50 to 90-minutes
and can be held during a special workshop or a normal commission meeting, This is an informative meeting and
decisions about Capacity Fees are usually taken at subsequent meetings. lt is important that all commission
members be in attendance since the adoption of Capacity Fees increases can produce public comment.

We have enjoyed serving you and wish your water and wastewater system the best. Please feel free to contact
me if you have any further questions.

ryfi#
5incerely,

Katherine Van Zant, P.E

Saltus Engineering, lnc,

-.s$i:#k
!*i * j*=

.tlis 
itcnr fic becu digihlly iiplcd ond

$olod by K{ilririne vrn 26[( IrF,. on
l0:21/2422.

I'rinted copicaofthis doqunsot 0a not
conridored signcd rnd sgalcd {trd thc
signol!rc n{rsl he verilied o[ aty
slcclronig copica

Digitally signed by
Katherine Van Zant
Date: 2022.1 0.21 1 2:27 :48
-04'00'

Katherine
Van Zant

FRWA Capacity Fee Studv City of Williston Page 10

36



WatGt & WastGwatel
lm[aot ]ee Re[ott

GitU ol lllilll$tonFRWA Member:

Address:

Telephone:

Conlact:

E-mall:

Countyl

Populatlon:

Connecllons:

PWS:

Capacity:

ADD:

MDD:

Verslon:

Water:

50 NW Main St
Williston, FL 32696

(352) s28-3050

Terry Bovaird, lnterim City Manager
city.m anager@willistonfl.org

Levy
2,718

1,586

6382055
5.794 MGD

0,564 MGD

0,936 MGD

October 2L,2022
FINAL

wastewateri 1 ,1 86

FaciritvrD: FLAO12612
capaclty: 0.450 MGD

AADF 0,235 MGD

MADF 0.240 MGD

preparedby: Katherine Van Zant, P.E, / Saltus Engineering, lnc. ..st:i::lffi
Florida Rural Water Associatir

2970 Wellington Circle

Tallahassee, Florida 32309-6885
Phoner 850-658-2746

This itonr hos bosn digit{lly $ignod nlld
sonled by Kn&orine VoI Znnl lE, on
l0!2y2022.

Itirilcd oogios ofthis docun€nl are not
considorcd signod nnd rcnletl tnd the
signRturc jnus{ bo vorilied oI any
clcolronic @pic$

* * !*

Katherine Van Zant, P.E.

FL PE# 43964

Katherine Van
Zant

Digitally signed by Katherine
Van Zant
Date: 2022.1 0.21 1 2t30:26
-04'00'

Page '11

37



Florida Rural Water Association
2970 Welllngton Circle, Tallahassee, Florida 32309

Member: (l[y of Wllllston
contact: Terry Eovaird, lnterlm City Manager
addrerr livllligtsn, FL 32696

Water lmpact Fee Recommendations

Water lmpact Fee Calculation

oatc: lt-Qq[-ll
Vereton: Pl[\l{L

conn: trl$S
pws: 6382055

Wells

Remaining Useful Life

watef Treatment water storage
Tanks

Dlstrlbution

System
Per Gallon

$o.at I salCost per gal = S4s7,ooo S33o,4oo Ss3s,ooo 51,046,726
5,794,000 cpd

Where:

Total Treatment Capacity =
Max Day Demand from MORs =
Percentage of WTP used =

5,794,000 gpd

935,664 gpd based on average MDF/ADF
L6.L%

Equivalent Residential Water Connection (ERC) Calculation

Where: Remaining Useful

Llfe Basis
Svstem Value {S} = 52,369,126
Max Dally Demand for past 24 mo.s = 935,664 gpd
ERCS = 3,7f4
Max Daily Demand / Connection = 252 gpd/ERC

/ e^l

Replacement

Value Sasis

573,697,2s7
935,664 gpd

3,7L4

252 gpdlERC

&s ERC calculdlion wukthool

ERC Costs = Svstem Value x MDD / ERC

Total Treatment Capacity gpd

ERc costs = s2,369,12q_ 252 gpd/ERc 9103.01 / ERc Remaining useful Life Basis
5,794,000 gpd

Use

ERC Costs = 523,691,257 2S2cpdlERC 51,030.12 / ERC Replacement Value Basis

5,794,000 gpd

use [S]-mo7Encll

Remaining Equivalent Residential Water Connections Available
Where;

Max Daily Demand / ERC = 252 gpd/ERC 3,714 : ERCs

Total Treatment Capacity = 5,794,000 gpd

MaxDaVDemand = 935,6648pd 4,858,336gpd "CapacityRemaining
Percentage of WTP used = 16.t%

FDEP requires planning for expansion at 75% capacity commence at 85%.

Nols: Usaful lile value' baiod on Flilide Puttlh Senl@ ComDlsslon Ahrsgs S ewlro LIle Gulddltnes, F A C 2S-J0 ,40

Replacement

Value
Remaining Useful Life

$330,400'
$53s,ooo

23%

3%

I2Yo

726

Treatment
Storage Tanks

s6,804,000

$4,410,000

2,369,126 70% s23.691.2S7

100 / FRC

285 =

Page 12

38



Florida Rural Water Association
2970 Welllntton Circle, Tallahassee, Florida 32309

rvlember: Clty of Wllliston
contad: Terry Bovaird, lnterim City Mahager
Address: Willistoh, FL 32696

Wastewater lmpact Fee Recommendations

Wastewater lmpact Fee Calculation
Remainlng Useful Life

Dater 21-Oct-22
Verston: pl[\lf

conn: lrl$f
eMs: FIA012612

WWP

Sgoo,ooo

lift Statlons

Ssos,ooo

Force Main

s251,836

Gravlty Sewers &
Manholes

Per Gallon

96.20 / eal$1. t

Where:

Total Treatment Capacity :
AADF from DMRS -
Percentage of WWTF used '

Cost per gal =

ERC Costs =

0.450 MGD

0,450 MGD

0.235 MGO lor past 24 months

52.2%

$6.20 / 8al

Equivalent Residential Water Connection {ERC) Calculation
Remalning

Where: Useful life
Basis

System Value ($) = $2,790,s36
AADF from DMRs = 0.235 MGD
ERCs = 2,663
Average Dally Demand / Connection = 88 gpd/ERC

ERC Costs = Svstem Value l$) x ERC

Total Treatment Capacity gpd

S2.790.s38

ERC Costs =

562 oo/gal

Replacement

Value Basis

s27,898,356
0.23s MGO

2,663

88 gpd/ERc

= €RCs

S2o.oo/ eal

see ERC cdlculation worksheet

88 sod/ERC 5546.79 / ERC Remaining Useful Life Basis

450,000 gpd

Use

527,898,3s6 88 epd/ERc 55,465.94 / ERC Replacement Value Basis

450,000 epd

Use ll $s-470 / ERc ll

Remaining Equivalent Residential Wastewater Connections Available
Where:

Monthly ADF / ERC = 88 Cpd/ERC 2,663
Total Treatment Capacity = 0.450 MGD
Monthly ADF from DMR5 0.235 MGD 0.215 MGD = Capacity Remaining
Percentage of WWTF used = 52.2%

Note: Useful lile value based on Floilda Publlc servlce Commlsslon Averoge Servlce Llfe Guidelines, F,A.c. 2s-20.14e

Category Remalning Useful ilfe Replacement

Value
WWTP

Lift Statlons
Force Main
GravltV Sewers & Manholes

LO%

ro%
LOo/o

70%

59oo,ooo

Ssos,ooo

s2s1,836
51,134,0o0

59,000,000

Ss,oso,ooo
S2,518,3s6

Sr1.33o.ooo
Totals 52,790,836 70% s27.898.:

I ERC

Page 13

39



Florida Rural Water Association
2970 Wellington Circle, Tallahassee, Florida 32309

Member: f,ily of Williston
contact: Terry Bovaird, lnterim City Manager
nddress: ll/llll5fon, F[ 32695

oate: 21-Oct-22
version; FINAL

conn: tr$$$
pws: 6382055

wellfield & source water Repracement Varue at today's cost: s 670,000

77

Projected Replacement Value at today's cost:

Note: Uselul lile value bosed on Florida Public Service Commission Average Service Life Guideltnes,
F.A.C, 25-30.14A, Class C Utility (27-years)

s670,000

s670,000

s670,000

Sz,olo,ooo

EstlmatedCasing Dia CapacityWell Year Drilled Approx.
lValue

WTP 1

WTP 2

WTP 3

WTP4

1925

1976

2008

1999

12-in

L2-in

4-in
t2-in

2,571

2,571
1,929

800

t0/"
10%

48%

15o/o

$ oz,ooo

s 67,000

S :zg,ooo

7,871Epm 27-yrs $ 457,000

s 2,010,000

Page 14

40



Florida Rural Water Association
2970 Wellhgton Circle, Tallahassee, tlorida 32309

Membsi Clty of Wllliston
conrrcr: Terry govalrd, lnterim Clty Managel
Addre$: Williston, FL 32C96

Estlmated Construction Costs vs. Plant Size & Type

Water Treatment Plant Size (MGD)
FDEP Permitted Category pet Rule 62-699.310[2)le), F.A.C.

FDEP Penitted Stdlflng Ctossificotton pe( Rute 62-699.J10(Z)(e), F,A.C,

Construclion Yoar WTP #1 (0.660 McD MDF Capacity)

WrP #2 (1,110 MGD MDF Capacity)

\ nP ffi (1,730 MGD MDF Capacity)

WrP #4 (2,304 MGD MDF Capacity)

Water Plant Category

Category ll - Reverse Osmosis / Nanofiltration
Deep Well lnjection for Brine Disposal

Category I - Lime Softening / Chemical Caogulation
Category lV - Prlmary Treatment / Aeration, Stabilization, Disinfection
Category V - Disinfection Only

oate: 21-Oct-22
verslon: flflll

conn: !r$$$
rws: $!lSlQ$l

5,794 MGD from FDEP MOR reports
V
c

1 925

1976

2008

1 999

No

No

No
No

Yes

5o,oo

So.oo

So.oo

5o,oo

$2.28

Water Plant Corstructlon Costs (g per gallonI
Total Water Plant C.onstruction Costs Estlmate

Total Water Plant Constructlon Costs Estimate less Wells and Storage
Useful Value less Wells and Storage

Estimated Construction Costs vs. Plant Size & Type

..rO-Cal€gdtv ll - Reverse Nanotlltration
<Ecategoiy | - time Softening / Chemical Coagulaflon
{-Categorv lV - P.lma.y T.eatment /Aeraflon, Stnbtltration, Dtsinfecilon

Dlslnfectlon

S2,28

$13,224,000

S6,8o4,oqr

$330,400

, Replacement Cost
Replacement Cost

Useful Value

S24

9zz

e 920
o

F stt
oB
ro s16

I Srq
c
o€ 5rz
!

E 510o
I

F58
d
gs6
o
3

5q

Sz

So

430 5 6

lnstalled Water Treatment Plant Capacity {MGD}

Note:UseJullilevoluebosedonFlorldoPublicsetvlcecommissionAverdgeservtceLile Guidelines(27yeors),F.A.c.25-JO,l4O,clossc
Utiilty

& Cost

-T"r:

Page l 5

41



Florida Rural Water Association
2970 Wellington Circle, Tallahassee, Florida 32309

uember; (ify 6f !![lJi5l911
coniacti Terry Bovaird, lnterim City Manager
Addres: tflillisfsn, FL 32695

oater 21-Oct-22
verion: flJ\|[l

conn: lr$$S
Pws: 6382055

Distribution System Piping - lnventory, Condition & Current Value
Neglect lines less thon 4'inches lrom volue of wdtet distribution system

Volue at cost Inch-diometer

Replacement Value at today's

NOfES:

7, Apptoximote water motn oge bosed on interulews with Utilities stolf ond mdteilols used,

2' Useful life volue bosed on Florldo Public Servlce Commission Averoge Se'!ice Lile 6uidelines, F.A.C. 25-30.140 (40 yts pvc ptpe, js yrs AC/Ct/Dl pipe)

S1,296,3s2

56,321,898

S2,312,00o

$762,195

S1,069,r64

$1o,467,257

58,s0

Pipe Dia

{inches)

tength

{feetl

ten4h
(miles)

Approxlmate
Average Age

Approx.

Useful
Value

Value
($ per ft)

Pipe Material Estimated
(st

4-in

6-ln
8-in

10-ln

12-in

PVC, AC, CI

PVC, AC, CI

PVC, AC, CI

PVC

PVC

3&128-ft
123,998-ft
34,000-ft
8,967-ft

7.22mi
23.48 mi
6.44mi
1.70 mi

1.99 mi

37 years

37 years

37 years

37 years

t0%

L0%

LO%

r0%

ss1.00 ft
958.00 /ft
s8s.oo /ft

$231,200
576,220

33.61 mit 726

Weighted Average

99

Page 16

42



Florida Rural Water Association
2970 Wellington Clrcle, Tallahassee, Flortda 32309

Mamb€r: Clty of Wllllston
contact: Terry EOvalrd, lnterlm Clty Manager
Addres3: Wllliston, Ft 32695

Finished Water Storage Tanks
Steel Elevat€d Storage Tanks have an estimated 33-years useful ltfe
Concrete Ground Storage Tanks have an estimated 37-years useful life
Steel 6round Storage Tanks have an estlmat€d 33-years useful llfe

Tanks have an estimated useful life

oate: 21-Oct-22
Vercton: FINAL

conn: lr$$f,
Pws: 5382055

$6.oolBDl

t.:91s"1
56.00/gal

WTP 1

WTP 2

WTP 3

WTP4.H1

WTP4.H2

Steel 60.000
500.000

5r60,000

9l,75o,ooo

5180,otr

s50,000

$6o,ooo

1925

I976
30.000

7A%

to%
53%

23%

z3%

Hydropneumatlc Tank
Hydropneumatlc Tank
Hydropneumatic Tank

2008
1999 Steel 10,000

14.410,{Xx'

Replacemcnt Value at today,s

Note: Uselul llfe volue bosed on Floridd Public Servlce Cotnmission Avetzge Service Lile 6uidellnes, F.A.C. 2S-J0,14O

Name / Location Year lnstalled Type & Matertal Capaclty lgal|Tank Approx. Useful Estlmated

610,000 gal

Page 17

43



6,000,000 gpd

5,000,000 gpd

4,00O000 epd

3,000,000 Bpd

2,000,000 gpd

1,00O000 gpd

o cpd

Williston Water Demand History per MORs

Jan-19 lan-20 Jan-21

Pegs 18

jan-17 Jen-18 Jan-22

,--l-tt--

51794000gpd Total Capaclty (MDDI

Maximum Day Demand : 1,647,0fi1 GPD for psst 24 monthi

--?-t-a-r-+- --l----ri

Avhra6e Dally Demand a 564,4(Xl6PD for

- - -MonthlyAwrESc O€mand

- 

Max. Day Demand

-Tolrl 

WTP p€rmltt€d Capaclly (MOOI

44



Florlda Rural water Assoslatioh
l9?O W.lllrtl.n Crrcte. T.lt.h.iiee, f lodd! 3r3Ot

q""e. Ctty ol Wi,filfon
.oil&', Tetry govrkd, Int€rln Ciiy Mlnagea
fr 

'fr 
nr lvtlll$onr Fl 3t896

eh, 21-Oct-12

**. 1.586
M 6382055

feb-17

Mar'1,

lur-17
Jul r/

A!9.17

Sep.t7
oil.17
ilov.17

41a,t1l Epd
5n6,l54tpd
49l,ql7 gpd

511.284 Apd
.57,50t 8pd
455,{68 gtd
S00,226 8pd
500,442 epd
,41,996tpd
t51.151 fipd

714,W8nd
859,000spd
691,!0OSd
759.mEpd
?14,0mspil
6611008pd

958,S0$d
2,270.m6ed
9t1,m 8Id
674,0008pd

5,794,m8!d
t.7S,mgpd
S.79{,aoogpd
!,?94,O0Oetd

5.794,mepd
5,7S,m099d
5.794.mspd
5,t9{,00099d
5,714.0@crd
5,794,tt00 Bpd

Hltlo.ic Waaer TreatmGnt Plrnt Flow Dsta fron MORS
Oreralro l.pora p.r 62-5t.sl2t |rl. {1, 16}.. {5}{t. M66t}

Aoo (Annualt y'- hl 
MDD tA6nu,[ flarlo

Daha.d - MnO:ADn

rolalffiP

151
110
Itro
1,d8

1.56

1,45

1.9:
4.54

20s
t49

__rji__,_-1ts{mstg_
I i! t,?94.!00sp(

5t1.3798pd 740,0mgpd

592.49o E9l
576,03, spd
t17,993 6pd
515,96? g!d
5$,?Aa grd

5l),67 gpd

s51,l2l sFd
534784 8[d

l:r'fJ 4tl9l10', {fr9,t9tepd Gil.msd r79SZnld ra8 i,r9{,0oo8pdrnn.ra 6t !,?r4ooo6!d
feb'18 575.6809pd g4t,@ogpd I 39 5,79{,0@rpd
Mnrls 685,4t58pd lgt,Wtpd t t1 i.7.r,00or0d
Apr18 687,6008pd 864,omgpd t 26 S.?r4,mgpd
M3y.t8 708.032 epd 1.152,fr06pd 163 sJ%,Wgpd
Jun-18 65A,2678Fd 930,t@tpd 1,4! s,/s,ffi8pd
tul.18 641.261spd 8!9,50ospd I 40 5,794,N00gpd
AuR.l8 602,8t5 gpd 927,o([8pd 1 54 5,?q,000s0d
sep'18 5l5,1oogpd 817,00ospd I s5 ;,7gi,Soepd
ocfl0 660,6699fd A56,mo8pd I 30 5,t94,0o0spd
Nov l8 619,434er1 8/s,O00spd t 2, 5,794.m0gpd

9{c:tj 191,9!9p,1 6t6(t58pd rl59.m€p,J r,r0l,rlodFd 61r E,rs,m6ed
Jan.le 469.QBOmd 633,@o;t'i ts ilrd0meiltteb.19 45{,o71drd 656,@grd 1.44 5,794.m8pd
Mirl9 a4t,]4. gpd 5ll,omgpd t_nt 5.794,@Apij
atrl9

,un.19
,uLl9

Aug-19

5ep-19

Oc.19

Nov.l9

a4t,i@ $n
!34,2909pd

52t,lo1 8pd
454,r91 gpd

46r,116 eW!
512,03i Cpd
5td.ds{ gpd

502,38{ epd

603,0@gpd
999,w fpd

l,2t1,o0otpd
7t2,0@sd
7O],leSd
8l4,0Wgpd
588,mgpd
792,mlp!,

5,7s,&0spd
5.7en.000ipd

5.794,s08pd
S,79{.m0gpd

5,79E.0m8rd

S,794,m0spd
5.?94,m0spd
5,/91,000 srd

1.34

1.87

2.36

1.64

l.5l
1.59

t.34
1.58

r{3

.__pl!!=____g!Jlc8_€4__l8r.,G6srd reqomund 75?.7r3sd_-
,rn.io ,03.4t1lgpd nle,oF.od
F.b.2O

Ma?29
Apr"?0

May'lt
J!r-20
lul20

iug^20

Sep.20

Ocl20
Nov.20

718,100 Bpd
t,t5r.msDd
886,0mgpd
718.0&8pd
756,mCpd
xq000a0d
9?8.000€pd

8o2,e03pd

l3B
zAt
165
lt9
t47
141
117
150

5,794,m4od
5,X4,Wgpd
s,?94,m0€pd
5,794,@O8pd

5,794,0mgpd
5,794,0@gpd
t,7t{,m8pd
5,79d0009pd
5,79{.mogpd
5,79a,0mtod

D.r-lo l?8,!l*qld tlt79?dFd 96,OmFpd 81iltstdpd t,56 rri9r,0rlrtpd
J.n.ll Str.'11!rpd 704,s0{snd ----- l.4:r -5'D{ffisil-teb.zi 58S,501gtd g8o,m[pd 161 9,794,e0gpd
Mdrll 663.096ftd 1,Sl3,mg8d 2 il t79{,@0sndAp.2l 5l9316gpd EE9,@DBpd rl9 5,79r,000gpd
May.zl 701.093 gpd 1.054,0wgpd r 50 5,794,0m8pd
iua.21 604,24d 8pd t,647.S008pd 2 7J 5,7%,Wgrd
hlTt 5{5,7l0gpd r,or?,m0epd 1s9 5,r94,ftr08pd
Au8-21 519,658 Rpd 974,oo}et),1 tlt 5,?94,000epd
5ep.21 51t,751 Apd 7s5,m0gpd r tr 5,794.m0gpd
Ocr21 557,081 ged 786!0o0gpd L39 S.794,0m8pd

,6n"rl
t{t}.2,
Marl2
4t,.22
May'22
Ilo'2:
l,l-22
A!g.:?

540,6l} sd
s24,all eqd
!63,3:r gil
\71,916 Cpd
621,595 8pd
600,167 eOd

498,9818pd

54O.492 grd

74O.tr0Bpd
?l{,O00Bpd

916,0wgpd
807,0Sgtd
l m5,0008pd
764,ffi gtd

l,08t.moepd

141
130
:59
1.30

t8t
!5r
200

5,79t,m0Epd
5,794,0mApd
5,79{,0m Cpd
9,79{,0mgpd
5,794,W8pd
5.794,m0gpd
S,7e4,&0spd

Nov'll 513,500apd

sal,r2aapt

829,0mSd 1,61 t,Tg,omgpd

1.59

Av..age tuV Oerund{6PD) trdm Moii
Av.nt€ MD;lADt tror MOn,

Max Palty temand IGPDI lrom MORs

Il 564'377EDd fforDa{ 24honrl,i
ll 1,66 lFor Dasr 24 monrh!

Il 935,564 .pd llg.i€d on aver.ep Mor/AoF

TPC

5,79{.om Ard
5.?94,&0flrd
5,?9n,m08Pd

5,794,m0Cfd

aot I
20!a
2{1'
2020

ADD
469,153 Cad

538.318 8pd
i8r,0668pd
51s,797 spd

MDO
&79.842 Bpl

!.l01,250epd
157,773 ged

817,091 god

Page 19

45



0.450 MGD

0.400 MGD

0.350 MGD

0.300 MGD

0.250 MGD

0.200 MGD

0,150 MGo

0,100 MGD

Williston Wastewater Flow History per DMRs

Jan.19 Jan-20 Jsr21

Page 20

Jan-17 Jan-.l8 Jn-22

Gurtont Permltted WWTF Capaclty = 0.450 MGD AADF

MGD

- 
-.Averege 

Daily Flotv

-wwIF 
P€rnlted capscity

- 
Annual AveraF Dally Fbw (AAoF)

- 
Linear (Average Daily Flow)

I

Annual Flow 0.236 MGD
monflgt

46



Florida Rural Water Association
2970 Wcllinslon €i'c|., Tall.hiss.e. floflda l?109

iknhr: CIty of Wllllston
(.der: Terry Bovalrd, lnterlm clty Manage.
Adr!.': Wllllstor, Ft 32696

Monthly
Average

Dile, ?1,Oct"2,

cunt,1,186

6M! t!A012612
Historic Wastewater Treatment Plant Flow Data fronr DMRs
from Discharge ii4onitoring Repods per 62-620.910(10) {in MGO$

Mon{h 3IVI\4ADD Anlu6l Avera!o

JdGrT ri 2017 0 200 MGD tl.2ox Mco o.l-EoTeo. - oror rrloo
Feb.l7 ?B 0.208 MGD 0.203 tVcD 0.,+50 tilGO 0 207 l\iGD
Md,17 ]1 0.208 MGD 0,205 ({cD 0 450 |VGD 0.207I\JGD
Ap!1? r0 O.144 MGD 0. tB7 MGD O 4S0 MGO 0 203 t\,tcD
May-17 3t 0.17? t!,lcD 0 176 McD 01i0 MGO D.Aot MGO
Jur17 lc 0,185 [,lGD 0.163 MGD 0 450 MGO 0 198 MGD
JultT r 0,165,ricCr 0.1?0MGt) 0.450MGO 0 1s3MGD
Aug-ti r 0,196lltcD 0.132 t\4GD O.dSo |VCD 0 tg2 tVcD
Sop.Jt 31 0.t62McO 0.i74McD 0.450MGO 0 td8ttGD
oct-17 il 0.t80MGD 0.t79McO 0.{tOMcD 0.1E6MGD
Nov-17 30 0 l84MGO 0.175MGD o.l5oMGF 0,180MGD
90617 lt 0195MGD 0.lsBMco 0.,t50M6o il.184M6O
Jrn-]U r! lolE 0.221 MGD 0 r00 MGD, [.{6n McD o.tg5 MGD
F€b'16 ?s 0.20lMGD O.2OGlr,tcD o45OMGD O.tdsMGD
Md-10 31 0.212 McD o 21 1 MAO 0.150 MGO 

'.t'g 
MGD

At'-18 1t 0.2?t |VGD 0.21 I MGD 0 4sO tllcD 0.192 t\4cD
May-f8 11 0,2221i!GD 0,21S MOO 0 450 t\,tco 0 195 MGI)
Jun-lE l0 0.2t0MGD 0.218MGO 0{i0MGD 0.tg'.MGD
JullE 3: o.l99MGD 0.210MGD 0,{5OMcD 02O0MGD
A!g-18 11 0.191 l\,lGD 0 200 MGD 0,450 l\,loD 0 ?oo MGD
Sop-18 s O.2ilMcD o:00McD 0.450MGD 0.to.|!rcD
Od-lE r: 0.209MGD 0204MGD 04S0MGD 0206McD
Nov.18 3D 0.227MGO a.llfrMGD 0.450|,1GO 0210MGD
Osa,6 J1 g 225 &6D 0.2:0 MGo 0 450 MGD o 212 tltco

?tlt9 0.226 MGD 0 226lir60 4.450 ff6D 0.?ti MGF
0.231 MGD 0.227 McD 0.450 MGO 0 21 5 MGD
0.20? MGD 0.220 McD 0.450 l\,lGO 0215 l\rcD
c.r87MGO 0.20?MGD 0.450t{ct} 02r2tvco
o rs5 McD 0.1s1 McD 0-450 MGo 0.209 McD
0,2'6MGD O.l36MGD O.15OMGD, O2OSMGD
0 t96 l\.(GD 0.199 t\4cD 0.450 MGD 0 209 McD
0.20t i\r6D 0.206 r\4GD 0.450 M6D 0.210 i,lGD
0 211 MGD 0 201 i\r6D 0 450 MCD 0 210 McD
0.?t9MGD O.2r2tttrO 0.150MsD 02t1 Mco
0.216 MGD 0.215 MGD 0.150 ircD 0 2{0 r\,tco

Anh0al
Average

Pcrfrltled
Cdpaclty

Jil't0 il
FoLlg 18

l\tr.19 31

ApF19 lo
May-19 11

Juo-19 l1
Julls 3r

Aug-tg ll
SeF-{g l0

ocllg 31

Nov"1g 18

Ooc.l[ | 02t?M(iD 0.?t6MCO D.450MGD Ol00t\.tcD
Js!?0 rt 2020 0 217 MGD 0,215 MGO, 0.450 MGo 0 ib- [rco
Feb-20 ?8

Me-20 r1

AV-20 ro

May-20 31

J!n.20 il
Jul20 31

AUE-20 ir
Sep.20 30

Ocl-zq lr
Nov-20 io
Dec-20 ll

O 226 MGD

O.?3? MGD

0.208 i!1GD

O 2IO MGD
O 21] MGD
O I82 MGD

0.2t? ftct)
0 256 MCD
O 230 MGO

0,?3r M6D
O 256 MGD

0.2t6 MGD 0.400 McO
0.225 IUGO 0.{S0 ItaO
0.222MBO 0.dt0M60
0.217 MGA 0.450 MGD
0.210tuGD 045oi4go'
0.202MGD 0450MGO
0.;t04 McD 0.450 $ao
0 218 t cD . 0.450 MGO.
O.?3TMGD O.45OMGD

0.242 MGD 0.,150 MGO
o242MGO O.,t50MbD

0,208 MGD
0 210 MGO

0 212 N,|GD

0 214 ir6D
0,2I4 MGD
0 2r3 l\4GD

0.214 MGD
O 217 MGD
O.?IS MGD
0.220 MGD
o.2?4 McO

Jan-ll il
Feb'?l )o

Mw"21 3r

Apl.zt ]r
May-21 Ji
Jun-21 30

Julz1 3!

Aug-21 rl
Sep-21 ru

Oc!?l )1

Nov-?1 Jo

0128 tucD
0.232 tltGD
0.tt4 MGn
0 236 ltGD
0 ?42 MGo
0.?4d M00
0.2,i 1 M60
0 ?{t McD
0.140 Mao
0.239 MGD

ztat orioffi
0.244 MGD . 0 245 t\rGD 0.450 MGD 0,227 MCO
0.246MGD 0?42MCD 0-460MGD

0a.-21 r:

O ?4S MGD O 248 MGD. 0.450 MGD
0.239 l\'lGD , 0.245 MCO 0,'150 Ilr3fJ
0 237 t\lcD ' 0.242 McD 0-150 MGD
0.250 MGD 0.?42 M60 0.,130 MGD
0215M6D 0.244MGD 0,450MGO
o 216 McD : O.Zrr  llCO 0.{50 MOU
0.?25MGD C220MGD t.450MCiD
0.233 MGO 0.e2? MGD 0.450 [rCD

',Z45MGF 
O236MGD O4SOMGD

h,v2t 3t 2o2z o.z3SfuGD 0Z4iJ\1ffi-tadffid-
Feb.22 zs 0.235 i,lcD O 238 MGD 0.,t50 t\lGD O 238 MGO
Mx-22 31 0.247 tulGD 0.23r [tCiO 0"450 MGD 0.23s MGO
Av-?2 r0 o243MGD 0242MGO 0.450McD 0238t\4cD
Ma,!'22 11 0.240 MGD 0.243 MGD 0 450 l\,lcD 0 239 t\,tGO

Jun-22 re 0.?44MGo o242MGD 0.450MGD 0.23sttcD
Julz? Jl 0.239MGO 0,24t MGD 0.450t\rGD O23SMGO
Auq-?z rr 0.226t\tcD:0.ei6MGoi0.4s0Mcol 0236MGD
Ser.?2 10 0.255|VGD . 0.240 MGD 0.450 tllcD 0.23s MGD
Average ; 0.240 [reD ] 0.240 M6D I {i,iatiiiGt - {
M.rlnlm , 0.256 [,lCD. 24

Avor.ge i 0.2,12 ftrcD ' o u rz rVcD O Zr4 lilcu

?age 21

47



Florida Rural Water Association
2970 Wellington Circle, Tallahassee, Florida 32309

Member: (ify of Willlston
conbct: Terry Bovalrd, Interim City Manager

citv: l/l/llli5lsn, Ft 32696

wastewater collectlon system - lnventory, condition & current Value

Clay, Cl, DlP,

PVC, to2,74t-ft
Orangeburg
Clay, Cl, DlP,

PVC, 277-ft
Orangeburg

19.46 mi 37-yrs 10% s6o,oo8-ln

oate: 21-Oct-22
Version: flfllfll

conn: trt$$
ctvrs: FlA0l2612

/fr t

I

__t,
I

$arc,ue

10-in 0.05 mi: 37-Yrs to% $zs,oo /rt 5z,we

Replacement Value at today's cost:

57.so/ft-dia

S6,18s,ooo

Manholes

Replacement Value at today's cost; $5,145,000

NOTES:

1. Age of plpelines are bosed on interviews with City staff and ovdilable GIS dota,
2, Plpe Diometet estimated based on interviews with Ctty stalf ond avolloble wostewoter system rcpotts,
2, Apptoximote Uselul Volue of exlstlng plping ond monholes bosed on Flottdd Publtc SeNtce Cammlssian Averoge Setvice Life
Guidelines, ond F.A,C, 25-30.140 (40 yeors grovity sewers, 27 yeors monholes),

3. Cost bosed on simllor construction ln Florido ond engineet estimote,

s6,154,460

s20,775

90,r8s,2!s

s5,r45,ooo

ss,r45,o0o

Length
(feet)

Length

(miles)
Average Age

(yearslll)
Value Estimated

($ per ftl ($l

Pipe
PVC

Material
lue(31

Approx.
Useful

lmi

Avg Est Age

(years)(tl

Approx.

Useful

value (3)

Value
($ per unit)

Estimated
(9t

Category Materlal , Quantity

s514,500Manholes Concrete 342 37-yrs t0% $15,000

Page22

48



Florida Rural Water AssociaHon
2970 Welllntton Clrcle, Tallaharsee, tlortda 32309

urmr* Clty of Wlllston
cohtr.tr T€rry Bovalrd, lnt€rim clty Manager
Addro$r Wlll5ton, Ft 32696

ort.: 21-Oct-22
vcrolon; flfllL

connr lrltg
ausr F1A012612

Estlmated WWTF Construction Costs Year built: 1987, addttlons ln 2003, gas chlorlnauon added 2009

Average
Capaclty Constructlon Cort $/gallon Ag6 Useful Llfe

Oxidatlon Ditch, Secondary Clarlflers, Chlorlne Contact
Chamber, Aeroblc Dlgester, Reclalmed Water ponds and
Sprayfield lrrlgation

s9,000,000 s20.00/gal 30 ,too/o0,450 MGD

Replacement Value at todayrs cost:

Useful ufe Value at today's costl

Ndas: 1, WWP cosa basod on ilnllil Nnslilctton bt F|uida ild enginaer astlmilla
i. Usotti flle based Flulda tu!/tc Seryioe Commlsslor Avir]gs Swi6a ule edddlnes, F.AC, 25"&.110 (l? Wils)

s9,000,000

Sgoo,ooo

Page 23

49



Florlda Rural Water Associatlon
2970 Welllngton Clrcle, Tallahassee, Florlda 323(D

Mehbor Clty Of Wlllston
contart Telry 0ovalrd, lnterlm City Manager
rddres; Wllllston, FL 32696

Wastewater Llft Stations

Dar€: 21.Oct.22
Verslon; FINAL

corn 1,185

aMs: F1A012612

Estlmsted

Constructlon Cost
Avelage

Age (yean)
Useful Llfe

Value
Unlt Cost

)uomersDre uTr slatlons 1b

3
)4,UU0r{)O0 25 5400,000 520Q000/ ea

ea
Major Llft Stations (t51, 152, l57) 25

Useful Llle

Replacement Value at today's cost: t5,050,000

s

1. Age estindled ba6ed on int6lIytews|/t/tth Cily slafl.

2, Usdfullifo basod FlotHE P{rbrfc Sondce Cornnbsron Awago Seilhe Lile Cuideltnes, f.AC. Z5.JO.!40 (22 yeen}.

Page 24

50



Florida Rural Water Association

Member: f,lfy of Williston
contact: Terry Bovaird, lnterim City Manager

city; Vt/illi3fsn, FL 32696

wastewater Transmission system - lnventory, condition & current vatue

Date: !t-Q6[-]f
Version: fll\l[l

Conn: trt$$
ctus: F1A012512

Pipe Dia

(inches)
Pipe Material

Approximate

Average Age

S7.so

Value

($ per ft)
Estimated

Replacement Volue ot today's cost price per inch-diometet pet loot,

Approx.
Useful

Length
(feet)

Length
(miles) ($)

Force Main

PVC 2,846-ft 0.54 mi 40 10% $30.00 /ft $8,5374.ln

6-ln 10.24

56,912.ft 10.78 Useful Life Value:

Replacement Value at today's cost:

I'JOIES:

1. Age, naterial end dlameter of plpelines inteviews with opera,bns slaff Pipeline lengths based on 615 dala.
2' Useful lile based on Floida Public Sevice Conmission Average Sewica Life cuidetines, and F.A.C. 2*30.140 (27 yearc)

,936

$2,51 8,356

$85,368

$?,432,988

$2,518,356

Page 25

51



Florida Rural Water Association
2970 Wellington Clrcle, Tallahassee, Flortda 32309

Membe'r City of Williston
cont6ct: Terry Bovaird, lnterim City Manager
Addres: Williston, FL 32696

Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) Worksheet

WATER ERCS

Water Meter Size

7282
Nonresidential

oate: lf-Q6[-!l
verelon: FINAL

conn: J,$t$
pws 6382055

304 2" 8 24f2
Total

Ratio ERCs / Service Conneclion

I 586

975
277

2.34

3714

1688

WASTEWATER ERCS

Residentlal

Nonresidential
1

8

975
2"

Total

Ratio ERCs / Service Connection:

Source: Selino Leavy, City of Wlllston lJtility Billing Supervlsot

1186 2663

2.25

Slze fRC Factor Total

wastGwater ERGS

Page 26

52



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

November 8thr2022

TOPIC: Resolution 2022-89 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Williston
Florida, establishing authorization for the City Council President to authorize the signing
of a contract for Equix INC. to remove and replace a gas line through the WAWA property
and providing an effective date.

Requested By: Donald Barber, Public Works Supervisor

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION:

From NW 7th street to NW 6th street, east to west, and from W Noble to NW l't Ave, South to
North, this property has been purchased by a developer to build a gas service station. It was
previously five properties. There is a gas line that runs through the middle of three old parcels,
now combined into one. It must be removed for the service station to be built. The cost of which
will be paid for by the developer. The City of Williston through our membership with FGU will
provide the customer with access to our contractor for the removal and replacement of this
existing gas line. Staff is seeking approval for the contract to be signed by the Council President,
and when the job is completed, the developer will re-imburse the city.

LEGAL REVIEW: NO

FISCAL IMPACTS: NONE OVERALL

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends Approval

ATTACHMENTS: Quote and Work Scope

ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVE

53



CITY COUNCIL RTSIOLUTION NO. 2O22-A9

A RESOLUTION OF THE CrTY COUNCTL OF THE CITY OF WTLLTSTON FLORTDA,
ESTABLISHING AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO
AUTHORIZETH.E SIGNING OF A CONTRACT FOR EQUrX INC. TO REMOVE AND
REPLACE A GAS LINE THROUGHT THE WAWA PROPERTY AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Williston has a need for removing and replacing of a gas

main between West Noble Ave and NW l*t Ave; and

WHEREAS the community and development would be better served and secured;

and

WHEREAS the City Council will enter a contract with Equix, Inc. for the removal

and replacement of a two-inch gas main and all other work addressed in the contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY

oF WILLTSTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are true and accurate and are hereby made a

part of this resolution.

Section 2. The Council President is authorized to execute the necessar5r

contracts for the purchase and acquisition of a five-year licensing agreement and

contract for software hosting and services for the City of Williston from Edmonds

GovTech, INC.

PASSED AND N)OPTED at a meeting of the City Council this 8tt'day of

November 2022. CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

By:
Debra Jones, President

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

By:
Latricia Wright, City Clerk

By:
Scott Walker, City Attorney

54



EilCINEERINC SE$.VICEST tlrlc.

r:*:=.=-

Mt/A,
-ir\'.-r

-"."+=.-=.s
a.-'--?

8118/2022

Katie Hall
Flolida Gas Utility
4619 NW 53'd Avenue
Gainesville, FL 32653

RE: Proposal for Engineering Services for thc 2-inch gas main relocation, in Williston, FL

Dear Katie,

Our cotnpany, MAI Iingineering Services, Inc. (MAI), appreciates the opportunity to offer you
this proposal to perfonn enginecring services to assist you to complete the design and per:nitting
for the gas pipeline relocation project in Williston, Florida.

Based on our discussion, we understand that you wish to obtain a proposal for us to cornplete the
design and pennitting for the proposed removal of the existing 2-inch steel gas main and the
installation of a new 2-inch PE gas main along NW 6tr' St, Our detailed scope of work is
doscribed beiow.

SCOPE OF WORK:

TASK I: CONSTRUCTION PLAN AND PERMITTING OF THE ORANAGE ROUTE:
The scope for this project includes:

o Design and pennit the proposed removal of 450 LF of existing2-inch steel gas
main betwecn NW 7'h St. and NW 6tr'St. and the proposed installation of 400 LF
of 2-inch PE gas rnain along NW 6th St., in Williston, FL.

o MAI will prepare a Conceptual Site Plan for the project depicting the route and
location ofgas pipelines in reference to other underground utilities, roadway and
above ground features in an attempt to reduce corlstruction costs and avoid
conflicts with other underground utilities.

o Once the route is approved, we will prepare Construction Plans for the Project to
depict limits of project boundaries, pipeline locations, construction details, cross
sectious, required construction notes, general notes, general contract
requirements, and docurnents suitable for bidding, pennitting and construction.

o The construction plan development pl'ocess will have a 600/o and a l00o/o review
and cornplete coordination with City of Williston, FDOT and FGU.

o MAI will provide drawings utilizing all available records, as-builts, roadway
plans, agency records, utility cornpany as-builts, aerial photography, site GPS
suryeys, and additional surveys frorn a Licensed Surveyor.

o We will coordinate with all other underground utility cornpanies during the
construction plan development to avoid conflicts.

o Prepare pennitting subrnittal packages and obtain all ROW pennits

MAI will prepare pennit applications and submit plans, drawings, and specifications to obtain the
pennits frorn:

o City of Williston ROW Pennit
o FDOT ROW Pennit

2510 US1 South, Suite D r St, Augustine, Florida 32086 r web:www.maiengineer.com
Cell (904) 536-3705 r Tel: (904) 794-1760 r Fax: (904) 794-1768 r Email: quoc@maiengineer.com

55



ll'illiston Proposal 2-inch Cas Main Relocution August 18,2022 Puge 2

MAI proposes to provide thesc servicss in TASK I with a sum amount of $2,200.

SCHEDULE:

MAI will prepare all necessary drawings and details to obtain the requirecl pennits ancl finalize
the drawings fbr construction of this project by thc anticipated schedule as foliows;

Notice to Procced_August lgtt', 2022
60% Cornplete_september. 2ud, 2022
1 00% Cornplete_septeinber gtt', 2022
Subrnit ro FDOT & Septernber 16tt',2A22
Ass ist Bi ddi n g for Construction_september I 6tt', ZA22
Obtain all Pennits_ October l6tt , Z02Z
Estimate Stad Construction_Novernber l"t, Z0Zz

Any and all items not specifically setforth in this proposal are exchded. Additionatfootage witl
be charged at $1.85/ft rate. SpeciJically excluded items inclucles application Jbes, riproctiction,
ROW staking, Preliminary Archaeological Assessntent qncl Report, wetlcmcls mitigtttion,
ttnderground utilities WH, dewatering permits, threatenecl/endangeretl speeies shrdies, hiiorical
resowce study, easement docwnents, legal, geutechnicul studies, soil barings, electrical
engineering, legal, and as-built survey.

MAI appreciates the opportunity to provide you with our selices and looks forward to another
successful project with you. Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Sincerely yours,

o
o
o
o

O

I

I
Qtroc H. B, Mai, P.E., CGC Signal.ure of Notice to Proceed

Katie Hall
Florida Gas Utility

2510 US1 South, Suite D r St. Augustine, Florida 32086 r web:www.maiengineer.com
Cell (90a) 536-3705 r Tel: (904) 794-1760 r Fax: (904) 794-1768 r Email: ouoc@lmaionqlneer.com

56



llilliston Proposul 2-inch Gas Mqin Relocrttion Augusr 18,2022 Puge 3

CONTRACT GENERAL CONDITIONS

In addition, the following items are stipulated:

a) Scope of Work assutnes nounal engineering and design selvices. Additions or changes due
to revisions required by the Client or any goverrunent agency will be billed based on the fee
schedule herein.

b) Billing is rnonthly based on docurnented ploject wor'k with payment expected within 30 days.
Delinquencies will be refened for collection. Any legal, collection, application, and pennitting
fees will be paid by the Client. Subcontract services will include a l5To surcharge to cover
associated costs. The mte schedule is as follows:

Principal Engineer $135.00/k. Scnior Designer $ 85.00/hr

Project ManageriPE $120,00/hr, l)esigner $ 75.00/hr.
Project/Field Engineer $ 90.00/hr. Adrninistr.ative g 40.00/hr

B&W Copies:\t/z"xl l" @ $0,25 per:, I lxl7 @ $0,50 per;
Color Copies: \tA" xl l" @ $0.7 5 per, I I x 1 7 @ $ 1 .50 per;
24x368&W Prints: @$2.5 per; Sepias @ $0.75iSF; Reproducible Mylar @ $4.40/SF;
Facsimile Transrnissions: 8Yz" x l 1' @ $ 1.50/pagei 8y2,t x l4" g l.ZSlpage; and
Binding: V4"@$3 pel se! Zz''@$5 per; l'@St0 per,2"@$20 per, 3'@$30 per,4,@$40 pel
Mileage@ $.62.5/mile

c) Documents provided to the Client are lbr intbnnation only, not reuse. Any reuse of print or
electronic data without written approval by the Engineer will be at the Client's full risk and
liability.

d) Liability of the Engineer to the Client for any and all injurics, clairns, losses, expenses, or
damages shail not exceed the total fee of the project and shall include, but are not lirnited to,
negligence, erots, otnissions, sttict liabilify, breach of conffact, or breash of warranfy.

e) Certification represented by a signed or sealed statement of a professional engineer means
that services pafonned were based upon his4rer knowledge, infonnation, and beliefin accordance
with comtnonly accepted procedules and applicable standards of pactice but is not a guarantee or
wananty.

f) Work Performed on plans, designs, and doouments will be prepared consistent with nonnal
professional standard ofcare but does not guarantee success, approval, or issuance ofpennits.

g) Transfer or Termination of this Contract requircs written notice. liansfer of this Contract
requires written consent of both patties. Tennination of this Contract by the Client for any
breach after ten (10) days tequires cornpensation to the Engineer for any services perfonned
and expenses incurred to tennination date,

h) Limitation of Liability. To the rnaximum extent peunitted by law, MAI's liability for
Client's datnages will not exceed the compensation received by MAI under this Agreeinent.
MAI is not responsible for the duties and responsibilities that belong to the borrower(s),
developer(s), construction contractor(s), designer(s), testing laboratorics, fuI1-tirne
inspector(s), or other padies associated with the Project not in the ernploy of or a
subconttactor to MAL The lirnitations of liabilities and indeurnities will appty wtreitrer MAI's
iiability arises under breach of contract or wan'anty; tort, including negligence (but not sole
negligence); strict liability, stahrtory liability; or any other causes ofaction; and shall apply to
MAI's officers, etnployees, and subcontractors. Due to the inhelent risl< iuvolved in tlie type

2510 usl soulh, suite D r St.Augustine, Florida 32086 r web:www.maiengineer.com
Cell (904) 536-3705 r Tel: (904) 794-1760 r Fax: (904) 794-1768 r Email: quoc@halenqineor.com

57



Iililliston Proposal 2-inch Gcs Main Relocution August 18,2022 Poge 4

of services in this Agreement, at the Client's discretion, and upon payment of an additional
fee to be negotiated, MAI's liability for the services can be increased,

i) No Third Party Beneflciaries. This agreernent givcs no rights or benefits to anyone other
than Client and MAI has no third party benefrciaries,

t Client Supplied Data. Infonnation, data, studies, plans, etc., provided to MAI by the Client
ol the Client's consultatrts, agents, etc. will be relied upon by MAI as being accurate and
correct, Unless specifically noted in the Scope of Services, MAI will not verify the accuracy
or correctness of these docutnents and will not be held responsible, irr any way, for erors,
additional work, etc, brought about by its reliance on thsse docurnents.

2510 US1 South, Suite D r St. Augustine, Florida 32080 r web:www.maiengineer.com
Cell (904) 536-3705 r Tel: (904) 794-1760 r Fax: (904) 794-1768 r Emait: ouoc@haienqineer,com.

58



EQU$
Enerqy Servlces, LLC.

September 6, 2O22

Florida Gas Utllity
Attn: Xatie Hall
4619 NW 53rd Ave.
Gainesvllle, FL 32653

Re: 2" Stael Maln ftelocatlon . WAWA - Coulx Enerrw Services. LLC prooosal

Mrs. Hall,

Equix Energy Services, ILC ls pleased to provide prlcing to Florida Gas Utlllty for the 2" Steel Maln Relocation - WAWA
ln Williston, F[.

Our proposal is based on the lnformation and map document provlded vla emall on June t4,ZOZZ, please see below
for clarifications and inclusion items to be perlormed under the Scope of Work assigned to Equlx Energy Services, lLC
for the Lump Sum Frlce of $55,066.00.

lnclusions:
o lllMobilizaUon
r Remove (450 LF) of Existlng 2" SteelGas Ltne
o lnstall (400 tFl of New 2,, Steel Gas Llne
o Tie-lnto Exlsting 2" Steel Gas Line
. (1) Demobilization

Clarificaltonsr

o Material to be provided by others
. Surveyto be provlded by others
o Permits to be provided by others
o Envlronmental(SWPPP) is not lncluded
r Sod, Asphalt, and Concrete restoratlon is not included
r Select backfillis not lncluded
r Hazardous Materlal^,1/aste to be handled by others (if encountered)
r Clear & Grubblng is not included

We can begln work wlthin 2 weeks of notlce to proceed and recelvtng thls letter back wlth an authorired signature of
proposal acc€ptanc€. Work will be lnvoiced upon completion net due 30 days from the date of the lnvoace without
retainage or pay when pald clauses. This proposal is valid for 60 days.

Should you have any questions or would like to discuss any ltem ln more detall, feel free to contact me at g50.g78-
t212,

Sincerely,

tum
Clay Miller
Olrector of Operations

Equixlnc.com
32410 Blue Star Hwy
Midway, FL 32343

Florida Gas Utility - Authorired Stgnature and Date

Bulldng CorilHencc
9lnce 1985

59



5
qs

tJro

House is unoccupied,

Oty doesn'tthinkthe
red line serves

anything else

City wants to remove approx. 450' of 2' steel (f line| and relocate it to 5s St lye$ow line). New line will be Z" p€. Exact
locations of the lines are unknown.

- 

Existing2"steel Gas main that may or may not exist. Size unknown

New 2" PE gas mainExisting 2'steel that needs removed

60



Wawa 2" Gas Main Relocation

Materlals

2,, PE

stopper fittings
valves

transition fittings
caps

Contingencv

400 s 1.80

4 5 900.00

4 s s2s.00
4 s 10s.00

2 s 20.00

S zzo.oo

S 3,600.00

S z,too.oo
$ 42o.oo

S qo.oo

$ t,37e.oo
TOTAL $ 8,256.00

61



Date: ll-08-2022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

RESOLUTION 2022.91:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT FOR VACANT LAND
BETWEEN BRANDON HERNANDEZ AND THE CITY OF WILLISTON FOR
PROPERTY AT THE AIRPORT WITH A LEGAL DESCRIPTION AS OUTLINED IN
THE ATTACHED LAND LEASE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE CITY
COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO EXECUTE THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

REQUESTED BY: BENTON STEGALL, AIRPORT MANAGER
PREPARED BY: KIERSTEN BALLOU, CITY ATTORNEY

FISCAL IMPACTS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION : Staff recommends approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

CONTRACT XX RESOLUTION 2022-9I

XX LEASE OTHERDOCUMENTS

MAP

COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DENIED

62



RE S OLUTION NUMBER 2022.9 I

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT FOR VACANT LAND
BETWEEN BRANDON HERNANDEZ AND THE CITY OF WILLISTON FOR
PROPERTY AT THE AIRPORT WITH A LEGAL DESCRIPTION AS OUTLINED IN
THE ATTACHED LAND LEASE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE CITY
COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO EXECUTE THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Brandon Hernandez has requested a land lease for vacant land located
at the Williston Municipal Airport; and

WHEREAS, the relevant Codes of the City of Williston, Florida allow for leases of
land at the Williston Municipal Airport under terms that comply with such codes
and other relevant state and federal laws; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager and City Council President are appropriate parties to
execute documents related to such Land Lease Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the City's best interest to
authorize the City Manager to execute this Land Lease Agreement, an unexecuted
copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and any other such documents as are
required to enter into the Land Lease Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
oF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The City Council hereby approves the Land Lease Agreement for Vacant
Land between Brandon Hernandez and the City of Williston, Florida and the
appropriate City Officials are hereby authorized to execute the Land Lease
Agreement which is attached hereto as Exhibit"N'.

Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by an affirmative vote of a majority of a quorum present
in the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida this _ day of November,2022.

63



Attest, By the City Clerk of
the City of Williston, Florida:

Latricia Wright, City Clerk

BY THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OF
THE CITY OF WITLISTON, FLORIDA:

Debra fones, City Council President

Approved as to Form and Legality:

S. Scott Walker, City Attorney
Kiersten N. Ballou, City Attorney

64



LAI\D LEASE AGREEMENT
VACANT LAND

LESSOR:
City of Williston, Florida
Post Office Drawer 160

Williston, Florida 32696

LESSEE:
Brandon Hemandez
16 NW 2nd Ave.
Williston FL32696

WHEREAS, the CITY OF WILLISTON, a Florida municipal corporation, ("the Lessor"), maintains
an airport commonly referred to as Williston Municipal Airport; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the said City to promote and develop the said airport; and

WHEREAS, Brandon Hernandez ("the Lessee"), is desirous of leasing a certain parcel at the said
airport as is hereinafter described for the pqpose of Vehicle maintenance and repair;

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars and other good and valuable
considerations and the covenants, conditions and agreements as are hereinafter set forth, the Lessor and Lessee
agree as follows:

1. PREMISES; INSPECTIONS: AS IS: The Lessor leases and Lessee does rent and hire from the Lessor,
the following described prernises located in Willislon, Levy County, Florida, (the "Premises"), to-wit:

Description: (by surveyor) - New Lease 1808
A parcel of land in the Southeast % of Section 12, Township 13 South, Range 18 East, Levy County, Florida;
being a portion of the Williston Industrial Sites, an unrecorded subdivision; being more particularly described
as follows:

Commence at the Southeast comer of said Section 12, said comer being on the centerline of U.S.
Highway No. 4l and run thence run South 00o13'08"West, along the centerline of said U.S. Highway
No. 41, a distance of 28.45 feet; thence North 89o35'30"West, a distance of I 154.56 feet to the East
right-of-way line of SW 8th Terrace and its Southerly Extension; thence North 00"43'20-East along
said East right-of-way line, adistance of 753.98 feet to the to the Point-of-Beginning of the herein
described parcel; thence continue North 00o43'20"East, a distance of 210.00 feet to the Southwest
comer of the Well Bilt Lease; thence South 89o25'30"East, along the South line of said Well Bilt
Lease, a distance of 210.00 feet; thence South 00o43'20"West, a distance of 210.00 feet; thence North
89o25'30"West, a distance of 210.00 feet to the said Point-of-Beginning Containing 1.012 Acres,
more or less.

It is the responsibility of the Lessee, at the Lessee's sole expense, to satisfu itself, prior to the execution
of this Agreement, as to the title and condition of the Premises including, without limitation, title to the

Lessee Initials: Lessor Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

65



Premises, matters of record in the Official Records, of Levy County, permitted land uses, zoning codes,
building regulations, height limitations, setbacks, applicable building codes, permits, soil conditions, and
environmental conditions. Lessor makes no wa:ranties or representations to the Lessee, and the Lessee agrees
the Lessor has made no warranty or representation respecting the condition of the Premises, or applicable
zoning laws and regulations, or applicability of the uses contemplated by the Lessee, or environmental
conditions, or any matters which a current survey would disclose, or the applicability of any covenants or
restrictions of public record, except as otherwise expressly provided herein. Lessee further acknowledges it
has had adequate opportunity to inspect the Prernises hereunder prior to entering into this Agreement or has
made adequate provision herein. Accordingly, the taking of possession of the Premises by the Lessee shall be
conclusive evidence that the Premises were in good and satisfactory condition when possession was taken by
Lessee.

2. TERM: The initial term of this Lease shall be 2years commencing on November 1,2022, and ending at
midnight, October 3I,2024. Should the Lessee hold over beyond the initial term or any renewal term
without further extension of the term in accordance with the renewal terms of this lease, then the Lessee
shall become a month-to-month tenant in accordance with law and upon the terms and conditions of this
lease.

3. RENT: The rent for the first year of the initial term of this lease shall be $6171.58. The rent shall be paid
monthly, in advance, in the amount of $514.30 per month, together with all applicable sales tax. The rent
for the initial and any renewal and hold over terms shall be adjusted each year on the annual anniversary
date of the lease by multiplying the rent for the prior year by the percentage increase or decrease in the
composite Consumer Price Index for the most recent prior twelve months, as published by the U.S.
Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. The rent shall be delivered by U.S. mail, addressed to
City of Williston, Post Office Drawer 160, Williston, Florida 32696, or hand delivered to City Hall, 50
N.W. Main Street, Williston, Florida during regular business hours, and shall be considered paid upon
receipt by Lessor. All payments required to be made by Lessee to Lessor pursuant to the Lease shall be
deemed additional rent.

4. NOTICES: All notices required by law and by this Lease to be given by one party to the other shall be in
writing, and the same may be served by certified mail, retum receipt requested, to Lessor, City of Williston
at P.O. Drawer 160, Williston, Florida 32696-0160 and to Lessee, Brandon Hemandez at 16 NW 2nd Ave.
Williston, FL 32696, or to such other address as Lessor or Lessee may by writing to the other so designate.
Notice to Lessee may also be served by personal delivery.

5. WARRANTIES OF TITLE AND OUIET POSSESSION: The Lessor covenants that Lessor is seized
of the demised premises and owner in fee simple thereof with the full right to make this Lease, subject to
all matters of record, and covenants that the Lessee upon making payments of the rents and the keeping of
the other covenants herein contained therefor shall have quiet and peaceful possession of the demised
premises during the term hereof.

6. USES ALLOWED AND PROHIBITED: The Lessee shall use the Premises only for the following
purpose: Vehicle maintenance and repair. The Lessee shall not use or permit the Premises or any part of

Lessee lritials: Lessor Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

66



the Premises to be used for any unauthorized or unlawful pulpose, or for any purpose other than as set forth
above.

7. COMPLIAi\CE WITH LAWS: During the term of this Lease, the Lessee shall comply with all
ordinances, statutes, laws, rules and regulations of the City of Williston, State of Florida and the U.S.
Government, breach of which shall be cause for cancellation of this Lease. The Lessee shall abide by all
applicable regulations as set forth in Chapter 12 of the City Code of Ordinances, together with any future
amendments to said ordinance. The Lessee shall at all times maintain all required licensing and permits.
The violation of any provision of the said ordinance, as evidenced by a final determination by the City's
code enforcement board or a court of law, shall be conclusively deemed a default under this lease and shall
not be subject to the notice requirements or cure provisions set forth in the default section of this lease. The
Lessee further covenants that the said premises shall not be used for any purpose which might cause
forfeiture of the Lessor's title to the said premises.

8. SIGNS: Except with the prior written approval of Lessor, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld, Lessee shall not erect, maintain or display any signs or any advertising at or on the exterior of the
demised premises or within the demised premises that are visible from outside such premises.

9. LESSORS RIGHT OF'ENTRY: The Lessee at all times shall permit Lessor or its agents to enter into
and upon the premises and buildings for the purpose of inspecting the same.

10. PREMISES IMPROVEMENTS UPON TERMINATION: Lessee may, at its own expense and only
upon written approval by Lessor, make alterations and improvements to the Prernises as necessary for the
conduct ofits business. Lessee specifically agrees that any and all improvements, except signs, equipment
and trade fixtures installed, located upon the said premises shall become the property of the Lessor upon
termination of this lease.

11. RIGHT OF WAY USE: Subject to reasonable regulations imposed regarding airport access, Lessor
grants to Lessee, its employees, agents, suppliers, customers and invitees, a non-exclusive right during the
term of this Lease, the right of way for ingress and egress, over, across and upon the designated right of
way to U.S. Highway 4l lState Road 121.

12. OTHER RIGHTS RF,SERVED FY LESSOR: In addition to all rights reserved by Lessor in and to the
demised premises, Lessor expressly reserves the right to further develop or improve any arcaof the airport
and its industrial parks, as the Lessor deems proper, regardless of the desires and views of the Lessee and
without interference or hindrance; maintain and keep in repair, but without obligation to Lessee, the airport
and industrial parks of the airport and all publicly owned facilities of the airport; and take any action it
considers necessary to protect the aerial approaches of the airport against obstructions, together with the
right to prevent the Lessee from conducting any practice that may be detrimental to the airport and industrial
parks which in the opinion of the Lessor would limit the usefulness of the airport and its indushial parks or
constitute ahazardto such.

Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor Lritials:

67



13. UTILITIES: The Lessee agrees to pay all charges for any and all utilities in or about the premises whether
the same is telephone, electricity, water, sewer, gas or the like. Lessee further agrees that if, at any time
during the term of this lease agreement, the City commences providing City utility services to the airport
property, the Lessee will purchase such utility services from the City. Lessee further agrees to take delivery
of all City of Williston utilities when each utility service is made available. At the option of Lessee and
upon Lessor's concurrence, Lessee may choose to have the Lessor provide all City utility services to the
leased premises as a part of the rent payment pursuant to paragraph 3 hereof. If Lessee chooses this option,
Lessor shall adjust each month's rent to Lessee so as to reimburse Lessor for its cost ofproviding such City
utility services, said cost to be determined as established by the City's appropriate utility tariffs based on
Lessee's monthly metered consumption.

14. REPAIRS AND MAINTENAI{CE: Lessee agrees to make, at its own cost and expense, any or all repairs
or work necessary to maintain the Premises and Buildings located on the Premises.

15. INSURANCE:
(a) Lessee agrees that any insurance coverage for property owned by Lessee is solely the responsibility of

Lessee.
(b) The Lessee shall carry Commercial General Liability insurance with a combined single limit in the

minimum amount of $1,000,000 in order to secure the obligations of Lessee under the following
paragraph and cause the Lessor to be added as party insured under such policy, and to furnish the Lessor
with a certificate of such insurance, together with a receipt showing the premium has been paid.

(c) At any time after occupancy of the premises by the Lessee, the Lessee agrees to allow an inspection by
the Landlord and/or the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, (the "DEP"), to determine
the extent of storage or use of hazardous materials and to determine an appropriate amount of pollution
insurance. The Lessee agrees to obtain pollution insurance, with the Lessor listed as an additional
insured party, in an amount as reasonably required by the Lessor within 15 days of written notice.

(d) All policies of insurance shall contain the clause that the same shall not be canceled except and until
fifteen (15) days after written notice to the Lessor.

16. INDEMNIFICATION OF LESSOR: Lessee agrees to protect, defend, reimburse, indemnify and hold
the Lessor, its agents, employees and officers and each of thern forever, free and harmless at all times from
and against any and all claims, liability, expenses, losses, costs, fines and damages (including reasonable
attomey fees) and causes of action of every kind and character (this is to the extent allowed by law, and
except to the extent caused by the Lessor's gross negligence or intentional misconduct) by reason of any
damage to property, or the environment (including, without limitation, any contamination of Airport
property, such as the soil or storm water, or by fuel, gas, chemicals or any Hazardous Substances), or bodily
injury (including death) incurred or sustained by any party hereto, ffiy agent or employee of any party
hereto, or any other person whomsoever, or any governmental agency, arising out of or incident to or in
connection with the Lessee's performance under this Agreement, the Lessee's use or occupancy of the
Premises, the Lessee's acts, omissions or operations hereunder or the performance, non-perfofinance or
purported performance of this Agreement or any breach of the terms of this Agreernent. Lessee recognizes
the broad nature of this indemnification and hold harmless clause, and voluntarily makes this covenant and
expressly acknowledges the receipt of such good and valuable consideration provided by the Lessor in

Lessor Initials:Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

68



support of this indemnification in accordance with the laws ofthe State of Florida. This clause shall survive
the termination of this Agreement. Compliance with the insurance requirements herein shall not relieve
the Lessee of its liability or obligation to indemnify the Lessor as set forth in this Article. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary in the foregoing or within this Agreement, the Lessor shall not relinquish or waive
any of its rights as a sovereign local government and the Lessor reserves all rights and defenses under
applicable sovereign immunity law.

17. SUBORDINATION: This lease and all rights of Lessee under it are and shall be subject to and subordinate
to the rights of any mortgage holder now or hereafter having a security interest in the leased premises or
any other encumbrances Lessor desires to place on the properly.

18. TAXES: All taxes, assessments and charges on lands or improvements and obligations upon the demised
premises shall be promptly paid by the Lessee when due. The Lessee shall have the right from time to time
to contest or protest or review by legal proceedings any such other manner as may be provided by law such
taxes or assessments imposed by governmental authorities and to institute such proceedings in the name of
itself as well as the Lessor as it may deem necessary; provided, however, that any expense incurred by
reasons thereofshall be borne by the Lessee and such proceedings shall be conducted free ofany expense
to the Lessor. Any expense incurred by reasons thereof shall be bome by the Lessee and such proceedings
shall be conducted free of any expense to the Lessor.

19. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING: The Lessee shall not assignnor sublet its right, title or interest in
or to all or any portion of the Premises or the leasehold improvements without first obtaining the prior
written consent of the Lessor, provided, howev€r, that such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld;
and provided further that the Lessee shall remain directly and primarily liable for the performance of the
terms and conditions of this Lease; provided further that no such assignment or subletting shall be made to
any person for any purpose other than that set forth in this Lease.

20. DEFAULTI REMEDIES: The occurrence of anyone or more of the following events shall constitute a
default on the part of the Lessee: (1) the Lessee fails to pay when due any rental or any other sum of money
payable hereunder on the date due; (2) the conduct of any business or perfofinance of any acts at the Airport
not specifically authorizedinthe Agreonent; (3) the Lessee abandons, deserts or vacates the Premises; (4)
the Lessee breaches or fails to comply with any other term, provision, covenant or condition of this
Agreement; or (5) the Lessee breaches or fails to comply with any other term, provision, covenant or
condition of any other agreement, contract or obligation with or to Lessor. Any or all of the foregoing shall
hereinafter be referred to as'oEvents of Default".

Upon the occurrence of any of the above Events of Default, the Lessor shall give written notice of such
default to Lessee at the address set forth under section 4, above. The effective date of notice shall be the
date that the notice is placed in the U.S. Mail or posted on the premises by Lessor. If the default is for
failure to pay rent or any other sum of money when due, then the Lessee shall have three (3) days after the
effective date of notice to cure. If the default is for any other Event of Default then the Lessee shall have
fifteen (15) days after the effective date of notice to cure, except that Lessee shall not be allowed an

Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor Initials:

69



opporhlnity to cure a re-occurring Event of Default of the same type which has been previously notice by
the Lessor and cured by the Lessee.

If the Lessee fails to cure the default within the time allowed, Lessor shall thereafter have the option to
exercise any remedy or right permitted by law or in equity. The Lessee shall fully reimburse and
compensate the Lessor upon demand for any costs and expenses incurred in connection with any cure,
correction or repair undertaken by Lessor, which sums shall be deemed to be additional rent hereunder. In
the event the Lessor relets the Premises, the Lessee shall pay the Lessor any deficiency between the amount
received, if any, form such reletting, and the amount of rent and other fees payable by the Lessee hereunder,
including Lessor's expenses in connection with re-entry, taking possession, repairing and reletting.

Notwithstanding the occrxrence of any Event of Default, the Lessee shall remain liable to the Lessor for
all payments payable hereunder and for all preceding breaches of any covenant of this Agreernent.
Furthermore, unless the Lessor elects to cancel this Agreement, the Lessee shall remain liable for and
promptly pay arry and all payments accruing hereunder until such time as this Agreement has been duly
canceled. No retaking of possession of the Premises y the Lessor shall be consfued as an election on its
part to terminate this Agreement, unless a written notice of such intention be given to the Lessee. No
pursuit of any remedy by Lessor shall constitute a forfeiture or waiver of any payments or other moneys
due to the Lessor hereunder, or of any damages accruing to the Lessor by reason of the violations of any of
the terms, provisions, and covenants herein contained. Lessor's acceptance of payments or other moneys
following any event of default hereunder shall not be construed as the Lessor's waiver of such event of
default unless the event of default is the delinquency in the payment of the amount accepted. No
forbearance by the Lessor of action upon any violation or breach of any of the terms, provision and
covenants herein contained shall be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of the terms, provisions
and covenants herein contained. Forbearance by the Lessor to enforce one or more of the remedies herein
provided upon an Event of Default shall not be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of any such
remedy.

21. CONDEMNATION: In the event the entire premises hereby leased are taken in condemnation
proceedings, the Lessee may cancel the Lease; should a substantial part of said premises be so taken, the
Lessee may cancel this Lease or at its option retain the remainder of the premises, which shall be restored
to tenantable condition, then the rental shall be apportioned; the rental thereafter shall be reduced in
proportion to the amount of loss as a result of condemnation proceedings.

22. CLEANLINESS: Lessee shall at all times keep the leased premises in a reasonably neat and orderly
condition and clean and free from rubbish and dirt. Lessee will not store any unsightly materials, junk,
garbage or debris of any kind upon the said premises and shall commit or suffer no waste of the said
demised premises or maintain any nuisance thereon.

23. DESTRUCTION OF PREMISES: In the event of damage to or destruction of any improvements which
are to be erected on said real property pursuant to the terms of this Lease, during the term of said Lease,
from any cause covered by the insurance required hereunder, Lessee shall forthwith repair or rehabilitate
the same. Such damage or destruction shall in no wise annul or void this Lease.

Lessor Initials:Lessee lnitials:
Vacant Land Lease

70



24. LATE PAYMENT PENALTY: All lease payments that are not paid by the due date are considered
delinquent and shall be assessed a ten (10) percent penalty which shall be considered apartof the rent and
shall be due and payable with the rent payment.

25. OPTION TO EXTEND TERM OF LEASE: Conditioned upon Lessee's strict compliance with all terms
and provisions ofthis lease during the entire term ofthe lease, Lessor does hereby grant to Lessee an option
to extend the lease term automatically for 5 additional2 year terms, on like terms and conditions, with the
rent adjusted according to paragraph 3, and provided that the Lessee, at the least 90 days prior to the end
of the then current term, gives written notice of its intent to exercise its option. Lessee's right to renew shall
be conditioned upon Lessee's strict compliance with all terms and provisions of this lease during the entire
term of the lease, and any non-compliance with any term or provision of this lease by Lessee, regardless of
whether notice was given by Lessor or whether the non-compliance was cured, shall constitute sufficient
cause by Lessor to choose to refuse renewal of this lease.]

26. BANKRUPTCY: The Lessee agrees that if Lessee is adjudged bankrupt or insolvent under the laws of
the United States or any state, or makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or if a receiver of
the property of the Lessee is appointed and shall not be discharged within ninety days after such
appointment, then the Lessor may, at its option, declare the termination of this Lease agreement shall
forthwith be entitled to immediate possession of the Premises.

27. END OF TENANCY: The Lessee will yield up the Premises and all additions thereto (except signs,
equipment and trade fixtures installed) in as good and tenantable condition as the same are at the beginning
of Lessee's occupancy, reasonable wear and tear, damage by fire and other casualties and condemnation
appropriate by eminent domain excepted.

28. PART OF MIINICIPAL AIRPORT: It is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that
the said property is a portion of the Williston Municipal Airport and, therefore, notwithstanding anything
contained that may be or appear to the contrary, it is expressly understood and agreed that the rights granted
under this agreernent are non-exclusive and the Lessor herein reseryes the right to grant similar privileges
to another Lessee or other Lessees on other parts of the airport. This Lease and all provisions hereof are
subject and subordinate to the terms and conditions of the instruments and documents under which the
Lessor acquired the subject property from the United States of America and shall be given only such effect
as will not conflict or be inconsistent with the terms and conditions contained in the deed of said lands to
the Lessor, and any existing or subsequent amendments thereto, and are subject to any ordinances, rules or
regulations which have been, or may hereafter be adopted by the United States of America, the State of
Florida, or the Lessor pertaining to the Williston Airport. These terms and conditions include, but are not
limited to, requirements that the Lessor obtain Fair market value rent for the leased premises for the duration
of the lease term.

29. NONDISCRIMINATION: The Lessee for itself, its personal representatives, successors in interest, and
assigns, as a part ofthe consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree that (1) no person on the
grounds of race, color, or national origin shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or

Lessor Lritials:Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

71



be otherwise subjected to discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) and that in the construction of any
improvements on, over or under such land and the fumishing of services thereon, no person on the grounds
of race, color, or national original shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination, (3) that the Lessee shall use the premises in compliance with all
other requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, department of
transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted
programs of the Department of Transportation-Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 196 4, and
as said Regulations may be amended. In the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination
covenants, Lessor shall have the right to terminate the Lease and to re-enter and as if said Lease had never
been made or issued. The provision shall not be effective until the procedures of Title 49, Code of Federal
Regulations Part 2l are followed and completed including exercise or expiration of appeal.ights.

30. AIRPORT PROTECTION: Lessor reserves unto itself, its successors and assigns, for the use and benefit
of the public, a right of flight for the passage of aircraft in the airspace above the surface of the real property
hereinafter described, together with the right to cause in said airspace such noise as may be inherent in the
operation of aircraft, now known or hereafter used, for navigation of or flight in the said airspace, and for
use of said airspace for landing on, taking off from or operating on the airport. The Lessee expressly agrees
to restrict the height of structures, objects of natural growth and other obstructions on the hereinafter
described real property to such a height so as to comply with Federal Aviation Regulations, Part 17. T\e
Lessee expressly agrees to prevent any use of the Premises which would interfere with or adversely affect
the operation or maintenance of the airport, or otherwise constitute an airport hazard.

31. SUBROGATION CLAUSE: The Lessor and Lessee shall waive all rights, each against the other, and
against those holding under or through the Lessor or Lessee, for damages caused by fire or other perils to
the extent covered by insurance where such damages are sustained in connection with the occupancy of the
Premises.

32. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS: The Lessee shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Materials to be
brought upon, stored, used, generated, released into the environment or disposed of on, in, under or about
the airport, without the prior written consent of the Lessor. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Lessee
hereby agrees to indemniff, defend, protect and hold harmless Lessor and Lessor's Agents, and their
respective successors and assigns, from any and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs,
liabilities and losses (including, without limitation, loss or restriction on use of rentable space or of any
amenity of the Premises and sums paid in settlernent of claims, attorneys' fees, consultant fees and expert
fees) which arise during or after the lease term directly or indirectly from the presence of Hazardous
Materials on, in or about the Premises which is caused or permitted by Lessee or Lessee's Agents. This
indemnification includes, without limitation, any and all costs incurred in connection with any investigation
of site conditions or any clean up remedial, removal or restoration work required by any federal, state or
local governmental agency or political subdivision because of the presence of such Hazardous Material in,
on or about the Premises or the soil or ground water on or under any building or any portion thereof. The
Lessee shall promptly notifz the Lessor of any releas e of Hazardous Materials at the airport, whether caused
by the Lessee or any other persons or entities.

Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor Lritials:

72



The Lessee shall promptly notifu the Lessor of; and shall promptly provide true, correct, complete and
legible copies of all of the following environmental items relating to any property at the airport which may
be filed or prepared by or on behalfof or delivered to or served upon, the Lessee: reports filed pursuant to
any self-reporting requirements, reports filed pursuant to any applicable laws, all permit applications,
permits, monitoring reports, workplace exposure and community exposure warnings or notices and all
other reports, disclosures, plans, manifests or documents (even those which may be characterized as
confidential) relating to water discharges, air pollution, water generation or disposal, underground storage
tanks or Hazardous Materials.

The Lessor shall have the right, but not the obligation, to inspect, investigate, sample and/or monitor any
property at the airport, including any soil, water, groundwater or other sampling, and any other testing,
diggrng, drilling or analyses, at any time, to determine whether the Lessee is complying with the
requirunents of this section, or of any other law, and in connection therewith, the Lessee shall provide the
Lessor with full access to all relevant facilities, records and personnel.

As used in this section, the term "Hazardous Materials" shall mean and include any hazardous or toxic
materials, substances orwastes including (A) anymaterials, substances or wastes which are toxic, ignitable,
corrosive or reactive and which are regulated by any local govemmental authority, any agency of the State
of Florida or any agency of the United States Government, (B) asbestos, (C) petroleum and petroleum-
based products, (D) urea formaldehyde foam insulation, (E) polychlorinated byphenyls ("PCBs"), and (F)
freon and other chlorofluorocarbons.

Prior to the execution of this Lease, Lessee shall complete, execute and deliver to Lessor a Hazardous
Materials Questionnaire in the form required by Lessor. The completed Hazardous Materials Questionnaire
shall be deemed incorporated into this Lease for all purposes, and Lessor shall be entitled to rely fully on
the information contained therein. On each anniversary of the commencement date of this lease, Lessee
shall complete, execute and deliver to Lessor an updated Hazardous Materials Questionnaire, in form as
may be modified by Lessor from time to time.

If the Lessee or any environmental inspection discloses the existence of Hazardous Materials in, on, under
or about the Prernises, the Lessee shall, at Lessor's request, immediately prepare and submit to Lessor
within thirty (30) days after such request a comprehensive plan, subject to Lessor's approval, specifuing
the actions to be taken by Lessee to retum the Premises to the condition existing prior to the introduction
of such Hazardous Materials. Upon Lessor's approval of such clean-up plan, Lessee shall, at Lessee's sole
cost and expense, without limitation on any rights and remedies of Lessor under this lease, or applicable
law, immediately implement such plan and proceed to clean up the Hazardous Materials in accordance
with all applicable laws and as required by such plan and this lease.

The provisions of this section, including, without limitation, the indemnification provisions set forth herein,
shall survive any termination of this lease.

Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor Initials:

73



33. STORMWATER POLLUTION: Lessee agrees to prepare and adhere to a Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan that meets the requirements of federal and state law and that is approved by Lessor. Lessee
agrees to provide a copy ofsaid plan to Lessor.

34. LITIGATION VENUE: The Lessor and Lessee waive the privilege of venue and agree that all litigation
between them in the State Courts shall take place in Levy County, Florida, and that all litigation between
them in the Federal Courts shall take place in the United States District Court for the Northern District of
Florida.

35. BENEFIT: This lease and all of the covenants and provisions thereof shall inure to the benefit of and be
binding upon the legal representative successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

36. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: APPLICATIONS INCORPORATED: This lease represents the complete
understanding between the Parties, and any prior agreunents or representations, whether written or verbal,
are hereby superseded. No agreement to modifo this lease will be effective unless in writing and executed
by the party against whom the modification is sought to be enforced. Any suchmodification on the part of
the Lessor shall not be effective unless considered at a public meeting and approved by majority vote of
the Williston City Council. All information provided by Lessee in the lease application process is
incorporated herein by reference. Lessee warrants that all information provided to

37.SECURITYDEPoSIT:Lessoracknowledgesreceiptof$-asasecuritydepositforfaithful
performance by Lessee of Lessee's obligations under this lease. If Lessee faithfully performs the lease
obligations and timely surrenders possession ofthe premises, Lessor will repay the security deposit, without
interest, within 30 days after expiration of the term. If Lessee vacates or is rernoved from the premises
because of Lessee's default before expiration of the term, Lessor may apply the security deposit to all
damages sustained. Any deposit balance that remains on the expiration date of the term will be paid to
Lessee within 30 days,

38. MEMORANDUM OF' LEASE AGREEMENT The parties hereto agree to execute a
mernorandum of this Land Lease Agreement to be recorded with the Clerk of Courts of Levy County,
Florida on or before sixty (60) days after the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Lease to be executed in duplicate this
day of 2022.

LESSEE:
BRANDON HERNANDEZ

BY

LESSOR:
CITY OF WILLISTON

BRANDON HERNANDEZ PRES IDENT, CITY COTINCIL

Lessee Initials:
Vacant Land Lease

BY

Lessor leitials:

74



ATTEST:
CIry CLERK

GUARANTY:

The undersigned, does hereby absolutely and unconditionally
guarantee ttte oUtigatio"s o Under this agreement, and waives att rights of
notice, demand and presentment hereunder.

GUARANTOR:

Individually

[*name individual*]

Lessee lnitials:
Vacant Land Lease

Lessor Initials:

75



Prepared by and return to:
City of Williston City Attomey
S. Scott Walker

MEMORANDUM OF LA]\D LEASE

THIS MEMORANDUM OF LEASE entered into this _ day of 202
by and between the City of Williston, Florida, (the "Lessor"), and Brandon Hemandez, (the "Lessee"),

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Lessor and the Lessee have entered into a Land Lease Agreement dated
2022, (the "Lease"), pursuant to which the Lessor leases to the Lessee that

certain real property herein described; and

WHEREAS, the Lessor and the Lessee desire to record certain basic terms of the Lease in the public records
of Levy County, Florida;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the parties do hereby confirm and set forth the following
terms of the Lease, it being acknowledged by the parties that the Lease contains additional terms not set forth
below and that the enforceability of such additional terms shall not be affected by their omission from this
Memorandum of Land Lease:

1. The Lessor has leased to the Lessee pursuant to the Lease the real property described with all
rights, privileges and easements appurtenant thereto (collectively, the "Premises"), to wit:

A parcel of land in the Southeast % of Section 12, Township 13 South, Range l8 East, Levy County, Florida;
being a portion of the Williston Industrial Sites, an unrecorded subdivision; being more particularly described
as follows:

Commence at the Southeast corner of said Section 12, said comer being on the centerline of U.S.
Highway No. 41 and run thence run South 00o13'08"West, along the centerline of said U.S. Highway
No. 41, a distance of 28.45 feet; thence North 89o35'30"West, a distance of I 154.56 feet to the East
right-of-way line of SW 8th Terrace and its Southerly Extension; thence North 00"43'20-East along
said East right-of-way line, a distance of 753.98 feet to the to the Point-of-Beginning of the herein
described parcel; thence continue North 00o43'20"East, a distance of 210.00 feet to the Southwest
corner of the Well Bilt Lease; thence South 89o25'30"East, along the South line of said Well Bilt
Lease, a distance of 210.00 feet; thence South 00o43'20"West, a distance of 210.00 feet; thence North

1

76



89o25'30"West, a distance of 210.00 feet to the said Point-of-Beginning Containing 1.012 Acres,
more or less.

2. Unless sooner terminated as provided in the Lease, the initial term of the Lease is for two years,
beginning on November I,2022 and ending on October 31,2024. The Lessee has an option pursuant to the
Lease to renew the Lease for five (5) additional two (2) year terms.

3. The Lease allows the Lessee to construct or place leasehold improvernents upon the premises,
however the Lessor's underlying fee interest shall not be subject to any construction lien related to such
improvements.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum of Land Lease this _ day of
2022.

LESSEE:
BRANDON HERNANDEZ

LESSOR:
CITY OF WILLISTON

BY BY:
BRANDON HERNANDEZ PRESIDENT, CITY COUNCIL

ATTEST:

CIry CLERK

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF LEVY

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _ day of 2022, by Debra
Jones, the President ofthe City Council of the City of Williston, and Latricia Wright, the City Clerk, on behalf
of the City. They arepersonally known to me and did not take an oath.

Notary Public

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF LEVY

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _ day of
Hemandez, who is personally known to me and did not take an oath.

Notary Public
Z

2022,by Brandon

77



McMillen Surveying, Inc.
444 Northwest Main Street
Williston, FL 32696
352 528-6277

BillTo

City of Williston
50 N.W. Main Street
Williston, Florida, 32696

lnvoice
Date lnvoice #

712512022 5694

Project Number

2022-158a

Description Amount

Boundary Survey creating a 1 acre Lease Parcel South of Well
Bilt on S.W. 8th Terrace at the Williston Airport which includes
setting property corners and writing the new legal description.
for: City of Williston
site: vacant (Lease Parcel 1808)

650.00

Please remit to above address.

Total $650.00

78



For dora intofrlton ploo!.
Forido Prol.!.ionol Su@tor o^d

uopp.r Uc.... No. B 5.09
Horido Prcr..llon.l Sury.ror o.d

!:pj:r qu!I9{ L!9L!9 1i9. E 90_1.1
Nfr VNO WOf ffE SEMruR€ &

oRErt[ saL oF A RsrM

no*usm--

STEPHEN M. McMltIEN. P.S.M.

d\s\

rB BLT 6E

t/2'@
'!druN

0.00' Ps s16s'

ul(J

E.
E,
IUF
I
Fo

=a

E

5

;

I
I

br
elol
Nr

-lbl
-Nlro;\tl
otz!

I

I
I
I

I

ddaw €eas /808
(C)Vdcant €and)

/ 0/2 l,vra:t

bq
o
6t

Fo
.Nr)*
oa

) CHECX W LM 
'l&rurNc DFrnff I

I FOR BUTUTNC :
<sE:|Eml

t, kdrye hEm 06 dld b on altumd Elu. ol |M €6'51'Eod ld
th. chtubd liil bdrff ! mdol d in o sml. codno h.M l|iilpod I
MX 1989' ond ! d.l.l rod ln o sncd. co.ing il.tu Tlltod lgag' d.nq lh.
Ebry .d9. d th NoltM-S@thd runrq. -id hdng t idslid vb th.
FdhH $ot. PhE turdind.! fd th. Flod& W.rl Zon..

20. Fdtu6 ond inp'!M6.li (1... roundonr dltild. lttc t6ib. .tc.) iot
vhlbb bn.d th. !ud6. d th. @!nd. hs not hn l6t.d !nlo! rFincory
4picb or dd hon, f o Fplic tonk i! lhdn uFon b. mp, il m!
rocoh ry pdlnq th. arclnd ont od not ry ffihuon, &dlbd dh ond
qtt tlnk m.y .rhi $i.h oF unboM to h. erryi
b, F66., Nfr-d xir.. ond FboL .hon h.t6 mq b dosr.td fd
pidoftl ruDo... ont ond .F not to .@la
c. tutsdy lin- .hould .ot 6. 

'H..@d 
bd o. dLbnc.! b

d, Mluon! o. d.l€td! b Suq fopr bt oth.r tun th .hnhg .uryr Ir
prehluld rfthout ydttln conldt d lh. rlg.ln! !u@.
.. fth .oil, do.t not dd d dd.din6 orn.Ehip.
l, ftb &pry t c.dff.d to lh. &t d th. doto lcqudilon in h. idd (!hom
h.'En or ludry dob). oNLY

J. lntumob d EGod dd.a Fsh.nb, dth-.f-$r. . d/or dtuEhic
,.8 funilh.d to th. tuMF dq a ru. Cohhfth..l No !.orch d U. BUlc
lurd. ho! b..n ds. by th. .{d4r lor ony .ncumftnc.. lor lubj.ct propd
or dj.inli{ peFdh!.

4. ft. bulBing ..i@ *dn h.En iln iobn f'm h. 6cod plat or
lnf.motion fumi.hd b lh. .utuSr oil, ft.do6, tr no blildlnq -tbck dr
rh. h.rcn, til. &a d lhply hd lh .m d. or luhjld prep-ty. lt h
.Sd.4 6y th. .uryr, thot oll tulrdlig r.tbo.b (stu .han or nd) oE
Etu d ft. Fp.. blildlry d.Fdnst rb th. cumnt zonlng of S. .ubjet

5. Sdlld Prep.dy .horn h.ron froy n. o dMdo. d o poront d bo.d on
i.formotiotr @idd bt th. diqt. lf e, thb rry do.. not q6odo .
blildng p.mit ond it i. eqqd.d lhd oil dvbb. or d.d .t lh. ptup.r
buil6.l d.po6.nt rilh th. clmd t.ning of lh. tubj*t prctsrt

6. lnfomoton t.m th. F.d.dl h.dnry k.oq.IEt A{@ry (tgII) Fod
h.uEno Rob lop .hoh k@n s. @mnt o ol b. .fl&rh or dik d.
ot .or mop, hp d.ion. ond om.ndddt! oro p.ddi.olt tu. W td.r ond
doy not b. dHd 6 rld mop.

s
\

N69'25'30"w 21

rG
s.-l il
3'. ie
tE i5
di le
td tfr
gr i.;

klfl
l9
I

I
I

I

i

I

I

I

I

I

i

I
I

I

i

I

I

Description: (by surveyor) - New Lease 1808
A parcel of land in the Southeast % of Section 12, Township 13 South, Range

18 East, Levy County, Florida; being a portion of the Williston lndustrial Sites, an
unrecorded subdivision; being more particularly described as follows:

Commence at the Southeast corner of said Section 12, said corner being on
the centerline of U.S. Highway No. 41 and run thence run South 00'13'08"West,
along the centerline of said U.S. Highway No. 41, a distance of 28.45 feet; thence
North 89'35'30"West, a distance of 1 1 54.56 feet to the East right-of-way line of SW
8th Terrace and its Southerly Extension; thence North 00'43'20"Easi along said
East rightotway line, a distance of 753.98 feet to the to the Point-of-Beginning of
the herein described parcel; lhence continue North 00"43'20"East, a distance of
2'10.00 feet to the Southwest corner of the Well Bilt Lease; thence Soulh
89'25'30"East, along the South line of said Well Bilt Lease, a distance of 210.00
feet; thence South 00'43'20"West, a distance of 21 0.00 feeu thence North
89"25'30"West, a distance of 210.00 feet to the said Poinlof-Beginning.

Containing 1.012 Acres, more or less.

ECENOT

I
o
o
a

L?l
lo!
(c)

rw.
(R.8.)

F.Ot.
P.U.E

P.U,S.E.

CH
B.S.

4rx4' CONC. TONUHEM aOUNO(N lDffi, UN6S Sflm)
IM ffKM roUND
t,/2' rrcN R@ SF IREO
a*t6 P.S.r. 54e'
r/2' tmN R@ sf, ffixEo
ms P.s.M. 543C'
ML 

' 
DM SS T8X rcP

'McHlB P.S,L ffi'
WW rcE
MSUNM
DSCRmil
4CUUED
rNnqm
ffiffiE EtrINC
POr[-f-@tlENcEfw
Pqm-oF-8EGr[NrNC
PUErc MW 6flEM
PUilC mW &WWE ffiES
cffm

e---- -
trE UNE
6W SRE ACrcR

j5 .f

oz

=r(,
=

P.O
gmN CORNN OF

SEMON 12, IqNSHIP IJsm. ruGE ta w,M COUW, ru&qMt & Dtg ruNo
7

(Mrc Sru)
N6rJ5'S1V 1t54.56'- 

**r, O*N-UE lpraphi,a Mub

/ inclt = 30f.

d,{E o/&oundary Muruey
Ryirg in tha OSouthaat //4 a/Maotnn /2, Gowruhp /3

Mouth, /8 @at, Rovy €aunty, gfbnda

15r t8
f

hir rudry m€€b th!
slondodr ol PrcDti.. &t

todfi ry th. florldo &od of
Suryryo6 A uorp.a,

purruont to Chopt.. S-17,
Foddo &miiiltdttu 6d., /.or.$ron!r srwFr\Mopp€r sleveorncaurvsing.com

79



Date: ll-08-2022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

RESOLUTION 2022-922

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA
APPROVING A PROPOSED FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR COUNTRY LANE
ESTATES; AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO EXECUTE THE
LAND LEASE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

REQUESTED BY: LAURA JONES, CITY PLANNER
PREPARED BY: KIERSTEN BALLOU, CITY ATTORNEY

FISCAL IMPACTS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

CONTRACT XX RESOLUTION 2O22.XX

LEASE XX OTHERDOCUMENTS

MAP

COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DENIED

80



CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTTOI] 2022-92

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, APPROVING A PROPOSED FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR
COUNTRY LANE ESTATES; AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL
PRESIDENT TO EXECUTE THE LAND LEASE AGREEMENT; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, a ptoposed final subdivision plat for Country Lane Estates, located off of NW
4th Avenue, between NW 4th Stteet and NW 7th Street, with the general location of 510 N\7 4th
Street, has been filed with the City; and

WHEREAS, the City of \Williston Planning and Zontns Commission approved the final
subdivision plat on October 25,2022; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has detetmined that the final subdivision plat for Country Lane
Estates meets all the relevant requitements of the Code of Ordinances and Land Development Code
of the City of Williston, Florida; ar.d

!7HEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the City's best interest to approve the
final subdivision play for Country Lane estates, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and
any other such documents as are required to frnahze this final plat; and

WHEREAS, the City Council apptoved the final subdivision plat on November 8,2022

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section L. The above recitals are true and accurzte and are hereby incoqporated and made pat
of this resolution.

Section 2. The City Council hereby approves the Final Subdivision Plat for Country Lane
Estates

Section 3. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANE

81



PASSED AND ADOPTED atzmeeting of the City Council this 8'h day of November2022.

BY THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT
oF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA:

DebraJones, City Council Ptesident

Attest, By the City Cletk of
the City of Williston, Flodda:

Latricia Wright, City Clerk

Approved as to Form and Legality:

S. Scott Walket, City Attomey
Kiersten N. Ballou, City Attomey

82



November 8,2022

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

Country Lane Estates - Final PIat

Applicant: A-Plus Homes DBA Armstrong Homes

Project: Country Lane Estates

FINAL PLAT MAP

iPlal t&,ok . Put
-st;'a o6ir rn,i, -

atitu+.--*.-
-g*Li.Y-r::-r.::F

@

. "1. ".'

."'9"

'-j-

1

I

.i --::
I
It,.1
li
t:

!ii-..)
,
1

I

/i=:=:=:l
t*ffi.'Es!-tru

'1\.\ .-^t**r

L
\.'$r

.sac.96cct
I

I

,*sn!,
I
I

,
I

t
I
t
I

r'#f i
'*>"-

LyhB

""1

I

""1
..t

ta

Lane lEstates

I
1

I
t

\\

IF...!.tZ

w edto)

-.J*-

*s;ti*

.,i,i"I"

i .- - ,

I

i-'

Il".i

-,1
--t

SUMMARY

Country Lane Estates falls under the description for a Major Subdivision and must follow Chapter
56 - SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS, of the Willison Code of Ordinances.

This project is located off of NW 4th Avenue, between NW 4th Street and NW 7th Street, with the
general location of 510 NW 4th Street. A-Plus Homes, Inc. A Florida Corporation DIBIA
Armstrong Homes is the owner and Steven M. McMillan, PSM, Surveyor is the Agent.

L

83



November 8,2022

Country Lanes Estates consists of 33.418 acres and 98 lots. Ingress/ egress to the development is
located off of NW 7th Street with 69 lots inside the subdivision and 29 lots with driveways located
off either NW 7th St., NW 4th Ave. or NW 4th St.

All lots meet the minimum setback requirements for a R-l-A zoning district. The final plat has
exact lot sizes and does meet minimum lot requirements. Easements have been put in place on the
plat to accommodate electric utilities, water, gas and sewer. Easements, tracts and right-of-way's
will be dedicated to the public. An easement has been added for electric utilities on the northern
part of the development. Common areas and drainage easements will be conveyed to the Country
Lane Estates Homeowners Association for ownership, management and maintenance.

Approval of this development complies with the Land Development Code for Major subdivision;
therefore, staff recommends approval. No major changes have occurred between the preliminary
plat approval and the final plat approval.

LEGAL REVIEW: None

FISCAL IMPACTS: None

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Recommendation to approve Final Plat for Country Lane
Estates.

ATTACHMENTS:

Application
Plat
Developer's Agreement

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

2

84



APPLICATION FOR SUBDIVISION PRELIMINARY PLANS
(Applies only to divlsion of land into 6 or more parcels)
(Please type or write very clearly)
C_ounty 9f 1 Approved Subdivision Name: @Parcel Number: #0471 7 -0A0-0O
Legal Description: ATTACHED
General Location and/or street Address: 510 NW 4t st. williston. FL 320g6
Project Area : 33.41 SA-C
# of Units; {8
Density:
Zoning: R-l-A
Typical Lot Size: 0.?90-0.OS3AC # of phases:
# Lots & Acres by Phase:
# Acres of Recreation Area: 0.p3?AC # Acres of Weflands
# Acres of Roads & RAIV: 4.611AC Public or Private Streets: public
Has this site been subject to any other development permil action in the last two years?
No lf Yes, provide the type of action and date of final action below.

D onrcrrudr

Attach a copy of the property Owner's Authorization form
Applicant Name: Steve M. McMillen. pSM
Email Sleve@mcsurvevino.com
Appllcani Address: 444 NW Main street. wiliston. FL 326g6
Applicant phone #: JS2-528-627T Cel Fnil Fav #
and/or E-mail:

Owner Name:
Email

(- l{

Owner Address: 160 UO Ll\'lL
Owner Phone #: 16". t8$-?tlll Fax and/orE-mail
Person to be oontacted regarding questions about this application (e.g. engineer,
architect, attomey, etc.):
Contact Name: Steve M. McMillen. pSM
Email: Steve@mcsurveylng. com

contact Address: 444 NW Main street. williston. Fl 32696
Phone #:352-52Q-62TT
Fax#: nla

Prelim inary Application City of Williston Page 1 of4

85



CERTIFICATION
l, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I have read lhe application and the relevant guidance
material and understand the requirements described therein and that I willfully comply with all
City, State and Federal regulations applicable to this project. I understand that the application
fee is non-refundable. I further understand that I am responsible to reimburse the City for the
actual advertising costs AND the actual consultants' review fees, if any. Said fees shall be paid
within 30 days of receipt of the City's invoice OR further processing of the application will cease
until the invoice is paid in full.
Applications need to be submitted by the 1"r of the month to be considered at the next Planni ng&
Zoning Commission meeting. Any and all supporting documents that need to be reviewed by the
Commission need to be submitted by the 1Srr, of the same month to be included in the packet for
revtew.
I understand

I be scheduled for review.

Date
OWNER'S APPLICATION AUTHORIZATION STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF
LEVY
(Requlred if the property owner of record is not the applicant)
Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared
being by me first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says:
1. That he/she is the property owner of the subject parcel(s) in this application. 2. That
he/she desires to apply for a Subdivision Preliminary Plans on land generally located at
(insert legal description)

3. That
he/she has appointed lo act as agent in
his/her behalf to accomplish the above,

Owner's Signature
This is to certify that on 20_before me, an officer duly

aforesaid, personally appearedauthorized to take acknowledgments in the State and County
he/she is personally known to me or has

produced
SEAL

as identification and Did (Did Not) Take an Oath.

Signature of Acknowledger

Acknowledger Name

Serial Number My Commission Expires

only application packages that are determined complete by the

who

Preliminary Application City of Williston Page 1 of4

86



State of Florida
County of Levy

Itd:
Presldenl of
the Platllng Process upon o

followlng parcellylng in:

Section
County:
State: Florida
ParcellD#

Ol{t) -66

Notary Pubflc, State of Flortda
At

Commisslon Expires;

McMillen $urveVing, lnc.
444 Northwest Main Streel

Willislon, Florida, 32696
Office: 352 528-6277

" on the

L*J,
* b.l*\f"{ A'**ruj LLL

hereby give Steplren M. McMillen, p.S.M,,
$urveying, lnc, the to act as my Authorized Agent to facilitate

Townshlp
,l_

South, Range \t East,

City: rJ.krL^

Date: TL

Date:

6lnt Udlol
NoftryPubllc

of Florlda
CommfHH005452
bryleas21612&5

87



8124122.4:13 PM

Annurl Roportq

RepoltYear
2022

Detail by Ently Name

Bftlgrlrlenuf$lale / 9rxfgjltl]rt4[i[t]!J / $eiu<:Lf{e,crrrt.tI / Se.rrrtrtrllEd$yl{Aue /

Detail by Entity Nanno
Florida Limited Liability Company

ARMSTROI\G I3ND, LLC

flllgg lntonuarlon

Document Number L21000101211

FEUEIN Number N/A

Date Filed 03nA2A21

State FL

Status ACTIVE

PrincinatAddrest

4600 W. CYPRESS STREET

surTE 200

TAMPA FL 3s607

Mailing Addrees

7OO N.W. 'IOTTHAVENUE

sutTE 400
MtAMl, FL33172

Eeglelemd Agent lleme & Address

CORPORATE CREATIONS NETWORK INC.

801 US HrGt-rWAY 1

NORTH PALM BEACH, FL33408

Aulbor*gil Person(sl.ehil

Name &Address

Tit|eAMBR

LENNAR HOMES, LTC
7OO N.W. IOTTHAVENUE. SUITE 4OO

MtAMr, FL33172

FIhd Date

o4n9PO?2

Documsntlfta$rs

Q4129r2A22.. ANNUAL R L|)OR I

. I {:,2rr,1.irri'nj-.

View rDage in PDF t)nt1nl

88



North American Title lnsurance Company
1855 Gateway Eoulevard, Suite 600 Concord CA 94520 {800} 374-84?s or (800) 869-3434

PROPERTY INFORMATION REPORTlr0Rilt ltrtlnt(Alr ItTtE IilsuRA[cE coMpAily

NATIC Property lnformetion Report {12-18-17)
Form: A.FL.I001

XNATIC
Agent File No: Country Lane Estales NATIC File No.: zo22-oB22s-FL

Date: Augusl23,2022 Effective Date: 08.17-2022at5:00 pm

Recipient / Agent / Customer: Lennar Title

Attn: Catherine P. Mueller, Esq.

Re: Country Lane Estates

Search From: 01-03-1 983 to: 08-17-2022

ln the Public Records of: Levy County, FL

Owner of Record:

Armstrong Land, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, by Virtue of Special Warranty Deed recorded in Official Records
Book 1582, Page 864, of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

Legal Description:

country Lane Estates

LEGAT DESCRIPTION ATTACHED HERETO AS EXHIBIT ''A'' AND MADE A PART HEREOF

Mortgage lnformation:

NO.

Judgment and Lien lnformation:

NO.

Tax lnformation:

Tax Year 2021.
Parcel/ Folio No.: 04777-000-00.
Gross Tax Amount: $1'1,960.24
Slalus of Taxes: PAID.

lnformational:

1) Recorded Notice of Environmental Resource Permit recorded in Official Records Book 1621, Page 439.

The above-caplioned property has been searched only by the above description and by no other description or name.
This report purposely omits reslriclions, easements, subdivision agreements and any reference to mortgages, judgrnents
and/or liens which appear to be satisfied of record or have expired pursuant to Florida Stalues.

2022-O8225-FL

89



Agent File No: Country Lane Estates NATIC File No.: 2O22-08225-FL

This report does not reflect those documents, if any, which may have been recorded prior (other than an assumed
mortgage) or subsequent to the time period covered herein and which may disclose the possible existence of
encumbrances, liens, rights, interests or other matters which may affect the subject property.

This report does not directly or indirectly set forth or imply any opinion, warranly, guarantee, insurance, or other similar
assurance. This report only discloses documents or information appearing in the Official Records as described in $28.222,
Florida Statutes, and in the records of a county tax collector pertaining to ad valorem real property laxes and special
assessmenis imposed by a government authority against real property. This report does not disclose documents or
informalion appearing in the Secretary of State filing office, or in any other stale or federal governmenlal filing office

pertaining to real or personal property or litigation of any type. Only conlractual remedies are available for an error or
omission that arises from the Property lnformation Report.

This report is not title insurance. Pursuant to $627,7843, Florida Stalutes, the maximum liability of the issuer of this
Property lnformation Report for errors or omissions in this Property lnformation Report is limited to the amount paid for
this Property lnformation Reporl, and is further limited to the person(s) expressly identified by name in lhe property
lnformation Report as the recipient(s) of the Property lnformation Report.

This Company expressly disclaims any liability for loss or damage resulting from reliance on this certificate in excess of
the amount paid to NORTH AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY for this Property Informalion Report.

NORTH AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY

ev: AMrW C.o+l.t-1,1a'
Andres Cassella, on behalf of North American Tiile Insurance Company,
and without any personal liability as abstractor or otherwise.

NATIC Property lnformation Report (12-18-17)
Form: A.FL.1001

2022-08225-FL

90



Agent File No: Country Lane Estates NAT|C File No.; 2022-08225-FL

EXHIBIT A

A parcel of land being a portion of the Southwest 7/4of Section 31, Township 12 South, Range
19 East, Levy county, Florida, being more particularly described as follows:

COMMENCE at the Northwest corner of the Southwest 1/4 af Section 31, Township 12 South,
Range 19 East; thence SB7o45'09"E, along the North line of said Southwest 1/4 of Section 31,
for
33.04 feet to the Southwest corner of Lot 18, Block 4, according to the plat of PINERIDGE
ESTATES, as recorded in Plat Book 5, Page 24, of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida,
same being the point of intersection with the East Right-of-Way line of NW 7TH STREET;
thence leaving said North line of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 31, S00o30'56"E, along said
East Right-of-Way line of NW 7TH STREET, for 305.24 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING;
thence leaving said East Right- of-Way line of NW 7TH STREET, S87o16'02"E, for 507.98 feet
to a concrete monument; thence 500035'41"W, for 331.00 feet to a concrete monument;
thence SB7o18'18"E, for 635.73 feet to the point of intersection with the West Right-of-Way
line of NW 4TH STREET; thence S00o49'51"E, along said West Right-of-Way line of NW 4TH
STREET, for 1,024.00 feet to the point of intersection with the North Right-of-Way line of NW
4TH AVENUE; thence leaving said West Right-of-Way line of NW 4TH STREET, N8Bo05'27"W,
along said North Right-of-Way line of NW 4TH AVENUE, for 1,091.94 feet to the Southeast
corner of that certain property as described in Official Records Book 1556, Page 889, of the
Public Records of Levy County, Florida; thence leaving said North Right-of- Way line of NW 4TH
AVENUE, N00o30'56"W, along the East line of said certain property as described in Official
Records Book 1566, Page 889, lying east of and parallel to said East Right-of- Way line of NW
7TH STREET, for 150.13 feet to the Northeast corner of said certain property as described in
Official Records Book 1566, Page BB9; thence NBBo05'27"W, along the North line of said
certain property as described in Official Records Book 1566, Page 889, lying North of and
parallel to said North Right-of-Way line of NW 4TH AVENUE, for 150.13 feet to the Northwest
corner of said certain property as described in Official Records Book 1566, Page 889, same
being the point of intersection with said East Right-of-Way line of NW 7TH STREET; thence
N00o30'56"W, along said East Right-of-Way line of NW 7TH STREET, for 1,222.29 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING.

Being one in the same as the lands described as follows:

The North U2 of the North 1/2 af Southwest t/4 of Southwest t/4 Excegtthe East 25 feet
thereof; and the Northwest L/4 of Southwest 1/4 Except the East 25 feet thereof, all in Section
31, Township 12 south, Range 19 East; Except the following described parcels:

Less and Except:

Commence at the Southwest corner of Lots 7 of J .J. Mixson Subdivision of the North L /2 ot
Section 31, Township 12 South, Range 19 East, thence run South 350 feet, thence run East
840 feet, thence Northwesterly along railroad right-of-way 11B2 feet, thence South 482 feet
to the Point of Beginning, all as described ln Deed Book Z, page L8t.

Less and Except:

NATIC Property lnformation Report (12-18-17)
Form: A.FL.1001

2022-08225-FL

91



Agent File No: Country Lane Estates NATIC File No.: 2022-08225-FL

Commence at the West 1/4 Section comer of Section 31, proceed thence South 87 degrees 14
minutes 35 seconds East a distance of 646.85 feet to the Point of Beginning continuing thence
South 87 degrees 14 minutes 35 seconds East a distance of 321 feet; thence South 00 degrees
47 minutes 59 seconds West a distance of 434,18 feet; thence South 87 degrees 32 minutes
35 seconds East a distance of 395.16 feet; thence South 00 degrees 39 minutes 50 seconds
West a distance of 203.85 feet; thence North 87 degrees 14 minutes 35 seconds West a
distance of 715,20 feet; thence North 00 degrees 39 minutes 50 seconds East a distance of
636.00 feet to the Point of Beginning,

Less and Except:

Commence at the Northwest corner of the Southwest U4 of Section 31, Township 12 South,
Range 19 East, thence South 89 degrees 12 minutes 10 seconds East 33 feet to a concrete
monument and the Point of Beginning; thence continue South 89 degrees 12 minutes 10
seconds East 613.95 feet to a concrete monument; thence South 1 degrees 20 minutes 00
seconds East 305 feet; thence North 89 degrees 10 minutes 38 seconds West 608.15 feet to
the East right-of-way line of Northwest Seventh Street; thence North 2 degrees 15 minutes 30
seconds West along and with the said East right-of-way line of Northwest Seventh Street to
the Point of Beginning.

Less and Except:

For a point of reference, commence at the Northwest corner of Southwest L/4 of Section 31
thence South 89 degrees 12 minutes 10 seconds East 646.95 feet to a concrete monument;
thence South 01 degrees 20 minutes 00 seconds East 635.89 feet to a concrete monument;
thence South 89 degrees 13 minutes 00 seconds East720.34 feetto the East line of the West
1/2 of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 31 and the Point of Beginning; thence North 89
degrees 13 minutes 00 seconds West 84.70 feet to the West rlght-of-way line of NW 4th
Street; thence South 2 degrees 45 minutes 20 seconds East along said right-of-way line
1023.90 feet to its intersection with the North right-of-way line of NW 4th Avenue; thence East
on an extension of said North right-of-way line of NW 4th Avenue 66.91 feet to the East line of
said West U2 of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 31; thence North along said East line 1023
feet, more or less, to close on the Point of Beginning.

Less and Except:

For a point of reference, cornmence at the Southwest corner of the North t/2 of the North 1/2
of the Southwest I/4 of the Southwest 114 of Section 31, Township 12 South, Range 19 East;
thence run Eastalong the South line of said North Ll2of the North t/2of the Southwest t/4 of
Southwest t/4 33.03 feet to a found iron pipe on the Easterly right-of-way line of Northwest
7th Street and the Point of Beginnlng; thence continue East, along said South line and the
North right-of-way line of Northwest 4th Avenue 150.0 feet; thence North 02 degrees 25
minutes 30 seconds West, parallel with said Easterly right-of-way line of Northwest 7th Street,
150.0 feet; thence West parallel with sald North right-of-way line of Northwest 4th Avenue
150'0 feet to the Easterly right- of-way line of Northwest 7th Street; thence South 02 degrees
25 minutes 30 seconds East, along said Easterly right'of-way line, 150 feet to close on the
Point of Beginning,

Less and Except the lands conveyed in Deed Book 61, Page 417 and Official Records Book
1OL2, Page 709 of the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

Less and except any portion lying within the right of way of NW 4th Avenue, NW 7th Street and
NW 4th Street.

NATIC Property lnformation Report (12-18-17)
Form: A.FL.1001

2022-O8225-FL

92



r: $27.{l{f Deed Doc: $1,155.00 Danny J. Shipp,Clerk of the Circuit Court Levy FL Deputy Clerk MKA

lVarranty Degd (u,!rhd Lrulry conp.ny,

Tblr Indcnturc, oade , Novcmbcr G,20tt AJ).
Bctwcen Park Placc Ertrtcr, LLC, wfiom post

33771 undcr tlro low of tho Sbte of, Oaantor

t, Sur+c lrL
I gq. wa,lcn, FL

a3?60
Orantct.

. Wlnarrclh, fiat rho srid Onntor, for ud in sonrldcruion of rhe nmr of Tcn rnd No/100 Dollrn ($10.0{t ), to h in hand
!u-ti bf dtl uld onnicc, tho raqlry vhorcof ls horcby rctnowlodged hu grrnrci, brrgtbrld snd rold ro rttc csil c.antrr ioi."*, t t
followlog d$cribcd l!tl4 Biturrq Mng ond bolng ln rho county of tarry, srni ornorlcr,-towtr;

Sc! Ail.chcd Erhlblt "4"

Subject to oxcr for dtc crrfqrt yc!r, covenrnts, rrtlrictlonr snd ersomonE ofrecord, lfrny.

Parccl ldcnrlllcariotr Nrnbar tdm00000

And tho cald Gnatoitoof hctby fully wmnt Oro lillo lo mld trtld, and will dofond dro rnmo rgalrut tho tawftt oblrur of an
parronr $ltorrsorvcr.

In Wtnesr WhGr€ofi' 0ro dd Grarmq hlr nuscd thlr lnsiumc$t !o bc oxccutcd lo its n.rm by its dtly luthorltod onkor
End c!u.d lts corponE tsll io bo rfn r.d ho {ry lrl pr finr lbovo wrlncn.

Prrk Plrcc Ertrtcr, LL€

Slgned and Sealcd ln Ow Prcscncet

Mrrlrgcr

(CoryoFtctrlD
ilbDbr NL

ttllo 5tfrr 5+n Jofl.x;siouss.ffi (r
rnd A-Pl!! Homrr, lne, r llorldr corporrtlon d/b/r

u" f ary * l!.0lh rn b, r .20t E, by Rore,uny B pirza, Mrarycr rnd
a llmhed llablllly coopUly cnl*ing under rhc lrw8 of thc Sirtc of Florldr, on

J.

Slot of
Co{llryol Ss,k

-.- 

ar ldcndficltlon

MyCommlslon Eplru:;

Suna,r-^re tcor. S{u.r- -r**n
$#rf"*l!* S..zo^],". K"t S*r',., t

a

Recodrnd Rctum to:
Pr.t$dbyln6ld3nt lto

_ pf.Dlntlor of i dtlo poliqr by;
{l ldth vqipa ucmdoycoof

^ /- Supelor Titlo lnnrnnco A3ency of Mrrion Counly, Lt C,
\, 421 Sonth Plno Awnuc

Ocat+Flodde 31471
Fne Nunbcr: 9t814 # Nolrry Ar![c &ad HdLtr

eurma lLy8dno
lrr Comlldulin BO tzsilxElptllttflt,Aoil

Ewl6 Coryontc Docd/l*ltr

93



Exhibit I'Ail

TheNorth l/2 of the North 1/2 of Southwest l/4 of Southwest l/4 Except the East 25 feetthereof; and the
Northwest l/4 of Southwest 1/4 Except the East 25 feet thereo{ all in Section 31, Township 12 South, Range 19
East; Except the following described Parcels:

Less and Except;

CommenceattheSouthwestcorneroflntsT of J.J. Mixsonsubdivisionof theNorth l/2ofSection3l,
Township 12 South, Range 19 East, lhence run South 350 feet, thence run East 840 fe€t, thence Northwesterly
along railroad right-of-way I182 fcet,lhence South 482 feet to the Point of Beginning, all as described in Deed
Book Z, Page l8l.

Less and Except:

Commence at the West l/4 Seotion comer of Section 31, proceed thence South 87 degrees 14 minutes 35
seconds East a distance of 646-85 feet to the Point ofBeginning continuing thens€ South 87 degrees 14 minutes
35 seconds East a distance of 321 feet; thence South 00 &grees 47 minutes 59 seconds West a distance of
434.18 feet; thence South 87 degrees 32 minutes 35 seconds East a distance of 395.16 feet; thence South 00
degrees 39 minutes 50 seconds West adistanee of 203.85 fu; thence North S? degrees 14 minutes 35 seconds
West a distance of 715.20 feet; thence North 00 degrees 39 rninutes 50 seconds East a distance of 636.00 feet to
the Point of Bcginning.

Less and Except:

Commence at the Northwcst corner of the Southwest l/4 of Section 31, Tougrship 12 South, Range 19 Easq
thence South 89 degrees 12 minutes 10 seconds East 33 feet to a concrete mbnuuicnt and the Point of
Beginning; thence continue South 89 degrees 12 rninutes 10 seconds East 613.9J feel to a concrete monument;
lhence South I degrees 20 rninutes 00 seconds East 305 feet; thence North 89 degrees l0 minutes 38 seconds
West 608.1 5 feet to the East dght-of-way line of Northwest Seventh Street; thence North 2 degrees 15 minutes
30 seconds West along and with the said East right-of-way line of Northwest Seventh Sbeet to the Point of
Beginning.

Lcss and Except:

For apoint of reference, corumence at the Northwest comer of Southwest l/4 of Section 3l thence South 89
degrees 12 minutes l0 seconds East 646.95 feet to a consret€ motrument; thence South 0l degrees 20 minutcs
00 seconds East 635.89 feet to a conctets monumentl thence South 89 degrees 13 minutes 00 seconds East
720.34 feet to the East line of the West l/2 of the Southwest tl4 of said Section 3 I and the Point of Beginning;
thence North 89 degrees 13 minutes 00 seconds West 84.70 feet to the West right-of-way line ofNW 4th Streiq
thence South 2 degrees 45 minutes 20 seconds East along said right-of-way line 1023.90 feet to its intersection

File Number: 91814
Lcgol Doscription - Exhlbit A

94



with the North right-of-way line of NW 4th Avenue; thence East on an extension of said Nortfi right-of-way line
of NW4thAvenue66.9l feettotheEastlineofsaidWest t/2ofthesouthwest l/4of saidSection3l;thence
North along said East line 1023 feet, rnoFe or less, to close on the Point of Beginning.

Less and Except:

For a point of reference, commenge at the Southwest corner of the North l/2 of the North l/2 of the Southwest
l/4 of the Southwest t/4 of Section 31, Township 12 South, Range 19 East; thence run East along the South line
ofsaidNorth l/2oftheNorth l/2of theSouthwest t/4of Southwestll4S3.O3feettoafoundironpipeonthe
Easterly dght-of-way line of Northwest 7th Steet and the Point of Beginning; thence sontinue Eas! along said
South line and theNorth right-of-way line of Northwest 4th Avenue 150.0 feet; thence North 02 degrees 25
minutes 30 seconds West, parallel with said Easterly right-of-way line of Northwest ?th Stree! 150.0 feet;
thence West parallel with said North right-of-way line ofNorthwest 4th Avenue 150.0 feet to the Easterly
right-of-way line ofNorthwest 7th Street; thence South 02 degrees 25 minutes 30 seconds Eas! along said
Easterly right-of-way line, 150 feet to close on the Point of Beginning.

Less and Except the lands convelcd in Deed Book 61, ?age 417 and Offrcial Recorrds Book 1012, Page ?09 of
the Public Records of Lerry County, Florlda,

Less and excepl any portion lying within ffre right of way ofNW 4th Avenue, NW 7th Street and NW 4th $trcet

File Number: 91814
Lcgal Dcsorlplon - Exhibit A

95



96



\
*\

p

COUNTY

51106 a -l*rrrrr j
l^:

Jtr'i$,os
.sunH!.u Hnl,t

o

e

I

I

,y"

dJ6

a

t
a

'

lr

6
oII

tJrriotrt I

tq'oN Jvn 33S 5*s* ?.pt TWF. lE t.
RGE. Ig E.

6evg Countg , Florlda

E:
oP"l

'=E 
3

a9*
l

g_

i9-
o3
fs
j

$nrf

aa!Jol

tr " l/"ii rffi
t
E

a

1
ui0iYJts
g

frt
-

U

lI
F
o
c
tr
I
U
Lrt

[lJ
J
F
F

u

@s

o
u

il
h:

ir a

I"! -
Eg r?

r

isig;
?;:,i3

i2

t;q

'rv oe
of t1t rvt

lsunttltNA

"4il"I IUH

: lsl
a

It

;s{

t.{

bB r9u P

!rFtr{
u

{
ifi
siit
i---_T

Er
e$s?u

FJ
E!

g
U

I
{D

stxort
v.r03 r o3!J1V

trv

uc

u! 4
d

1,."
T':lli
li3il-.
ffisi

@
d!i?

@
rq

2
c.

:
lr,
lrj
a4

t9s t- 1996 t99Z Bqt ,61 ,Mt

97



f A-Asricuuurar

I c-1 - commerciat Generar

I cBD - centrar Business Disrricr

f r-tndusrriar

f P-pubric

m PD- pranned Deveropmenr

I eP - euasi-Pubtic

C-2 - Commercial lnlensive

R-1 - Residenlial Single-Family

R-1 -A R€sidential Single-Family

R-2 - Residential Duplex

RB - Residential Business

REC/O - Recreation/Open Space

RM-1-A- Residential Mobile Home

RM-2 - Residential Multifamily

RVP - Recrealional Vehicle Park

Sl - Spray lrrigation

U - Unknown

$#'#i*.Bi

I
I
ffirt
ffi
I

S,ti*t
t*t4

CITY OF WITLISTON
FLORIDA

2O2O ZONING MAP

OlSChlMER; Thla mp.ndhrdlglbldd8 16 lo, plsnnlng purpos€t
ontsnd.hould notbour€dlodat€mtiathoprocileloBUooof rny
L.to6 ThoClly of Wllirlon prdldos nowanonly lot ho sEumcy
or aElladlily ol lho d.t6

DISCUIMER: lha t €vyCo!nty PropsdyAppralso/soltiq deg not
bks rnpomlbllily fd €roG andd ohnkslons Eg6dln! blr hsptn!

Tnli
lnd .hluld notb .a aly

F

it
I

jt

I

0 0,25 0.5 1 Miles

98



E)

See Sheet (wo

Jee Jnl

N.W. 4rH AVENUE

Qraphic Smte

t Acfr =100ft.

N.W- 4Tri pLAcE

N.W. 4rH AVENTJE

Country Lane (Estotes
Lling in tfre Soitfrwest 1/4 of Section 31, townsfiip

12 Soutfi, RAnge tS East, Citl of Wiflistoq
County of Lerry, State of f[orifa

EXCEPTION PARCEL NO. 6(Nor A PARI cF THLs PLAI)

UNE TABLE

L5
N66 17'rE1v 150.r4'(M)

wEsr 150-0'(D)
Lz+

N0O,I4'+9'W 1 49.E7'(M)
NOZ2s'5Ol'r lsO.O'(D)

)
F

c

(
-*a.r* )

P

=

-1'et ( I hreel
I

j

I

_, - __l

-.l
j

---l
I

l

E
?

I

I
i
a

=

f

b b. Pdd d bhi4 lodnu i! s..6

6dnu.euh&a&d 12frru410r@d Ed

! M6 N'dh 2 4!6.1 l 5 hid.! $ $.6* w[':4

I
t
I
I
I
E

I
se s! 14 or ut $tu 3r :d s. Fcn d tuiil4]

odr w6r s.70 iar io s. w.n dd{
tud oi s lnoil,h d aa Nqd 4sd4

difuz6ful:dh.Pciid h
roddr4r:,iEotNtud4hA 6nitu6@!dd'w.n, dbs6d Er66
@!d{y r ic or khrcil 7h s6| r
6s .a64 4h!tur [r d Notut

7
?
6
I

i

N.W. 5TH AVENUE

) l.

I

6rH

I

*"-

\

I

"+oi$l+s^rl$-

tt

N.W. 5TH LaNE

I

o

b\t"
'{t!-4t

r*

r)

EXCEFTION PARCEL NO, 2
(NOr A PART 0F Trrs PLATI

4LL^'']&^ 
EXCEPTION PARCEL No- 5siigir:r 4 F-dr Dr rB ., pLA

a?

CEtfof tfr, Cturt:

cqs4, hde, bi.,_ q d

5utue).j<gqutwnts:
l!6d s. t.r b 66iliy rc
Fsb $dh *r hE d litu rrq dE

ffi

--dk0)ed@bb.4imddtuedrdb,
tutu r6ddd€'dd&ffin,@ (D

d ld.dh
ekd.n.iddrtu-ot.{.
da'did ad dr frr ffi d
tsbr.dlh!tsih&riFda.Mh6
d tuice qm. ed, h h dii.i d rn 6

Cfriftate ofAry@dtdnl
A.c.ptunce ofbedicatiw

Gt did tdd.n

ryod

-

@dh4turrd4

Slat Eook . (Paae

sfieetffiif,rfrrie-

99



I

Country,Cane Estates
Lyng in tfre So'itfrwest 1/4 of Section 31, (ownsfrip

12 Soutfi, futnge 19 East, City of '1,/it[iston,
County of Lerry, State of Ffori[a

i

i

l

I

i

I

I

I

z
€
!
I

i
A]
ml
mi
--t l

I

i

I

60E.1 DETAIL "A''

l

.l

E

l

E
a.

\ s'.14

I

l 7

=F
a

tn
m
m
--l

I
I

l

L

.-.L L

sl
I
i

i
z
q
ul

d

o
o

t l

- .. .i
ll

I

fl4atcfrfine,-". j
T

L__ L-_

[hree Qrapfric Scate

r-'l

-l 1.. - ,j

T--"- I

l
I

l

I
f

1r-
zl

El

T-

i

L, -_ I

I --- I
l

L--, --j _ -_l

- -- I

L-,- - ,__l

I

l

_-_r_4': _

See

l

1 inch =50ft.

l

Sheet

100



I

DETAI "8"

L!I8 TA!!E
L5

NEAl7'1Ev 1s0.14'(M)
wEsr 1s0.0'(D)

L4
N0o44'49v 149.67'(M)
N0225'30'VJ 150.0'(D)

Country.f,ane Estates
Lying in the Soutfiwest 1/4 of Section 31,'Townsfiip

12 South, fumge 19 East, City of 'liliffistott,
Countl of Lny, State of Fforifa

See Sheet two
z
c
ol

=

P

7

=+-
@
Iv
m
m;

I

-l

l l
i..

I

?rB I

r' 8lil
_ _l

l
I L

-l
el

l

7

=F4

+a
m
m
I=

=
i

I
n
m
m
--t

I

I

L

l

--l
!

l
Qrapfiic Scafe

#
t incfr =50ft.

J_

i ::r*"

-- . -l - .l

,^. --._ l

i

i:l=r.

L- --_ j t.--

L _ .l

ll:r=

a-l

ll::= ii:,:r=i

a
d.

'.t

L__l

l

.l

I

i.:::::l

l-.."..,

I
I

l

I -- -t

L-_-_ l

L- ..1

t- =,

iyr=

f- - -

t.--.1

l

l

L

T'-I

----_ri

N.W. 4TH AVENUE
NEa2o'it\v 1091.98'

N.W. 4TH AVENUE

Sfieet

101



This Instrument Prepared by and Return To:
W. James Gooding III
Gilligan, Gooding, Batsel, Anderson & Phelan, P.A.
l53l SE 36th Avenue
Ocala, FL3447l

Record and Return to
City of Williston
50 NW Main Street
Williston, FL 32696

Rec. $_
DEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT

THIS DEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT, by and between:

Armstrong Land, LLC, a Florida limited liability company ("Developer"), whose mailing address
is 700 N.W. l07th Avenue, Suite 400, Miami, FL33172; and

City of Williston, Florida, a Florida municipal corporation, whose address is 50 NW Main Street,
Williston, FL 3269 6, ("City").

WHEREAS

Developer owns the Propertyl within the municipal limits of City.

Developer intends to develop the Property as the Subdivision pursuant to the Plat.

Developer has submitted the lmprovement Plans and Preliminary Plat to City.

Developer and City desire to enter into this Agreement pursuant to Section 56-16(9) of the City
Code.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Developer and City
agree as follows:

1. Definitions. As set forth herein, the following terms have the following meanings:

1 . I . Improvement Plans - The improvement plans prepared by Burrell Engineering, Inc. for the
Subdivision Improvements.

1.2. Plat - A plat of the Subdivision to be recorded in the Public Records of Levy County,
Florida.

1.3 Preliminary Plat - The preliminary platprepared by McMillen Surveying, Inc.

Property - The real property described in the attached Exhibit A.1.4.

a

a

A.

B.

C.

D.

I Terms capitalized herein and not otherwise defined herein are defined in paragraph I below

102



1.5. Subdivision - The residential subdivision known as "Country Lane Estates" to be
established pursuant to the Plat.

1.6. Subdivision Improvemenls - The improvements to the Property necessary to develop it as

the Subdivision.

2. City Approval. City hereby approves the Improvement Plans and Preliminary Plat.

Jurisdiction. The City shall have and exercise exclusive jurisdiction over the review and approval
of plans and specifications for public facilities in accordance with this Agreement.

4. Developer Covenants. Developer hereby covenants and agrees:

4.1. Developer shall construct the Subdivision lmprovements pursuant to the Improvement
Plans and the provisions of Section 56-29 of the City Code (except to the extent such
provisions are inconsistent with the Improvement Plans).

3

The total number of lots within the Subdivision shall be 98

All common areas within the Subdivision shall be conveyed to a homeowners' association
established for the Subdivision pursuant to Chapter 720, Florida Statutes, which shall
thereafter maintain the common areas. Each common areas shall be identified as a
"Drainage Area/Common Area" (or similar phrase) on the Plat.

4.4. The building setbacks shall be as depicted on the Plat.

Homeowners Association. The Articles and Bylaws of any Homeowner's Association ("HOA")
for the Property and any deed restrictions related thereto shall be furnished to the City for approval
by the City Attorney prior to the recording thereof in the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.
Such recording shall take place before a Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the first development
project on land covered by this Agreement. The HOA shall at a minimum be responsible for
maintaining the common open space, and any common utility systems, consistent with this
Agreement. The Developer shall be responsible for establishing the HOA and recording said
information in the Public Records of Levy County, Florida. The City is not responsible for the
enforcement of any agreements or deed restrictions entered into between property owners or
occupiers of the Property. If maintenance of the Property is not maintained following issuance of a
Certificate of Occupancy, the City has Code Enforcement Services.

6. Lift Station Improvements

6.1. Developer intends to utilize an existing City lift station located at near the northwest corner
of the Subdivision.

6.2. City has advised Developer that in order for Developer to utilize the lift station, it will
likely need to be upgraded, or that a new lift station will need to be constructed, to
accommodate wastewater from the Subdivision.

Developer will design, permit and construct either upgrades (the "LS Upgrades") to the lift
station, or a new lift station (the "New LS"), pursuant to the following procedures:

4.2.

4.3.

5

2

6.3

103



7

8.

6.3.1. Within three (3) months of the date of this Agreement, Developer will submit to
City proposed plans for the LS Upgrades. City will review the proposed plans to
confirm that the lift station can be upgraded pursuant to the plans. If City
determines the lift station cannot be upgraded, Developer will submit to City
proposed plans for the New LS.

6.3.2. Following City's approval of the plans, Developerwill obtain all permits necessary
to construct the LS Upgrades or the New LS, as the case may be and thereafter
shall construct the LS Upgrades or the New LS with all due diligence.

6.3.3. Developer shall complete the construction of the LS Upgrades or the New LS prior
to the issuance of any certificate of occupancies for homes within the Subdivision.

Tree Preservation. Developer will install at least two shade trees (as defined in Section 44-10 of
the City Code) of no less than 2 and one-half inch DBH (as defined in Section 44-10 of the City
Code) on each lot in connection with the construction of the home on such lot.

Subdivider's Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the "subdivider's agreement" referred to in
Section 56-16(9) of the City Code.

Natural Gas Lines.

9.1 City will install, at its expense, natural gas lines within the Subdivision to the boundaries
of the platted lots within the Subdivision. The gas lines may be installed within streets,
within platted utility easements, or within additional easements to be provided by
Developer to City for the installation and maintenance of the gas lines. The parties
anticipate that the gas lines will be located in the same easements as for electric utility
providers if the required separation can be maintained. City shall coordinate its
construction of the gas lines consistent with Developer's time frame for completion of the
Subdivision Improvements.

9.2. Developer shall cause all builders of homes within the Subdivision to either install
appliances or other equipment that utilize natural gas within each home or, if the builder is
building a custom home, to provide the purchaser with the option to include such
appliances or other equipment.

10. Insurance

10.1. Prior to start of construction of the public improvements, Developer shall provide, at no
cost to the City, a policy or policies of insurance naming the City as additional insured on
a primary and noncontributory basis from insurance companies acceptable to the City and
licensed in the State of Florida. The insurance coverage shall be consistent with City City's
reasonable requirements and the following.

10.2. The insurance coverage required by this paragraph shall include the coverage specified
above with policy limits of not less than $1,500,000.00 Combined Single Limit general
liability and $ 1,500,000.00 Combined Single Limit automobile liability (including, but not
limited to, bodily injury (including death) and property damage) per occurrence. These
minimum limits may be met through a combination of primary and umbrella insurance
policies. The commercial general liability insurance coverage shall include completed
"incident" as opposed to "claims made" insurance coverage and liability insurance

9

-)

104



t2.

applicable to Developer's obligations under this Agreement. All such insurance shall
remain in effect until the City issues its written notice of the release of Security of the
completed Project. In addition, Developer shall maintain "incident" as opposed to "claims
made" insurance for at least one (l) year after the City issues its written notice of release
of Security. Developer shall furnish the City with evidence of the continuation of all such
insurance at the time of issuance of the notice of release of Security.

10.3 Prior to commencing any work on the Project, Owner will furnish to the City a certificate
of insurance evidencing the required coverage.

10.4. The furnishing of the aforesaid insurance shall not relieve Owner of its obligation to
indemniff the City in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.

I L Ownership and Maintenance of Streets and Utilities

I I. L Following Developer's construction of water and sewer lines, it will, upon request of City,
execute and deliver to City a bill of sale for the lines, which shall thereafter maintain such
lines.

11.2 Following Developer's construction of the other Subdivision Improvements (including any
LS Upgrades or New LS required by paragraph ), City will thereafter maintain such
Subdivision Improvements, together with the natural gas lines installed by City pursuant
to paragraph .

Inspection of Public Improvements Required. Public improvements shall be inspected and tested
for compliance with the City's requirements by the City's Public Works Director or its designee.
The Developer shall noti$ the City of the need for an inspection consistent with the City's
requirements. The City shall have the right to inspection of all construction work being performed.
If the City's Engineer or Construction Inspector finds upon inspection that any of the public
improvements have not been constructed in accordance with the approved construction plans, the
City's development or designs standards, then, the Developer shall be responsible for completing
and correcting the deficiencies (at its expense) such that they are brought into conformance with
the applicable standards. Any change in design that is required during construction shall be made
by a licensed professional engineer. All revisions shall be approved by the City's Public Works
Director.

13. Limitation. Nothing in this Agreement shall

13.1. Supersede or take precedence over any existing ordinances, regulations or codes ofCity

13.2. Require City to waive any provisions of Florida law or its ordinances, policies or police
powers, including, without limitation, provisions related to required budgeting procedures.

13.3 Deprive City of the right to exercise all powers it has under Florida law and its Charter and
ordinances related to the development of real property and the provision of public services.

Ownership. Developer represents to City that Developer is the owner of the Property and has
authority to enter into this Agreement. Upon request of City, owner will provide City a current title
opinion, acceptable to City, evidencing owner's ownership of the Property and right to enter into
this Agreement.

4

t4

105



I7

l8

15 Recordation. The Parties hereto agree that an executed original of this Agreement shall be recorded
by the City, at the Developer's expense, in the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

16, Binding Obligations

16.1. This Agreement and all amendments hereto shall be recorded in the public records of Levy
County. In addition, all assignments of this Agreement shall be recorded in the public
records of Levy County and a copy of the recorded assignment shall be delivered to the
City as a condition to the City having notice of the assignment or having the assignment
binding upon the City.

16.2. All obligations and covenants of Developer under this Agreement shall constitute
covenants running with the land, and shall bind Developer and each successive owner of
all of any portion of the Property; provided, however, the terms of this Agreement shall (i)
not be binding on the owner of any residence that is purchased by such owner from a
homebuilder, and (ii) be subordinate to the lien of (and shall not be binding on) any
mortgagee who finances or refinances residences constructed on the Property.

Releases. From time to time upon written request of Developer, the Council President and City
Manager, or designee of their choice, shall execute, in recordable form, subject to approval as to
form by the City Attorney, a partial release of this Agreement if the requirements of this Agreement
have been met, subject to the continued application of the Building Codes and the Development
Regulations.

Estoppel Certificates. From time to time upon written request of Developer, the Council President
and the City Manager, or a designee of their choice, will execute a written estoppel certificate,
subject to approval as to form by the City Attorney, identifying any obligations of Developer under
this Agreement that are in default or, with the giving of notice or passage of time, would be in
default; and stating, to the extent true, that to the best knowledge and belief of the City, Developer
is in compliance with its duties and obligations under this Agreement, except as expressly
identified. The City is entitled to recover all of the City's out-of-pocket expense for gathering the
information required to sign the estoppel certificate, including professional and consulting fees and
related expenses, and such expense shall be paid prior to the City releasing the estoppel certificate.

19 Subordination/Joinder. Unless otherwise agreed to by the City and if applicable, all prior liens,
mortgages, and other encumbrances that are not satisfied or released of record must be subordinated
to the terms of this Agreement or the Lienholder must join in this Agreement. It shall be the
responsibility of the Developer to promptly obtain the said subordination or joinder, in form and
substance that is acceptable to the City Attorney, prior to the execution and recordation of this
Agreement.

20 Attorney's Fees. If any legal action or other proceeding (including, without limitation, appeals or
bankruptcy proceedings) whether at law or in equity, which: arises out of, concerns, or relates to
this Agreement, any and all transactions contemplated hereunder, the performance hereof, or the
relationship created hereby; or is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement, or because of an
alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any provisions of this
Agreement, the successful or prevailing parry or parties shall be entitled to recover reasonable
attorney's fees, court costs and all expenses even ifnot taxable as court costs, incurred in that action
or proceeding, in addition to any other relief to which such party or parties may be entitled.

5

106



2t Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

22. Notices.

22.1. All notices, requests, consents and other communications (each a "Communication")
required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing (including emailed
communication) and shall be (as elected by the person giving such notice) hand delivered
by messenger or courier service, emailed or mailed by Registered or Certified Mail
(postage pre-paid), Return Receipt Requested, addressed as follows or to such other
addresses as any party may designate by Communication complying with the terms of this
paragraph:

22.1 .l . For City: Jackie Gorman, City Manager, 50 NW Main Street, Williston, FL 32696;
email: city.manager@willistonfl . org.

With copy to: Jonathen Bishop, Public Works Director, 50 NW Main
Street, Williston, FL 32696; email: jonathen.bishop@willistonfl .org.

With copy to: Laura Jones, Community Development Director, 50 NW
Main Street, Williston, FL 32696; email: city.planner@willistonfl .org.

22.1.2. For Developer: Chris Armstrong, 1415 SW 17th Street, Ocala, FL34471; emarl
chris@armstronghomes.net.

22.2. Each such Communication shall be deemed delivered:

22.2.1. On the date of delivery if by personal delivery;

22.2.2. On the date of email transmission if by email (subject to paragraph22.5); and

22.2.3. If the Communication is mailed, on the earlier of: (a) the date upon which the
Return Receipt is signed; or (b) the date upon which delivery is refused.

22.2.4. Notwithstanding the foregoing, service by personal delivery delivered, or by email
sent, after 5:00 p.m. shall be deemed to have been made on the next day that is not
a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday.

a.

b.

22.3.

22.4.

22.s.

If a Communication is delivered by multiple means, the Communication shall be deemed
delivered upon the earliest date determined in accordance with the preceding subparagraph.

If the above provisions require Communication to be delivered to more than one person
(including a copy), the Communication shall be deemed delivered to all such persons on
the earliest date it is delivered to any of such persons.

Concerning Communications sent by email: the Communication shall not be deemed to
have been delivered ifthe sender receives a message from the sender's or the recipient's
internet service provider or otherwise that the email was not delivered or received; if the
sender receives an automatic reply message indicating that the recipient is not present to
receive the email (commonly referred to as an "out of the office message"), the email shall
not be deemed delivered until the recipient returns; any email that the recipient replies to,

6

107



23

24.

25

26.

27

or forwards to any person, shall be deemed delivered to the recipient; the sender must print
the email to establish that is was sent (though it need not do so at the time the email was
sent); and the sender shall maintain the digital copy of the email in its email system for a
period of no less than one year after it was sent.

Indemnification. The Developer shall indemni$' and hold the City harmless from any and against
all claims, demands, disputes, damages, costs, expenses, (to include attorneys' fees whether or not
litigation is necessary and if necessary, both at trial and on appeal), incurred by the City as a result,
directly or indirectly, of the use or development of the Properfy, except those claims or liabilities
caused by or arising from the negligence or intentional acts of the City, or its employees or agents.
It is specifically understood that the City is not guaranteeing the appropriateness, efficiency, quality
or legality of the use or development of the Property, including but not limited to, drainage or
water/sewer plans, fire safety, or quality of construction, whether or not inspected, approved, or
permitted by the City.

Authority and Enforceability. Both Parties may seek specific performance of this Agreement
andlor bring an action for damages in a court within Levy County, Florida, if this Agreement is
breached by either Party. In the event that enforcement of this Agreement by the City becomes
necessary, and the City is successful in such enforcement, the Developer be responsible for the
payment of all of the City's costs and expenses, including attorney fees, whether or not litigation
is necessary and, ifnecessary, both attrial and on appeal. Such costs, expenses and fees shall also
be a lien upon the Property superior to all others. Interest on unpaid overdue sums shall accrue at
the rate of the lesser of eighteen percent (18%) compounded annually or at the maximum rate
allowed by law.

Severability. If any provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or
circumstances, shall to any extent by held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent
jurisdiction, then the remainder of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent
permitted by law.

Applicable Law: Venue. This Agreement, and the rights and obligations of the City and the
Developer hereunder, shall be governed by, construed under, and enforced in accordance with the
laws of the State of Florida. Venue for any litigation pertaining to the subject matter hereof shall
be exclusively in Levy County, Florida, or the U.S. Federal District Court in and for the Northem
District of Florida.

Force Majeure. Each Parly shall use good faith, due diligence and reasonable care in the
performance of its respective obligations under this Agreement, and time shall be of the essence in
such performance; however, in the event a Party is unable, due to force majeure, to perform its
obligations under this Agreement, then the obligations affected by the force majeure shall be
temporarily suspended. Within three (3) business days after the occunence of a force majeure, the
Party claiming the right to temporarily suspend its performance shall give notice to all the Parties,
including a detailed explanation of the force majeure and a description of the action that will be
taken to remedy the force majeure and resume full performance at the earliest possible time. The
term "force majeure" shall include events or circumstances that are not within the reasonable
control of the Party whose performance is suspended and that could not have been avoided by such
Parfy with the exercise of good faith, due diligence and reasonable care, Any suspension of
obligation(s) because of any force majeure shall terminate automatically sixty (60) days following
the provision of the notice described by this section, unless otherwise separately agreed by the
affected Party(ies).

7

108



28.

29.

30.

31.

Omission. Failure of this Agreement to address any particular permit, condition, terms or
restriction shall not relieve the Developer of the necessify of complying with the law governing
said permitting requirements, conditions, term or restriction.

Further Documents. Each Party shall, upon request of the other Party, execute and deliver such
further documents and perform such further acts as may reasonably be requested to effectuate the
terms of this Agreement and achieve the intent of the Parties.

Consideration. This Agreement is executed by the Parties hereto without coercion or duress and
for substantial consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged.

Waiver. Waiver by either Party or any breach of this Agreement, or the failure of either Party to
enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement, at any time, shall not in any way affect, limit or
waive such Party's right thereafter to enforce and compel strict compliance of this Agreement.

Zoning. Developer understands that the rezoning process is subject to all City ordinances and
regulations goveming rezoning, including, but not limited to, review by the City, all applicable
public hearings, and approval by the City Council. Further, the Developer understands and
concedes that the City will not and cannot by law waive the requirements governing the rezoning
process.

Effective Date. The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be the day this Agreement is recorded
in the Public Records of Levy County, Florida.

Restrictions. Developer will cause deed restrictions to be recorded against the Property to assure
a quality development and give recourse to those who will own individual residential units in the
development to enforce said restrictions.

Entire Understanding. This Agreement represents the entire understanding and Agreement
between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all other negotiations
(if any) made by and between the parties. The provisions of this Agreement may not be amended,
supplemented, waived, or changed orally but only by a writing making specific reference to this
Agreement signed by the party as to whom enforcement of any such amendment, supplement,
waiver or modification is sought.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed this _ day
2021

THIS PART OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SIGNATURES START ON NEXT PAGE

32

33

34

35

of

8

109



Armstrong Land,LLC, A Florida limited liability
company

By: Lennar Homes, LLC, a Florida
limited liability company, as Manager

By
AS

STATE OF FLORIDA
COLTNTY OF LEVY

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [l physical presence or I
online notarization, this _ day of _, _, by AS

of Lennar Homes, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, as Manager of
Armstrong Land,LLC, a Florida limited liability company, on behalf of such company.

Notary Public, State of Florida
Name:

(Please print or type)
Commission Number:
Commission Expires:

Notary: Check one of the following:
_ Personally known OR
_ Produced Identification (if this box is checked, fill in blanks below).
Type of ldentification Produced:

9

110



City of Williston, Florida

By:
Debra Jones as Council President

ATTEST:

Latricia Wright
Williston City Clerk

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of I physical presence or !
onlinenotarization,this-dayof-,202,byDebraJonesasCouncilPresidentofCity
of Williston, Florida.

Notary Public, State of Florida
Name:

(Please print or type)
Commission Number:
Commission Expires:

Notary: Check one of the following:
_ Personally known OR

_ Produced Identification (if this box is checked, fill in blanks below).
Type of Identification Produced:

10

111



EXHIBIT A
PROPERTY

th.Nqtt'l/2dtttNdfilf2dgwlr4olSlly1r,lF(CEPTlhaE-25t t$ru|lAl{OtrtlW1r4d8fyil4p(CEFTh.Fl26fri
$.nd, Cl h 8.clo' 31, Tourilp 12 8odr, Rr'tlo r0 E* D(CEPT THE FOllOW|No DESCTRIBED PARCETS:

LrrnlE6Dt
CollYndlc. d rh. Sou0l'mrt oqnc dlol7 dJJ. ilbon Subdhhion d$.l{dt 12 dsocJor gl,Tordrg t2 sofi, Rflgt
lhrncrrut8qfi850t (lhfic.trtrEdtlo{bia,$.nctltrtmrf*yfoqnlHtt!}*d.Fylfiat.t$fio3o||i/m
d B.Cnnhg, d r ffibal h thd Bod(Z fut l8l.

l-f fidEErFt

{e Ed
t abtrhil

GorrnaodlhcWd lt{tcoiloncolruofSccdonSf. pr6dhnc.8oufi8ilegtr finrh.lb85urfiErttffrod0l8"86lbd
blh.FohtdB.ghnh0conthuhglh.noSou0rETd.gr t4mlnubSOr.dt(lErtrtlodgalt.tllDSol'rlF&glr47
mlllb.SExlsrd.dhrc.ol4Sl.l0lb*$rrc.8a&t7rftrur'lr*rlbrSsrcq|rlEdrrlltroof:S.l0t*f!tc.scrt
lx,thgu$mlnubrAI.E(lW.d.dN&ndAF.o6lb*0t rpl{qfi87ogul4r*||b36ronrlw*t&trdn520
lb* firp l{ofi (x} drgru 3e mbul. dl rsld! Ed r dlEro rlGl.(nlbCbtl Foff dB.ffii&
Lo.xlEqt
OonndlO n thr llorfiwrC cqnt d rhr SotdrfltC l/4 of 3.ftn 3f , Towr$b f 2 8cfi, Rrtr f 0 E*, 0!.D Sctr O d.gltr 12 lfhrb.
t0rcondrEdt8tctbrcqurbmdtltl ntrdlh.Polrtot8cglmhg;0s6cq{lllSoldrEdrgrst2lt*rfitosnlE-
Cl3.e5fidbrcmcrtbtnoruncnttlcroSodr0l d.erlc20mfublq'rcs$EdSihqllmo1{q$f firrl0n*rb80
s@n(bwddr0.15t aboroE rlrleildtlylh.ofl,lqthdSannthgt *$'lc.llc$2fig|ult1ffrb.Etr.c|fitl$!.ldmglxl v,ffi Slc S Ed rtlt drrry lln of l{qlhilld S.lnn$ gn ab lh. Fm of 8.ehlf,[.

l-crtdEEqt
Forr pohtoftrlbnncc, cmlmc*.atihr Noilhltdconcrof 6Yy t/,t ol86n3t umgcfiBfietu 12iltub l0Fn(bFj-
i{t.$lbibrcano*nsul|lltficrcrSolfrrotfir.rAlmferbmrrcmdtE-6ES"r tdb.carctttmclrll.tl'llrtflhf(bgllr 1t mlruil.tUrrcondr Ert7110.34lbCbl'l. E-lh.dlhcW.i 1/2dth.gW lradrSSldql9t nd0lrFoilolB.etnhe;
tlno ilortr E0 rlogrr t3 mhrlpr (I' sxl Wr.t 0'1.70 lb.a b Oo Well

ilnS.0(ltdbllr rfii ]$rfi lhrdt{t\l,tfiArrilU$rp
1/2 ollho 8W {r4 ddl Srclar 3l;

le,bdoar0tffidBrgffi1r
lfi'ldEqDt
Forr poliofrrfrm, snmcncodth Sqdnildsnroth. l{or$ ltzdfi.tlcfi 12dttcgfY ilof$.8W lAd8.rffUl3l,Tg|iltb
128odt, RrE. lgESlharctut ErtrloqficSoutt lhcd..llt{qlh 1/2d$ct{ct tadlligw lltdgwtrag&{r3lbibrfcnrl
lqrphcgrlhlo$rlyrlgl*dfiylh.ollloduttlU SndmdtpPohd8qlnlU;lrgpst|lrrErldone dgqflrhc-d$o
ilq0r dglild.my Un d Hotfirito.r {h Ayqrr f fl1.0 t q tutcc l.lortr @ drerr 25 n*lb il rcnil VUrf, prd.l luft rrH E .ttit
fthlolarrylhrdNo'fnr-71h $nr( 160.01* $dlc.W..tpr*lurftrH NorlrrlCrto*nyrrodNqdnfiiilhAvirr tdlolbrab
tt ddydgf'rtofi.mylhoof t{qlmrt?UgUrG$-rEoltr(trrhgrr25l*llhrttlconb4,$rTSEriyttfid.trryh.
16lt lbd b da. m lho Folt dBrglxfi.

LtrtdEtEdtl.lrt.lrsnttpdhD.ltlBookCl,P{s/tlTllllOllhllRmcdlBoklOlePtg'ZnotfFR*Rtadrdlrvy
Countt,Hdrl.

Lorl(l o€lptrrypor0on lylllguiltiln h. rlglrtotwryof t{w{hAvqr'.. ilW nhSilar{ }lulr0tgtri.

ElJG\Armstrong\Country Lane Estates\Dev K\Developer Agreement JG 12-6-21.docx

ll
112



Date: November 812022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

TOPIC: Resolution 2022-932 A resolution of the City Council of the City of WilIiston,
Florida, establishing authorization for the City Council President to authorize the purchase
of Itron 100W Endpoints and providing an effective date.

REQUESTED BY: JASON LEE PREPARED BY: JASON LEE

BACKGROUND / DESCRIPTION: ERT meters ae a critical component of the billing and
integration monitoring system. It will allow meter readers to capture the water reads easier.

LEGAL REVIEW:

FISCAL IMPACTS z $13,727.52

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

ATTACHMENTS:

COMMISSION ACTION:

APPROVED

DISAPPROVED

113



CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION NO. 2022-93

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON FLORIDA,
ESTABLISHING AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO
AUTHORIZET';IE PURCHASE OF ITRON 1OOW ENDPOINTS AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Williston has a need for Water meter ERT's; and

1IIHEREAS the ERT's are a critical component of billing and system integration

monitoringi and

WHEREAS the City Council will authorize a purchase for one-hundred and forty-

four ERT's.

NOW, THERTFORE, BE rT RESOLVED By THt CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY

oF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The above recitals are all true and accurate and are hereby made a

part of this resolution.

Section 2. Tl:e Council President is authorized to execute the necessary

purchase and acquisition of one-hundred and forty-four ERT's for the water utilities

division and inventory.

PASSED AND N)OPTED at a meeting of the City Council this 8th day of

November 2022. CITY OF WILLISTON, FLORIDA

By:
Debra Jones, President

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

By By
Latricia Wright, City Clerk Scott Walker, City Attorney

Kiersten Ballou, Attorney

114



Datei IO/25/2O22

The Avanti Company
22 South Lake Avenue
Avon Park, FL 33825-3902

PO Number: W006

Deliver To:City of Williston
25 NW 1st Ave.

Williston, Fl 32696

The misslon of the City of Willisto n is to offer an efflcient affordable and safe place to live, work and play.

Mayor - Charles Goodman / president - DEBRA JONES

Vice President - MARGUERITE ROBINSON

Council members - MICHAEL COX - Zach Bullock - ELIHU ROSS

City Manager - TERRY BOVAIRD / City Clerk - LATRtCtA WRTGHT

City of Williston
50 NW Main St, P,O. Drawer 160 Williston, FL 32696

Phone 528-3060 Fax s2a-2a77

Description Unit Price Sub Total

5

s

s

5

5

s

$

)
s

s

13,680.00

47.52

144 Itron 100w+ pit endpoint - ERW-1 300_402
ron red locking security seal - MSE-0018-001

Ses.oo

s0.33

t3,727,52s

Signature:

of Williston, immediately upon shipment of goods. Show
sh discount on all invoices. please acknowledge This purchase

Department Head: Jonathen Bishop

Finance: city Manager:

DGET ACCOUNT # lnventory
INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDOR: Mail all invoices in duplicate
Purchase Order Number, to the purchasing Department,

115



Date: ll-08-2022

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM

RESOLUTION 2022-942

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE LEASE AGREEMENT FOR A ROOM IN CITY HALL
BETWEEN CENTRAL FLORIDA COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY, INC. AND THE
CITY OF WILLISTON, PROPERTY MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN
ATTACHED LEASE; AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO
EXECUTE THE LEASE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

REQUESTED BY: CITY MANAGER, TERRY BOVAIRD
PREPARED BY: KIERSTEN BALLOU, CITY ATTORNEY

FISCAL IMPACTS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

CONTRACT XX RESOLUTION 2022.94 MAP

XX LEASE OTHER DOCUMENTS

COUNCIL ACTION:

APPROVED

DENIED

116



RESOLUTION NUMBER 2022-9 4

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLISTON,
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE LEASE AGREEMENT FOR A ROOM IN CITY HALL
BETWEEN CENTRAL FLORIDA COMMUNITY ACTION AGENCY, INC. AND THE
CITY OF WILLISTON, PROPERTY MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED IN
ATTACHED LEASE; AUTHORIZING THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT TO
EXECUTE THE LEASE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Central Florida Community Action Agency, Inc. has requested a lease
for a room located in the Williston City Hall; and

WHEREAS, the relevant Codes of the City of Williston, Florida allow for leases of this
type under terms that comply with such codes and other relevant state and federal
laws; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager and City Council President are appropriate parties to
execute documents related to such Lease Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it is in the City's best interest to
authorize the City Manager andf or City Council President to execute this Lease
Agreement, an unexecuted copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and any
other such documents as are required to enter into the Lease Agreement.

NOItrI, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
oF WILLISTON, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The City Council hereby approves the Lease Agreement between Central
Florida Community Action Agency, Inc. and the City of Williston, Florida and the
appropriate City Officials are hereby authorized to execute the Lease Agreement
which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" .

Section 2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by an affirmative vote of a majority of a quorum present
in the City Council of the City of Williston, Florida this _ day of November , 2022.

117



Attest, By the City Clerk of
the City of Williston, Florida

Latricia Wright, City Clerk

BY THE CITY COUNCIT PRESIDENT OF
THE CITY OF WILTISTON, FLORIDA:

Debra fones, City Council President

Approved as to Form and Legality:

S, Scott Walker, City Attorney
Kiersten N. Ballou, City Attorney

118



LEASE A T

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, dated this _ day of 2022,
by and between the CITY OF WILLISTON, P.O. Drawer 160, Williston, Florida 32696, a
municipal corporation chartered under the laws of the State of Florida, hereinafter called "CITY"
and the Central Florida Community Action Agency, Inc., hereinafter called "LESSEE.'

WITNESSETH:

1. DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES: That for and in consideration of the covenants and
agreements herein contained and the rents reserved and to be paid by the LESSEE to
the CITY, the CITY has leased, let and rented, and by these presents does lease, let and
rent unto the LESSEE the following described property in Williston, Levy County,
Florida, to-wit:

Room located inside the City of Williston City Hall
at address 50 NW Main Street, Williston, Florida 32696.

2. TERM:

A. Initial Term: The LESSEE shall have the right to have and to hold the above-
described premises for a term of one (1) year (consisting of twelve (12) calendar
months) commencing the day of 2022 hereinaft er referred to
as the Initial Term, subject to the parties' rights to renew this lease upon the same
terms and conditions as set forth herein and subject to earlier termination as herein
provided.

B. Extension Option: This lease shall automatically renew from year to year, unless
either party gives written notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the then-current
Expiration Date. Such cancellation and termination shall be without penalty to
either party and shall be effective within thirty (30) days after one party gives
written notice of termination to the other. However, the giving of such notice shall
not release either the CITY or LESSEE from full and faithful performance of all
covenants of this Lease during the period between the giving of notice and the
effective date of cancellation and termination.

3. USE AND POSSESSION: LESSEE shall use the leased premises for the purposes for
use as a museum. The LESSEE agrees that the leased premises shall at no time be used
for any unlawful purpose. The CITY may at any reasonable time enter upon the leased
premises by its agent for the purpose of inspecting the same. The CITY shall provide
the LESSEE with keys to the front door of City Hall and the _ Room. The LESSEE
shall have access to the premises as necessary. The LESSEE shall not lock the front
door if any other individuals or groups are using the premises but shall lock the front
door if no other individuals or groups are using the premises.

119



4. RENTAL: LESSEE hereby covenant and agree to pay to the CITY, a yearly rent of
beginning on the commencement date of this Lease and continuing on

the first day of each calendar year thereafter. Rent shall be paid to the CITY at the
above listed address.

5. UTILITIES: CITY shall pay one hundred percent (100%) of the utilities and other
services furnished to the premises for the term of this Lease, including but not limited
to electricity, gas, water, garbage, sewage, and security monitoring.

6. NOTICES: For purpose of notice or demand, the respective parties shall be served by
certified or registered mail, retum receipt requested, addressed to the LESSEE at their
principal office address as set forth herein, and to the CITY at its principal office
address as set forth herein.

7. ALTERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE: LESSEE by occupancy hereunder,
accepts the leased premises as being in good repair and condition and shall maintain
the property in a clean and organized manner. This includes the restroom facilities and
other common areas during times outside of regular CITY business hours, i.e. on
Fridays, Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays. However, should any damage occur to any
portion of the buildings by reason of the negligence of LESSEE, its agents, servants,
customers or employees, such damage shall be promptly repaired by LESSEE at its
expense. LESSEE shall keep clean of all trash and litter of any kind on the inside of
said premises and the grounds immediately surrounding the building. The LESSEE
shall not make any modifications to the premises without prior written approval from
the City Manager. Any and all flowers, trees, and/or plants planted by the LESSEE
shall be maintained by the LESSEE at its own expense.

8. COMMON AREAS: In using the premises, LESSEE shall have limited access to the
common areas. A11 decorations (i.e. posters on doors) in common areas, including the
front lawn, shall be approved by the CITY prior to use by the LESSEE. The LESSEE,
its agents, representatives, guests, visitors, invitees, and successors are prohibited from
parking on the gtass and shall ensure that guests of the LESSEE shall park only in
designated parking spaces. The LESSEE shall not use or move any property belonging
to the CITY without approval from appropriate CITY staff.

9. TENANTS' INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: LESSEE shall indemni$r and hold
harmless the CITY from and against all loss, damage, or claim of loss or damages
suffered, sustained, incurred or claimed by any person, firm, or corporation because of
damage to person or property sustained or alleged to have sustained while in, on, or
about such premises, or as the result of LESSEE use or occupation thereof. In addition,
LESSEE shall maintain liability insurance on all personnel. The LESSEE at their own
expense shall insure any improvements LESSEE makes to the leased premises to the
fulI insurable value thereof against fire and hazards covered by an extended coverage
endorsement for the benefit of the CITY and the LESSEE, each of whom shall be

120



named in the policy or polices of insurance. Such insurance shall be written by a
company to be approved by the CITY, and the CITY shall be fumished with a copy of
all insurance policies and with documentary evidence that the premiums on such
policies are currently paid. In the event the improvements on the leased premises are
damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty, all of the proceeds of the insurance
policies provided for above shall be used to immediately replace the improvements or
repair the same.

10. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASE: LESSEE covenants and agrees not to encumber
or assign this Lease or sublet all or any part of the leased premises without the written
consent of the CITY.

11. RELATIONSHIP WITH CITY: LESSEE, nor any of its representatives are
considered a CITY employee or representative of the CITY, and shall not hold itself
out as such. The LESSEE does not have authority to approve use of the premises for
other groups, orgarizations or individuals, without CITY approval. Any and all special
events held or organized by the LESSEE shall require the applicable special event
permit from the CITY.

12. TAXES: The LESSEE shall not be obligated to pay any taxes assessed against the
leased premises during the term of this lease.

13. CONSTRUCTION OF LANGUAGE: The terms Lease, lease agreement or
agreement shall be inclusive of each other, also to include renewals, extensions or
modifications of the Lease. Words of any gender used in this Lease shall be held to
include any other gender, and words in the singular shall be held to include the plural
and the plural to include the singular, when the tense requires. The paragraph headings
and title are not apart of this Lease and shall have no effect upon the construction or
interpretation of any part hereof.

14. SURRENDER OF PREMISES: LESSEE agree to surrender the premises at the end
of the lease term to the CITY in good condition, allowing for reasonable use and wear
and tear.

15. TERMINATION: In the event the LESSEE shall fail to pay said rental, or any part
thereof within ten (10) days after the same becomes due, or fail to perform and keep
any of the covenants or obligations contained in this lease, or if the LESSEE shall be
adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent according to law, or shall make an assignment for
the benefit of creditors, then and in any of said events, the CITY, after first giving the
LESSEE five (5) days writtennotice of its intention so to do, may at its continuing
option cancel this lease and forthwith lawfully enter upon the leased premises and
possess the same and expel the LESSEE and those claiming by, through or under the
LESSEE without being deemed guilty of any manner of trespass and without prejudice
to any remedies which the CITY might otherwise have and the LESSEE covenant that
in the event of any such action by the CITY that the LESSEE shall indemnify and save

121



harmless the CITY from any loss, cost, damage, liability or expense incurred by the
CITY by reason of any such action.

16. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS: This Lease shall bind and insure to the benefit of
the successors, assigns, heirs, executors, administrators and legal representatives of the
parties hereto. The LESSEE shall provide the CITY will a complete list of all board
members of the LESSEE with contact information.

17. PUBLIC RECORDS: Pursuant to Florida Statute Section I19.0701the parties agree
to the following:

a. During the term of this Agreement, the LESSEE shall comply with the Florida
Public Records Law, to the extent such law is applicable to the LESSEE. If
Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes is applicable, the LESSEE shall do the
following:

(l) Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would
be required by the CITY in order to perform this service;

(2) Provide the public with access to the public records on the same terms
and conditions that the CITY would provide the records and at a cost that does
not exceed the cost allowed by law;

(3) Keep from disclosure those public records that are exempt or
confidential;

(4) Meet all requirements for retaining public records and upon termination
of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, all public records to the CITY, and
destroy any duplicate public records that are confidential or exempt from
disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided to
the CITY in a format that is compatible with the information technology
systems of the CITY.

b. The LESSEE shall keep and make available to the CITY for inspection and
copying, upon written request by the CITY, all records in the LESSEE'S
possession relating to this Agreement. Any document submitted to the CITY
may be a public record and is open for inspection or copying by any person or
entity unless considered confidential and exempt. Public records are defined as
all documents, papers, letters, maps, books, tapes, photographs, films, sound
recordings, data processing software, or other mate1ral, regardless of physical
form, characteristics, or means of transmission, made or received pursuant to
law or ordinance or in connection with the transaction of official business by an
agency. Any document in the LESSEE'S possession is subject to inspection and
copying unless exempted under Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.

During the term of this Agreement, the LESSEE may claim that some or all of
the LESSEE information, including, but not limited to, software,
documentation, manuals, written methodologies and processes, pricing,
discounts, proprietary information, technical data, trade secrets, including, but

U.

122



not limited to research, product plans, products, services, customer lists and
customers, markets, software, developments, inventions, processes, formulas,
technology, designs, drawings, engineering, hardware configuration
information, marketing, finances, or other considerations (hereafter collectively
referred to as "confidential Information"), is, or has been treated 4s,
confidential and proprietary by the LESSEE in accordance with Section
812.081, Florida Statutes, or other law, and is exempt from disclosure under the
Public Records Act. The LESSEE shall clearly identifu and mark Confidential
Information as "Confidential Information" and the CITY shall use its best
efforts to maintain the confidentiality of the information properly identified by
the LESSEE as "Confidential Information." Confidential information does not
include any of the foregoing items that have become publicly known and made
generally available through no wrongful act or omission of eitherparty or others
who were under confidentiality obligations as to the item or items involved or
improvements or new versions thereof.

d. The CITY shall promptly noti$r the LESSEE in writing of any request received
by the CITY for disclosure of the LESSEE Confidential Information and the
LESSEE may assert any exemption from disclosure available under applicable
law or seek a protective order against disclosure from a court of competent
jurisdiction. The LESSEE shall protect, defend, indemnifu, and hold the cITy,
its officers, employees and agents free and harmless from and against any
claims or judgments arising out of a request for disclosure of Confidential
Information. The LESSEE shall investigate, handle, respond to, and defend,
using counsel chosen by the CITY, at the LESSEE'S sole cost and expens e, any
such claim, even if any such claim is groundless, false, or fraudulent. The
LESSEE shall pay for all costs and expenses related to such claim, including,
but not limited to, payment of attorney fees, court costs, and expert witness fees
and expenses. Upon completion of this Agreement, the provisions of this
section shall continue to survive. The LESSEE releases the CITY from all
claims and damages related to any disclosure of documents by the cITy.

e. If the LESSEE refuses to perform its duties under this section within fourteen
(14) calendar days of notification by the CITY that ademand has been made to
disclose the LESSEE'S Confidential Information, then the LESSEE waives its
claim that any information is Confidential Information and releases the CITY
from claims or damages related to the subsequent disclosure by the cITy.

f. If the LESSEE fails to comply with the Public Records Law, the LESSEE shall
be deemed to have breached amatenal provision of this Agreement.

18. NON-WAIVER: No waiver of any covenant or condition of this Lease by eitherparty
shall be deemed to imply or constitute a further waiver of the same covenant or
condition of any other covenant or condition of this Lease.

123



19. SPECIAL PROVISIONS: In the event the CITY sells the demised premises, the
purchaser shall take ownership of the property subject to the lease. In the event of sale,
LESSEE may cancel this lease upon consent of both parties.

20. GOVERNING LAW: This Lease is made in the State of Florida for property located
in Florida, therefore it is agreed by the parties hereto that the Lease will be construed
using the laws of the State of Florida.

21. LITIGATION VENUE: The CITY and LESSEE waive the privilege of venue and
agree that all litigation between them in the State Courts shall take place in Levy
County, Florida, and that all litigation between them in the Federal Courts shall take
place in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Florida.

22. BINDING EFFECT: This instrument is binding upon the CITY, and the LESSEE, its
heirs, successors, and permitted assigns.

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; APPLICATIONS INCORPORATED: This lease

represents the complete understanding between the Parties, and any prior agreements
or representations, whether written or verbal, are hereby superseded. No agreement to
modifu this lease will be effective unless in writing and executed by the party against
whom the modification is sought to be enforced. Any such modification on the part
of the Lessor shall not be effective unless considered at a public meeting and
approved by majority vote of the Williston City Council. All information provided
by Lessee in the lease application process is incorporated herein by reference. Lessee

warrants that all information provided to.

24. BENEFIT: This lease and all of the covenants and provisions thereof shall inure to the
benefit of and be binding upon the legal representative successors and assigns of the
parties hereto.

25. ATTORNEY FEES: In the event of any action or proceeding brought by either party
against the other under this Lease, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all
costs and expenses including reasonable fees of its attorney's and such other actions or
proceeding in such amount as the court may judge reasonable under the laws of the
State of Florida.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY OF WILLISTON and LESSEE have caused this
instrument to be executed as of the date first above written by their respective officers or parties
thereunto duly authoized.

124



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Lease to be executed in duplicate
this day of 2022.

LESSEE:
Central Florida Community Action Agency, Inc.

BY:
Title:

ATTEST:
CITY CLERK

LESSOR:
CITY OF WILLISTON

BY:
PRESIDENT, CITY COUNCIL

125




